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AMAZINGLY 
LIGHT, 
INCREDIBLY 
TOUGH.

Built without compromise. TraX Adventure are 
designed to be extremely tough and made from 
1.5mm aluminium, further strengthened by lid 
and side wall ribbed contours. Weighing between 
4.6 and 5.4 kilos, the TraX Adventure is one of the 
lightest cases available in it’s class.

Side cases are available in 37 and 45 litre sizes, 
the top case has a 38 litre capacity and the range 
starts at $621.

So whether you’re taking on an off-road challenge, 
touring the open road or just beating the rain to 
work, get a case that’s 100% adventureproof.

TRAX ADVENTURE - THE BENCHMARK 
IN ALUMINIUM TOURING CASES.

PERTH UNIT 1/108 WELSHPOOL RD WELSHPOOL WA T 08 9350 9052
SYDNEY 53 PARRAMATTA RD LIDCOMBE NSW T 02 9748 3006

EXCLUSIVE AUSTRALIAN DISTRIBUTOR OF

INSURANCE FOR MOTORING ENTHUSIASTS  |  CALL 13 46 46 FOR A QUOTE  |  SHANNONS.COM.AU
Shannons Pty Limited ABN 91 099 692 636 is an authorised representative of AAI Limited ABN 48 005 297 807, the issuer of Shannons Car, Bike and Home/Contents insurance products. Read the relevant Product Disclosure Statement and consider whether 
it is right for you before buying these insurance products. Contact us for a copy. Competition conducted by Shannons Pty Limited, of Level 28, Brisbane Square, 266 George Street, Brisbane, QLD 4000. Competition commences at 12am on 15/1/18 and 
closes at 5pm on 6/4/18 (Melbourne time). Applications for online quotes must be submitted by 2/4/18 to be eligible for entry into this competition, however, telephone applications will continue to be available until 5pm 6/4/18. Entry is only open to 
eligible Australian residents aged 18 years or older. Eligible Entrants must be opted in to receive Shannons marketing communications. Total prize pool valued at approx. AUD $56,395 (depending on major prize winner’s point of departure, Shannons Club 
Membership and on road costs which differ nationally). Prizes drawn at 12pm on 16/4/18 at Engage Australia, Level 8, 56 Clarence Street, Sydney, NSW 2000. The winners will be notified by phone and email by 18/4/18 and published in The Australian 
newspaper on 23/4/18 and on the competition website. *New Shannons Motor Insurance Policy (excludes CTP insurance) (Motor Policy) or a new Shannons Home & Contents insurance (includes building only, contents only or building and contents 
cover) (Home Policy) quotes. Limit 1 quote per vehicle or insured address. **Purchase a new Motor Policy (excludes existing Motor Policy renewals).+Purchase a new Home Policy. Permits: ACT TP 17/02426.1, NSW LTPS/17/20050, SA T17/2280. Full 
competition terms and conditions at shannons.com.au/pebblebeach.

Shannons are offering motoring enthusiasts the chance to win a tour for two to the 
2018 Pebble Beach Concours D’Elegance, one of the world’s most prestigious motoring events Visit the 

Napa Valley, classic motoring collections and iconic attractions before heading to Monterey Car Week and 
the Pebble Beach Concours D’Elegance. Complete the trip behind the wheel of a  Ferrari 488 GTB for the 

ultimate drive experience. The winner will also receive an all new 2018 Indian Scout  Motorcycle.

To enter go to shannons.com.au/pebblebeach or call 13 46 46 and obtain an eligible quote 
on your Car, Bike or Home Insurance* by 6 April 2018. 

1 5 10Get a Quote*
ENTRY

Take out a new 
Motor Policy**

ENTRIES
Take out a new Home 
& Contents Policy+ 

ENTRIES

GET A QUOTE 

TODAY!
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e | editor@ulysses.org.au
m | 0419 047 789

From the mess on the 
editor’s desktop.

 

Gary Warner  
 
#65262

AS a group of us enjoyed a coffee before a recent ride, one of 
the more senior riders present expressed his concern about 
our declining membership.

“I see we’re down to about 16,000 members, it doesn’t seem 
so long ago that membership was almost 30,000,” he said with 
a worried shake of his grey-haired head.

“We can’t go on like this, what is our National Committee 
doing about it? Little or nothing, from what I can see.”

His question and concern gave rise to an even more pressing 
question – what would he have NatCom do to correct or 
reverse the downward spiral of membership?

Like it or not, the answer is that there is actually little or no 
direct action that Nat Com can take to correct the slide in 
membership, short of kidnapping innocent motorcyclists and 
forcing them to join us!

More seriously, the problem begins with our own demographic 
of 40 years and over.

With the passing of each member who takes that last great 
ride, our membership shrinks a little further. If new riders 
join us, our membership will remain steady or even increase. 
However, that does not appear to be the case, and we might 
wonder why not.

For one thing, younger generations are taking to the road 
on scooters, those buzzing little 50cc machines that are so 
popular. If those young riders took the seemingly logical step 
up to a `real’ motorcycle we might see many more continue 
their two-wheeled journey, but too many choose instead to 
opt for four wheels.

How might we influence them to join us in the delights of the 
motorcycling lifestyle?

We could start by greeting them with a smile instead of a 
sneer. Enticing those youngsters is a long term goal, but there 
are many committed riders in our own age group who might 
only need a friendly nod or wave to bring them aboard.

Start a conversation with other riders wherever you might 
meet them, at a fuel station or in a parking area; “G`day 
mate, how’s it going? Great day for a ride…”

It might not lead to a new Ulysses Club membership, but then 
again it just might.

As you can read elsewhere in this edition of Riding On, 
another factor is the number of people who simply forget to 
renew their membership. Check your Ulysses Club card, it will 
tell you when your membership expires.

You would be hard-pressed to find a member of this great 
Club who does not have their own story (or two) about the 
camaraderie offered by and for Ulysseans.

Building on the strong foundations created by Old #1 Stephen 
Dearnley and his fellow founders, we can all be ambassadors 
for The Ulysses Club Inc.

Opportunity missed 
It is no doubt going to be one of my great regrets that I could 
not attend the final AGM Event at Riverland in South Australia.

Circumstances beyond my control prevent my attendance at 
what will be the last under the old name, from next year it will 
be known as the Ulysses Club National Rally.

The name is changing, but not the spirit of what will still be 
our AGM.

That makes it an historic moment I would love to attend but, 
as I said, circumstances beyond my control etc.

I can only apologise and hope everyone attending has a great 
time!
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e | president@ulysses.org.au
m | 0448 336 111 National President’s Report

This will be my last Riding 
On report for this National 
Committee year and I 
reflect on a very busy time 
since the 2017 AGM.  Most 
pleasingly, this NatCom has 
worked very diligently to 
curb spending and continues 
to do so. Treasurer John 
has been pivotal to that 
task of course, and his 
even handed and detailed 
approach to identifying 
issues and suggesting 
where focus should be 
placed and savings could 

be made, as well as the efforts of the NatCom members to 
suggest and support changes and then seek to implement 
them, has provided the club with a much better financial basis 
on which to continue.  

This current National Committee will be returned at the 2018 
AGM and will continue the work.

Riding On has always been the main communication channel 
for the Ulysses Club.  In the Ulysses Story, Stephen Dearnley 
#1 wrote “I am convinced that the glue that holds Ulysses 
Club together is Riding On. Unlike many similar publications, 
the club magazine has always had firm editorial direction 
so it has not become just a bland and wishy-washy voice 
of a committee. From its earliest beginnings as s simple 
newsletter, all three of its editors have had the welfare and 
spirit of Ulysses deeply at heart. All editors have worked 
hard to ensure that there has been a fair balance of ideas 
and opinions, or information and entertainment, and that the 
simple aims of the club were kept firmly in the forefront.” This 
current National Committee supports that view. While the 
club has taken the step of using social media to “spread the 
word”, the Riding On will always be the main communication 
method.  Whether it remains in the same format will depend 
on members support to reduce the ever increasing cost that 
print magazines now must attract. We do need to reduce the 
cost of Riding On and to that end the National Committee is 
considering options.

Many previously formal Branches now find themselves 
facing changes with the effect that they need to consider 
moving from being an elected formal Branch Committee with 
a minimum of 5 Committee members, to the Committee 
by Consensus format which requires 3 members elected 
at a Branch AGM and informally running the Branch.  The 
Constitution includes Branch Committees as both formal 
and informal to conduct the affairs of the Branch under the 
reasonable direction of the  National Committee.

One of the really stunning aspects of our club are the 
volunteers who do their work without seeking any credit but 
whose work carries this club. At the Branch level we have our 
amazing volunteers who do so much as evidenced by the list 
of Telemachus medals, and Dearnley medals we award each 
year. As well, volunteers like Kim Kennerson who is the Ulysses 
Club Arthritis Research Coordinator, Graham Moore who 
coordinates the MAOTY scheme each year, Riding On Editor 
Gary Warner, Riding On proof readers Bryan Fricker and Colin 
Hook, our website Administrator Wayne Watson, all provide 
service to the club that we come to rely on.

I reflect on the work done by the National Committee team 
and the excellent efforts they have done during the year in 
all their portfolios. Teamwork is forged by working together 
with mutual respect, trust and a sense of collective purpose. 
We receive very positive feedback from members which is 
heartening.

Shortly after you receive the Autumn edition of the RO, the 
2018 AGM Event in the Riverland area of South Australia 
will be close…have you registered for the Event?  We are 
extending the use of RFID cards at the AGM this year after 
the trial of the cards at Check-in and the gate in 2017; it is 
anticipated that the process should be more efficient. I look 
forward to seeing you at the AGM Event in the Riverland.  
Enjoy the journey.

Jen Woods  
#21395 
National President

www.adriaticmototours.com

14
years

Slovenia, Croatia, Bosnia & Herzegovina, Montenegro

HigHligHts
Sarajevo, Rovinj, Zadar, Mostar, 
Adriatic coastal road, Hvar Island, 
5 UNESCO World Heritage Sights: 
Plitvice National Park, Durmitor 
National Park, Kotor, Dubrovnik, Split.

Balkans  
Adriatic Explorer and

September 
3 - 20

TOUR 
DATES

18
days
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Vice President’s Reporte | vicepresident@ulysses.org.au
m | 0428 246 175

With the arrival of 
Autumn, we will have 
an exciting period 
of Branch AGMs, to 
be followed by our 
National AGM Event 
and Moto EXPO in 
the Riverlands of 
SA. So it seems like 
an appropriate time 
to update you on 
the various matters 
within my portfolio of 
responsibilities.

Once again, there has 
been a very high standard of interest shown by the nominees 
for the Ulysses Club - Motorcycle Apprentice of the Year 
Award.  Our National adjudicator – Graham Moore, has once 
more managed the difficult task of selecting our four zone 
winners, from whom our national winner will be selected.  
Elsewhere in this edition of RO, you will find details, profiles 
and pictures of the zone winners.  We are again very grateful 
to Supercheap Auto for its generous sponsorship of the zone 
winners awards of $1000 Supercheap Auto Gift Cards A big 
thank you to Graham Moore for his tireless work with the 
MAOTY award. This is Graham’s last year as our National 
Adjudicator, with his role to filled by Jim Brooks #9467,  
effective 1st June this year.

The Ulysses Club preferred charity – UCARF (Ulysses Club 
Arthritis Research Fund) will again conduct ts biennial National 
Raffle (a valuable fundraiser) in 2019, with outstanding prizes 
for first, second and third in the draw.  We have secured 
sponsorship from Suzuki for the major prize, a motorcycle 
from their range of latest models, which is sure to make some 
lucky winner very happy. UCARF is worthy of your support as 
every dollar raised goes directly into arthritis research.  And to 
cap it off, the UCARF Raffle first prize will be fully sponsored 
by Suzuki.

This past year has been one of great success with 
sponsorships.  Most of our established major sponsors have 
been renegotiated and recommitted to us, including –  Suzuki, 
Supercheap Auto, Shannons Insurance, Drive Away Holidays,  
Autosol and Maurice Blackburn Lawyers.  Negotiations with 
our largest Sponsor – QBE - are currently underway for a 
new arrangement, reflecting the new administration team 
within QBE. Loyal support from our members towards all 
our sponsors is appreciated as it is our support to them that 
guarantees they will remain sponsor partners into the future.

One of the key attractions at our AGM Event each year is 
the display, and test rides provided of, the latest model bikes 
available from our supporting motorcycle manufacturers.  
We are again very privileged to have most manufacturers 
committing to be with us and I’m sure many of you will 
avail yourselves of the chance of a test ride on the bike of 
your choice. My appreciation goes to the entire 2018 AGM 
Committee for their efforts in accommodating the motorcycle 
manufacturers and in fact all Trade exhibitors.

Of course, from 2019 we are going “Back to the Future” with 
a change of name to “National Rally and AGM”…………   a 
change that has been welcomed by our members.   In  late 
March I will again be attending the National Rally of Ulysses 
Club New Zealand – to be held in Dunedin.

It is pleasing to see our membership numbers starting 
to stabilise after some years of decline. I encourage all 
members to keep an eye on your renewal date, and remain 
current…… even if your riding activities have diminished.  We 
are still a very proud social club for those with an interest in 
motorcycling, and your continuing membership is encouraged, 
even if you have ceased riding.

Safe and happy riding………….   I look forward to seeing you in 
Riverlands in May. 

 Peter Baulch  
#27672   
National Vice President 

Motorcycle Industry Liaison’s Report 
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Secretary’s Reporte | secretary@ulysses.org.au
m |  0418 329 617

Our start to 2018 has 
been exceptionally busy, 
correspondence from 
members did not let up 
much over the Christmas 
break. The whole National 
Committee has been 
hard at work and our 
first meeting for the year 
in Sydney was a pretty 
solid two days, including 
a review of our IT 
requirements. 

It seems that our member 
numbers are floating up and down, mainly because of late 
renewals from around the end of last year. One of the things 
affecting our numbers are members not renewing. There 
are a multitude of different reasons for this, but based on 
correspondence received, a good part of the problem is the 
behaviour of some of our members at meetings and not 
welcoming new members when we do get them. It is every 
current member’s responsibility to welcome new members 
and make them feel at home. Also, anti- social behaviour at 
meetings and dangerous riding out on the road by some is 
the quickest way to put new people off becoming or staying 
involved.  

In February, when this report was written, we were looking 
forward to the AGM at Barmera and at this point it is building 
up to a great event. The event committee is working very hard 
to make this a very successful event and the location is simply 
brilliant. 

Late in 2017 we had a major rush of award nominations for 
Telemachus Medals, Dearnley Medals and even a couple of 
Life Memberships. Not all were successful, but it shows that 
there are a lot of members out there working hard for the 
Ulysses Club and their fellow members. Congratulations to all 
whose nominations were approved. Within every branch there 
are members whose work for the Branch and/or Ulysses Club 
is a cut above the rest. Branch committees should consider 
if the effort being put in might warrant the preparation of a 
nomination. The guidelines of what is required are detailed 
in the Guidebook for Members (6th Edition) and if any further 
information is required contact me at secretary@ulysses.org.
au   I’m always happy to help members in whatever way I 
can. It has come to our attention that some Branches may 
effectively be operating as riding groups. Another branch has 
recently, officially become a riding group. In a lot of ways 
it makes life easier for those branches that struggle to put 
together a committee. If your branch is in that boat, consider 
running with a Committee by Consensus which reduces your 
committee commitments, or as a last resort, consider moving 
to riding group. If anyone needs further advice on this, please 
again refer to the Guidebook for members or contact me.

For those coming to the AGM, I wish you a safe journey. Look 
me up when you get there.

Henry Rokx
#28636  DM#45

National Secretary

SHINE 
EVERYTIME...

Cleans, Polishes & Protects!

Made in Germany Since 1929

www.autosol.com.au 
info@autosol.com.au 

Tel: 02 9905 8400
Use code: 
Ulysses15

15% 
OFF 
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m | 0423 379 848
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Treasurer’s ReportSecretary’s Report

This report covers the 
financial aspects of 
the Club’s activities for 
our financial year 2017 
and will be the report 
considered by members 
at the AGM in Barmera 
in May 2018. The full 
accounting reports and 
the Auditor’s report are 
presented in another 
section of this Riding 
On; so for details please 
refer to those reports.

Financial year 2017 has 
delivered mixed results – the trading outcome reported 
for the year is a loss of $21,265 compared to last year’s 
outcome, a loss of some $127,134. Essentially this outcome 
can be attributed to significant emphasis on the part of 
NatCom to focus on areas of the Club’s operation which 
pose the most risk of losses. Advertising Riding On revenue 
continues to decline in line with print magazine advertising 
generally and this is of concern. With the change in 
treatment of Subscriptions in Advance (introduced in 2016) 
the subscription revenue improved. However, the major 
change from 2016 was the outcome for the AGM Event with 
a turnaround of $89,667; the risk to the Club’s financial 
stability is clearly demonstrated by this volatility. With the 
reduction in membership and participation at the annual 
event we must change our mindset regarding charges to 
attend, or be satisfied with a major reduction in the Event 
format – all driven by cost.

Significant progress has been made in control of expenditure. 
Notwithstanding the new Riding On website coming on line, 
IT costs were reduced by over $10k due to reduction in iMIS 
system costs and Admin Bandit software. NatCom costs have 
been reduced by 22.5% over 2016 costs by introduction of 
changes in meeting and travel processes

The area of most concern is the net cost of the Riding On 
magazine. 2018 budget indicates that the magazine is going 
to “lose” some $145k. If we move to e-magazine using the 
already established Riding On Website we will secure the 
financial future of the Club with no increase in subscriptions. 
I believe this and potential Rally losses are the major areas 
of financial risk for the Club and require complete focus from 
NatCom to secure acceptable change.

A surprise with the 2017 accounts was the write back of 
GST liability from previous years of some $25,485. Whilst 
it is impossible to explain this situation without risking 
besmirching reputations I am prepared to accept the present 
Auditor’s view on this issue and accept the adjustment to 
our accounts. The outcome overall for 2017 is that Members 
Equity in the Club has increased $4,221 which is a small 
move in the right direction.

I am looking forward to continuing to work with the coherent 
NatCom group which has seen significant change in 2017.

John Osborne  
 
#41785 
National Treasurer

Available online from 

» Weighs only 570g

» Inflate a low or flat 
tyre quickly 
and safely

» Ideal for use on motorcycles, 
ATV’s and scooters

ULTRA COMPACT
POCKET PUMP

TYRE GAUGE
» Measures PSI or KPA

» 0-60 PSI/0-4.2 KPA read out

» 50mm (2”) analogue dial

» 300mm (12”) braided flex hose

» Push button air bleed valve

» Protective rubber gauge guard

» Self-locking air chuck PLUS A 
SECOND 45° chuck for those hard to 

get to valves

M
O

N
T H  W A R R ANT

Y12

S
PA R E  C H UC

K

INCLUDES

45º

LOCK & CABLE
GEARLOK

» 5 ft long, 5mm thick 
plastic coated 
steel cable

» Re-settable 4 digit 
combination lock

» Soft silicone cover to protect 
lock and bike parts

Lock your helmet, jacket, 
backpack, or any other 
accessory to your motorcycle.

PUMP IT!

CHECK IT!

LOCK IT!

M
O

N

T H  W A R R AN
T

Y12

Y
E A R  WA RRA

N
T

Y

5



RIDING ON 12

Purchasing Officer Report
e | advertising@ulysses.org.au 
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m | 0418 95 4424 

Road Safety Committee Report

Advertising Liaison’s Report
Purchasing Officer Report

My role in advertising is 
much more challenging 
than I had hoped.

Many businesses are 
doing it tough at the 
moment and looking 
for ways to reduce their 
costs, the easiest way for 
them is to reduce their 
advertising budget.

You can help of course 
by ensuring that 
whenever possible you 
give our advertisers the 
chance to supply your 
needs, let them know 

that you heard about 
them in our magazine and be aware that we can all help to 
source new advertisers.

I have been scouring all of the popular motorcycle and RV 
magazines for new advertisers and feel that we may get some 
on board soon.

In the Purchasing portfolio, we have been looking for a better 
deal for our entire club merchandising. As we have been 
using the same supplier for many years I thought it was an 
opportune time to test the market, to investigate if we can get 
an improved deal from our existing or from a new supplier. 
This will be based on overall costs to us, minimum supply 
quantities, lead times from order placement to delivery, and 
improved communication of any issues that arise from time to 
time.

At the time of writing this report most of our outstanding 
orders have been filled with just two still outstanding. We 
will however need a restock soon and this can sometimes 
be dictated by the minimum quantities required, as not all 
sizes run out at the same time. The ladies in our National 
Administration Office do a truly magnificent job under 
sometimes difficult situations, so please be patient with them 
as they go out of their way on many occasions for you as our 
valued members.

I have recently been asked to undertake the Membership 
and Community Engagement role, which is a new area 
of responsibility for me. I am very excited to have the 
opportunity along with all our members to help grow this 
great club of ours and to project our positive image to the 
general public as we go about our daily lives and on Ulysses 
Club rides and social events. 

We will very soon have a yearly subscription available to 
existing Ulysses Club members of $40.00 per annum, this new 
membership option will be starting on 1st April 2018 and is a 
direct result of requests from our members.

I hope over the coming months to explore ways to grow our 
membership back to the numbers that we used to enjoy a few 
years ago, and will be looking to our existing members to give 
me your thoughts on how we can all work towards this target. 
This can be accomplished by actively going out to motorcycle 
shops with information on our club, attending motorcycle 
events to spread the Ulysses Club message or just by talking 
to new members and making them so welcome that they 
instantly become part of the group.

Of course the big news for this edition is our Road Safety 
Forum at our AGM in May. We will be holding it once again at 
the main AGM site on Thursday 10th May starting at 9.30 am.

This year as well as having your entire state and territory 
representative attending, we will also have guest presenters 
from Maurice Blackburn lawyers and Matthew Baldock from 
Adelaide’s Centre for Automotive Safety Research, and Jim 
Beck our Queensland representative to give us the latest on 
crash investigation in his home state.

If you can’t make it to the Forum but would still like to raise a 
question to be asked  please send your question to me at my 
email address.  
 
 

Dave Wright 
#51871 
Advertising Liaison , Puchasing Officer and Chair, 
Ulysses Club Road Safety Committee
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National AGM Event Coordinator  
& Minutes Secretary  

Ladies and gentleman, 
there has been a minor 
change in committee roles, 
Dave Wright #51871 and 
I have swapped some 
responsibilities to stream-
line our efforts within the 
committee.  Dave has 
taken over the Membership 
Liaison and Community In-
volvement, and I now have 
the Minutes Takers role at 
NatCom Meetings whilst still 
retaining my role as Nation-
al AGM Event Coordinator.

The 2018 - AGM Event - Riverland is shaping up to be a 
fantastic event. We have a great location in the Riverland Field 
Day Site which as you know has an excellent manicured grass 
area which will be great for camping and socialising. The 
Event Team has been working extremely hard to make this 
event one of the best AGM Events to date so come along and 
enjoy the experience. Don’t forget these events can only work 
with the assistance of volunteers, if everybody did one shift 
that would assist all involved and make your personal experi-
ence all the better.

Recently I attended the Ulysses RV Group gathering in 
Hamilton Victoria, very close to the Grampians. What a great 
weekend, around 39 people were there over the weekend 
with some raffles and socialising. It was great to experience 
the RV group activities, most of the participants still ride 
bikes however like most of us they enjoy the comradery and 
friendship of Ulysses along with the comforts of an RV. As the 
Club membership is trending along with the Australian popu-
lation and maturing gracefully, the RV group membership will 
ultimately grow.

There is an age limit for members volunteering (though until 
recently not enforced) at AGM Events, National Rallies and 
other Ulysses activities such as Motorcycle Shows etc, these 
restrictions have been placed on the Ulysses Club by the Club 
Insurance Company. The National Treasurer John Osborne has 
conducted some serious negotiations with our insurance com-
pany to raise the age limit to 85, with some restrictions 

Whilst I appreciate that we are all maturing and see problems 
in different ways and that our personal administration is our 
top priority and needs to be attended to immediately, however 
can I ask that all members are respectful when they contact 
the National Administration Office to sort out a problem. In 
recent times there have been a few members making unnec-
essary and unreasonable requests of the NAO staff. It is not 
their role to settle disputes they are there to administer the 
day to day admin of the Club and its members.

If you have a question, concern or complaint please refer your 
comments to the relevant NatCom member not at the NAO 
staff. In my portfolio as NAGMEC please direct any AGM Event 
problems to me and I will advise on the best course of action 
to resolve the problem.

Blue Knowles  
 
#33140 
National AGM Event Coordinator  
& Minutes Secretary

Trust a fellow rider 
with your claim

Bennett & Philp Lawyers 
will get you back on the road 
and to your destination.

Rely on our 35 year track 
record in motor accident claims.
 

Proud to support
Ulysses Club Inc.

A:  Level 13, 15 Adelaide Street, 
Brisbane Qld 4000, Australia

P: GPO Box 463, Brisbane Qld 4001
T: +61 7 3001 2999  |  F: +61 7 3001 2989
E: enquiries@bennettphilp.com.au

e | nagmec@ulysses.org.au
m | 0427 669 903
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International Liaison’s Report

Hello fellow Ulyssians, 
welcome to 2018.

I hope you have all 
enjoyed a safe and happy 
festive season and possibly 
enjoyed a holiday since the 
last Riding On?

The International Clubs 
have been relatively quiet 
the past 2 months – it 
is still the off season for 
many of them. We did 
receive many Christmas 
and Happy New Year 

wishes in late December – which I passed on for the website.

I am still sending my local branch monthly newsletter to each 
contact and most have replied with various stories of their 
own. If you have a story or event that you would like to share 
with our overseas counterparts, please send it to me, they 
enjoy reading about Australia and many have plans to travel 
here in the future.

Andrea Kampmann from Ulysses Club Botswana is very keen 
to share information and he states that now most of his club 
has returned from holidays, he will make sure that we receive 
stories and photos from their rides. He has also answered my 
request for updated Committee details.

Although Cambodia no longer has a Ulysses Club, Ulyssian 
Bob Wiltshire is still happy to be a contact for anyone 
travelling in that part of the world.

John Cooke from Ulysses Club France confirmed that their 
committee remains the same and that he is more than happy 
to receive queries about travel in France.

Genot MInig from Ulysses Club Germany thanked me for 
looking after the International flock and will welcome any 
travelling Ulyssians to Germany. He also confirmed details of 
the Committee. I still receive the regular weekly ride details – 
oh how I wish I was retired!

Gernot and his wife are planning to attend the 2019 National 
Rally in Mornington and I look forward to meeting and 
spending some time with both of them – Putting a face to the 
name is always good.

Pete Bull from Ulysses Club Great Britain continues to share 
the “Shining On” magazine with me – a good read. I am 
happy to forward this to any Aussie Ulyssian that would like to 
read it.

Tim (Tiny) Stewart from Ulysses Club New Zealand is a 
regular correspondent. I share many stories and ideas with 
Tiny and we have assisted each other with member enquiries 
both for travel and personal issues. Their national magazine 
“The Ulyssian” will be reverting back to a hard copy, New 
Zealand Ulyssians did not find the online version user friendly.

Both Hans Wentzle and Julian Middleton from Ulysses Club 
South Africa are great correspondents, giving me Club 

updates and riding information as it comes to hand. I have 
also been able to forward a query from a South African 
Ulyssian to the 2019 National Rally committee. Hopefully they 
are able to answer his questions. 

Ivan Hauri from Ulysses Club Switzerland thanked me for 
the enjoyable visit we had together in SE QLD in December 
2017. He would like to make the association between the 
International Clubs and the “Mother Club” (his words) 
stronger. Great idea. 

Jamie Pinner from Ulysses Club Thailand is a regular 
correspondent and I hope that things are beginning to 
settle with the Thailand Club. Jamie and I have had several 
discussions on some internal issues Thailand has been 
experiencing. Jamie is a very reasonable bloke and I am 
confident that he and the rest for the committee will be able 
to work these concerns out very soon. Matters have been 
quiet for a few weeks and I hope they stay that way.

Mark Salthouse from Zimbabwe and I share irregular 
correspondence – usually about the cricket, but I enjoy our 
online chats and I hope to hear more from him in 2018.

All the overseas Clubs promise to send ride reports and photos 
as they remember to do so. I will just have to keep jogging 
their memories!

Just this week, I received a query from a Ulyssian wanting 
to start a Ulysses Club in Cuba! I have sent Wolfgang the 
necessary paperwork and we will see how it goes! 

I am also fielding enquiries from Ulyssians in regards to bike 
and medical insurance for overseas travel and in one case 
travel arrangements. There was the need for a fellow traveler 
to assist with accommodation expenses. I have urged this 
person to contact the webmaster and possibly place an ad on 
the national website.

In regards to travel Insurance - the following information and 
websites may be of use to members travelling overseas.

These are a few companies that members have used.

Go to: www.aussietravelcover.com.au/?agencyid=13482 where 
you can obtain an immediate quote, and then proceed to 
policy issue if you wish. Using this online facility will gain you a 
15% discount  off the normal premium, and is the quickest and 
easiest way to go.

https://www.1cover.com.au/

https://travel.worldcare.com.au/?EDM=SUMMER

https://www.worldnomads.com

I hope these help.
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South East Queensland President and Secretaries Group:

The South East Queensland President and Secretaries will meet for the first time in 2018 on the 18th of February. South East 
Queensland Branches are very good at sharing information on their coming events and rides, resulting often, in big numbers 
at rides and events. Weekends away are shared and monthly social meetings are often well attended by members from other 
branches. They support each other well.

The North East Queensland President and Secretaries will meet again in March, with the Bundaberg Branch hosting this 
meeting. I am hopeful that the dates coincide with a weekend I am home so that I can attend.

Al lan Pratt  
 
#9186 DM #21

International Liaison

There has been a steady stream of interest in the various 
state Club schemes with the queries being forwarded to the 
relevant state representative. Hopefully members will get 
back to me if they do not hear from the state representative. 

Phil Whitton sent me the following – may be of interest to 
those considering the Club Plate Scheme in NSW.

Of matters historical, motorcycle speaking.

“G’day, The Ulysses office gave me your number. I’ve got this 
old bike in the shed I’ve had for years and I’d like to join the 
Ulysses and get it registered. How do I do it?”

And so opens another request for Conditional Registration and 
the return to riding on what was the pride and joy of another 
member.

Currently the NSW system requires an inspection (a Pink Slip) 
and the completion of the Application (RMS Form 1259) and 
the Declaration forms (RMS Form 1246) being stamped by the 
Registrar or Delegated Officer.  

Whilst the usage is restricted to Ulysses rides, being a 
Ulysses, member, there are Branch rides almost every day, 
depending, of course, the location.

There is also a 60 day log book system to operate in parallel 
with the existing Club Permit scheme. The log book allows 
for the owner to enter the ride or each day’s use in the “log 
book”. Initially there is a maximum of only 60 days allowed, 
which is in ADDITION to Branch rides

To date NSW has over 200 bikes on the Register ranging 
from a Honda C100 through to a CBX Honda, WLA Harleys, 
Norton’s and everything “between”. Some well restored and 
beautiful, some still “everyday” riders and some that have 
needs. The slow aging of rubbers, tyres, cables and other 
parts is readily evident. Burt Munro’s tyres must still be in 
production and Lord Lucas is still running the company or so 
it seems.

With the assistance of the RMS, an inspection form ( RMS 
1504) was developed which is the accepted Ulysses pink slip, 

giving consideration for the age of the bike.  

Modifications for safety are allowed e.g. magneto in place 
of acetylene, radial rubber in place of cross ply, LED’s for 
incandescent etc.

For further information contact 

NSW: Phil Whitton #3431 – 0404 322 139 – email: whittons@
ozemail.com.au

QLD: Ross Atkinson #57470 – 0403 742 573 – email: 
rcatkinson81@bigpond.com

Victoria: Kevin White #10667 - 0419 005 549 – email: 
ulyssescps@gmail.com

WANTED

The Ulysses Club requires a North Queensland representative 
that can be both a contact for members that own historic 
bikes and a scrutineer for those living in the North of the 
State. If interested in this role, you will need to:

Have a good knowledge of Historic bikes and be able to cor-
rectly identify and confirm the information provided. A check-
list on the bike’s safety is provided to you as is a verification 
stamp that is used to stamp Queensland registration paper-
work. There would be some travel required.

If you are interested in this role, please let me know. Feel free 
to contact Ross Atkinson, the state representative for further 
clarification.

Al lan Pratt  
 
#9186 DM #21

Club Plate Scheme



RIDING ON 16

Committee Report e | mcliaison@ulysses.org.au
m | 0428 246 175

e | treasurer@ulysses.org.au
m | 0423 379 848UCARF ReportAUTUMN 2018

The following donations have been gratefully received since 
the last published recognitions in the summer 2017 edition of 
Riding On. In no particular order these most generous contri-
butions are as follows –

Mallee Branch $300.00. Northern Gateway Branch $1,352.00, 
Dubbo and Districts Branch (Wellington members) $5,000.00, 
Sale and Districts Branch $1,000.00, Tamar Tourers Branch 
$13.00, Tamar Tourers Branch $500.00, Hobart Branch 
$600.00, Gippsland Central Branch $200.00, Warnbro Sound 
Wanderers Branch $350.00, St George/Sutherland Branch 
$500.00, Woy Woy Peninsular Branch $300.00, Eastern Creek 
Branch $1,000.00, Lockyer Branch $6,170.00, Northern 
Beaches Branch $1,000.00, Macleay Valley Branch $224.93, 
Northern Gateway Branch $182.85, Westgate Wanderers 
Branch $200.00, Lake Macquarie Branch $1,000.00, Yarra 
Ranges Branch $4,000.00.  

Currently the 2017 donations to UCARF are being reviewed to 
determine the branch winners of the prestigious Jo Dearnley 
Memorial Award and the Good Joint Award.

Shields will then be engraved and trophies produced in prepa-
ration for the presentation at the upcoming AGM in Riverland, 
South Australia.  

Contributions to UCARF are sometimes a simple donation 
from branch funds.

Other times the donations are achieved by a variety of inter-
esting alternative methods and I encourage donors to inform 
us of these activities so that we can all share.

I never cease to be impressed by the unselfish generosity of 
those who support this great cause of our club.

Fleurieu Branch in South Australia raises their donations to 
UCARF by conducting an annual Poker Run. The most recent 
run started at the Alma Hotel in Willunga where 41 riders 
registered and received their first playing card. The journey 
travelled through the wine growing area of McClaren Vale 
through to Meadows where the participants received their 
second card. The journey then proceeded to Macclesfield for 
another stop and another card.  Strathalbyn was the next 
destination to receive the fourth playing card and to partake 
of sustenance from an excellent bakery. The riders then head-
ed back to Meadows along Range road down to the Willunga 
Hill which has been made famous by the Tour Down Under 
cycling event held in South Australia each year.  The final des-
tination was Aldinga Surf Life Saving Club where participants 
received their fifth card to form a poker hand.

The hands were declared and the winner announced over 
lunch overlooking the beautiful Gulf St Vincent.  

One of the plugs I often strongly push in our UCARF activities 
is that 100% of our raised funds are directed to rheuma-
toid arthritis research. A number of years ago we got rid of 
third (intermediate) parties handling our UCARF funds. We 
can guarantee that every cent of donations are directed to 
scientific research without any loss due to administration or 
any other associated consuming costs. We achieve this out-
come because we are a non-profit organisation and all work 
is voluntary. We also achieve this outcome because we have 

control of our own funds, which are deposited and accumulat-
ed into a specific UCARF account. When a sponsorship expires 
and/or sufficient funds are available we deal directly with 
the research institutions to negotiate further sponsorship of 
individual RA researchers. 

What has motivated me to raise this issue once again is the 
recent news item regarding brain cancer research. Noted 
neurosurgeon Dr Charlie Teo has quit the charity foundation 
he set up in 2003, due to his discovery that 65% of donations 
are spent on administration.

Furious that the admin expenses were so high and learning 
that there was no interest in reducing these costs, Dr Teo 
then set up a new rival foundation that is guaranteeing low 
costs of 10-15%. I have previously reported that admin costs 
are sometimes much higher in charitable organisations, which 
Dr Teo confirmed and quoted an example of 95%.

Our UCARF track record of 0% is looking good and something 
we can all be proud of.

Kim Kennerson
 # 6929 LM # 14 
UCARF Coordinator                                                       

       

       

Providing Specialist tours for
Ulysses Members since 2004
Offering unbeatable value; taking only the finest routes on
top-quality, perfectly maintained bikes. All our tours are fully 
inclusive (except souvenirs & beers!), with NO HIDDEN EXTRAS
and ALWAYS the best accommodation available from collection
at the airport until your departure. 

Please drop us a line if you'd like to know 
more about the most comprehensive (and 
most fun!) Motorcycle Tours in Thailand.

1. ANZAC Day:
Attend the Memorial Service located at
the infamous Hellfire Pass, just 70Km 
away from Kanchanaburi (and Bridge Over 
The River Kwai) on our ten-night tour.

2. Moto GP comes to Thailand!:
2a) Fully inclusive as part of our 10-day 
Isaan Loop from 3rd – 12th Oct or...
2b) Organise your own Moto-GP 
experience & we’ll happily meet up with 
you on Sunday 7th, all ride back to 
Chiang Mai over 5-days!!

www.ThaiMotorcycleTouring.Com
info@Thai-MC-Tours.com
+66 (0) 955 329 968
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RED FACES TALENT QUEST 
 

 
To Branch Secretary and all Ulysses Members 
 
As you all know the 2018 Ulysses AGM is being held at the Riverland Field Day Site in Barmera 
As part of the entertainment at this event the entertainment committee are planning a RED FACES 
talent quest on Friday 11th May between 4 – 6pm. 
We would like any interested Ulysses members who are attending the event, to nominate their act to 
the entertainment committee by filling out the nomination form below.  
 
Completed forms can be returned by:  
e-mail (suefreene@gmail.com) or post (PO Box 418, Plympton SA 5038) by Friday 16th March, 2018 
and the entertainment committee will be in touch with you to let you know more details.  
 
Be a fun part of our Riverland event and get an act / song / or other idea together. 
 
 
NAME: 
 
 

NAME OF ACT:  
  

TIME REQ’D TO 
PERFORM: 
  Mins 

BRANCH: 
 
 

TYPE OF ACT:  
 
 
 

PH: (MOBILE preferred) 
 
 

EMAIL ADDRESS: 

 
 
Thanks 
Sue Freene 
Entertainment Co-Ordinator 
 

 
 

ENTERTAINMENT COORDINATOR 
2018 Riverland AGM Event  
 
PO Box 418 
Plympton SA 5038 
 
Email: suefreene@gmail.com 
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We have  
great mates  
in UCGB.
Greetings fellow Ulyssians. I would like to share with you 
some of my experiences when in England last year. 
For some time I had been thinking about travelling to 
England to visit the town that my great grandfather left 
behind when he came to Australia in the 1850s.  
He settled at Bendigo in Victoria, as did many other new 
arrivals as that was the era of the gold rush.   
When the opportunity to travel presented in July of this 
year, I grabbed it.   
 
After spending a few days in that town in Wiltshire, I drove 
the rental car up to Nottingham to meet up with some 
Ulysses Club Great Britain (UCGB) members who I had been 
in communication with when I was the International Liaison 
on NatCom from 2010 to 2014.  Pete and Ilze Bull welcomed 
me and introduced me to their neighbours, Barry and 
Brenda Boggild.  I had already met Stephanie and Graham 
(Steve and Gray) when they were in Australia a couple of 
years ago enjoying an RV holiday. 
 
In those few days in the Nottingham area our UCGB hosts 
took me sightseeing. ‘Ye Olde Trip to Jerusalem’ pub claims 
to have been around since 1189, it serves a nice cold beer.  
Up the street from the pub is the completely expected 
statue of Robin Hood. A photo opportunity! 

Now cough. Of course, Perry upheld the finest traditions of 
growing old disgracefully, depicting Robin Hood’s medical 
examination for military service.

Another funny thing is that 
the community of Melbourne 
is just about 23km from the 
Nottingham CBD.

Umm – did I take a wrong 
turn somewhere?? 
After a few days in the 
Nottingham area I bid 
farewell to our UCGB 
friends and after being 
awarded some Club 
merchandise, I set off 
for London on the M1 
Motorway in the rental 
car.   
 
It wasn’t long before I 
was involved in a motor 

accident.  After being taken by ambulance to the Queen’s 
Medical Centre in Nottingham I was transferred to a ward 
for check-ups and observation.  It is pleasing to report that 
all the tests came back negative.  However, in my moment 
of need our UCGB friends were magnificent; the three afore 
mentioned couples came to visit and after my discharge at 
the end of day three in hospital, Pete picked me up from 
hospital and on the following day he drove me to meet up 
with Martin Lockley, the national president of UCGB.  Martin 
was able to take me to the accommodation I had booked 
near London Heathrow Airport as I was flying early next 
morning. 
 
Fair dinkum, I don’t know how I would have coped without 
our UCGB friends. In my time of need they really looked 
after me.  I would like to recommend that, if you are 
travelling to GB, see if you can time your trip so you could 
be part of one of their activities.  For instance, the 2018 
UCGB AGM Event will be held at Harrogate North Yorkshire 
in July.  If you would like to see their newsletter with the 
information, go to the ‘Home’ page of the national website 
and click on ‘Ulysses Club Great Britain – latest newsletter’.

Thanks again to our UCGB friends…

Perry Stephens #26184 DM #38
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And a good time was 
had by all
88 year old Jan Hystek was recently in New Zealand 
visiting family, and got even more good memories to bring 
home when he was invited to a Ulysses Branch meeting at 
Masterton. 

It is comforting to see some Australian exports succeeding 
overseas, as indicated by the enthusiasm displayed by this 
group of Ulyssians. 

After the formal proceedings were over, the direction of the 

meeting changed, it became a lot of fun and trivia.

We all got a sheet of paper with ten questions to answer, 
about motorcycles and New Zealand. 

It was very interesting, but needless to say I did not do well 
in the New Zealand section! 

I found it very entertaining and inspired a lot of conjecture 
and comments.

I hope to be invited again when I am next in New Zealand, 
I might bring ten questions from Australia! I wish all the 
New Zealand members safe riding for the rest of 2017 and 
throughout 2018.

Your honorary Aussie from The Country Music Capital, 
Tamworth!

Jan Hystek 30051.

This time it's on 
record!

Central Deserts Branch has turned 10 years old and to 
mark the occasion they gathered at Sporties Bar & Grill 
in Alice Springs for an evening of dinner, drinks and good 
cheer. 

Having conferred with a few of the earliest branch 
members, our president Eric Hessling gave a short 
presentation of our history.

His research concluded that the old buggers can’t 
remember what happened, but we had fun doing it!

It was certainly recorded when Eric prepared to stab 
the cake, with multiple mobile phone cameras there to 
capture the moment!

Raymond Jones #29736
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Maureen's Trike 
Adventure
In her quiet residential street on the edge of Mandurah, 
south of Perth, 73 year old Maureen Compton often hears 
the distant rumble of passing motorcycles.

Riding never appealed to her, but Maureen was fascinated 
by the trikes.

Chatting one day with a new neighbour, she revealed her 
secret ambition, to ride  on a trike.

Her neighbour, Julianne Bahr, is a member of Ulysses Club Mandurah – Murray.

A few phone calls later, fellow Ulyssean Maurice Bersan turned up on his Custom Trikes Australia trike, powered by a VW 
Type 3 1640cc engine, to help Maureen tick an item off her bucket list.

Did she enjoy it? We’ll let Mrs Compton speak for herself; “My feet still feel as if they are hovering above the ground 
somehow and as far as the inner smile,  well that  will never go away. This will stay with me for all time. Thank you for 
such wonderful kindness and a fantastic experience.”

Well done, Mandurah-Murray Branch.

All The 
Presidential Men
More than just a well composed picture, this photo traces a 
significant portion of Ulysses Club history. 

Depicting no less than of six of our previous presidents, who 
between them accounted for 22 years of leadership, it was 
rediscovered by its creator, Roger Burns, a former advertising 
coordinator for Riding On. 

Information was sought by President Jen from Rick Bedford, 

who came up with the following;  
“The photo was actually taken at Lake Macquarie at our 
Natcom Xmas party which was held at Gary Vandersluis house. 
It would have been early December in 2002 or 2003. We 
had a Natcom meeting in the morning, and then after lunch 
the former Natcom members and club employees (Wendy) 
and ex officio members Roger, The Ghost (John Miller) and 
Bob Porteous, gathered there for an evening BBQ and party. 
The photo was taken about mid afternoon with the former 
presidents and then-current president (me), lined up on the 
jetty in order of being elected to the position. 

Old #1 Stephen Dearnley 1984 - 1987, Tom Dudley 1987 - 
1994, Geoff Mayfield 1994 - 1996, Gary Vandersluis 1996 
- 1999, Ian Rawlings 1999 - 2002, and me 2002 - 2006. 
Unfortunately, Stephen, Geoff and Ian are no longer with us. 

“This was one of two Xmas parties we had at Gary’s place, 
from memory. I think it was at this one that Sam Reich 
discovered that Gary had left his liquor cabinet unlocked, and 
during the evening and night we managed to consume most 
of its contents!” 
 
This is undeniable proof that the disgraceful behaviour began 
long ago.

So did the hard work and dedication that created the Ulysses 
Club we enjoy today. 

Picture: Roger Burns
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Quick and Secure Smartphone Mounting

MOTO BUNDLE
Securely mount your  
smartphone to your  
motorcycle.

w w w. s p - c o n n e c t . c o m . a u

Ulysses 
members use 
RIDINGON at 
checkout for 

20% off
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Doug Marinclin 
NSW/ACT Zone  
 
Wow!

 I’d like to start by 
saying thank you to 
the Ulysses Club Inc 
that has established 
this award, which 
recognises the 
hard work and 
commitment given 
by the apprentices 
to complete their 
apprenticeship at 
a high level. It’s a 

benefit to the motorcycle industry and apprentices alike. 

I was born in Newtown to Croatian parents, my family grabbed 
the Aussie culture with both hands. My uncle was a mechanic 
and a big influence in my life. His ’67 Mustang and CB750 K2 
are to blame for my horsepower passion! I have one younger 

brother who also shares the passion for hot rods, bikes, 
rock`n’roll, and muscle cars. I’m showing my age here, but I 
think the “Fonze” had something to do with it too!! Yes, I ride a 
Triumph!!!!

At the age of 10, my family moved to Liverpool. Back in 1980, 
it felt like a country town!! Through high school, my passion 
for horsepower and rock `n’ roll grew. I also started servicing 
and tinkering with the family car. Under the guidance of my 
mechanic uncle of course! He is a perfectionist. I also discovered 
the electric guitar and it was all over! I was good at school 
academically but wanted to pursue a trade as well as music. As 
far as careers go, I had a bit of a dilemma. I loved mechanic 
work but family and friends were saying, “It’s just fixing other 
people’s crap”. I chose cabinet making as I loved working with 
timber and it allowed me to follow my passion for guitar as well. 
During this time, I was restoring guitars and playing in bands. 
I completed my cabinet making apprenticeship and received 
awards for all three years of TAFE. Unfortunately, the trade 
wasn’t what I had expected. The market had moved away from 
quality and was more interested in cheaper, cheaper, cheaper! 
I was also tinkering with classic cars. I had a ’65 Falcon coupe, 
later a 65 Cortina and finally, a race spec RS2000 escort. 

Once again, the standard of nominations for the 2017 Motorcycle Apprentice of the Year Award has been exceptionally high.

National Adjudicator – Graham Moore #62762 - has been extremely busy in assessing all the candidates, with interviews of 
each applicant, with each employer and with TAFE and / or industry teachers.

Supercheap Auto have again Sponsored each of the Zone Winners with Supercheap Auto Gift Card to the value of $1000 each.  
These will enable each of the Zone winners to add to their “tools of trade” with quality items from the Supercheap Auto range.

Congratulations to each of the Zone Winners – all of whom are worthy recipients of the Supercheap Auto Zone Award.   

 

Ulysses Club inc gratefully acknowledges Supercheap Auto for their continued generous sponsorship of these valued MAOTY 
Awards.               

Ulysses Club Motorcycle  
Apprentice of The Year 2017 

Qld/NT Zone 
Michael Morgan – Morgan Motors, Emerald. QLD. -Motor Trades Automotive Institute. 

NSW/ACT Zone 
Douglas Marinclin – Procycles, St Peters, Sydney. NSW-  NSW Ultimo TAFE Sydney.

Vic/ Tas Zone 
Max Draper - Callaway Performance, Torrumbarry. VIC.- Kangan  Institute of TAFE 

WA/ SA Zone 
Kurt Grenfell – South West Yamaha, Bunbury .WA .- South Metro TAFE. Perth. 
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At the age of 30, I was overdue for a career change. At that 
time, I met my now wife. We got married, bought a house 
and a year later we had our first child, a beautiful cheeky boy! 
No chance to change careers, we were blessed with three 
children within five years. This created financial pressure, I 
was chasing jobs to earn more in order to support my family. 
At this point, my beloved RS2000 had to go, in order to pay 
for my son’s dental work!  

I was also diagnosed with major depression, anxiety and 
PTSD at 30 years of age. Arising from childhood trauma and 
domestic violence, this was a rollercoaster ride of diagnosis, 
misdiagnosis, and many varying treatments and medications. 
Doctors were saying I may not work again. I had gone from a 
successful career of 16 years with the same company to barely 
holding down a job. At times I was ashamed to go home. 
I had spent so long looking after my family and had been 
neglecting myself. Four and half years ago, I admitted myself 
into hospital where I spent four weeks. I was also diagnosed 
with ADHD. The most important lesson I learnt was that I had 
to look after myself first, then I would be able to look after 
my family. It’s like the safety video in an airplane. You must 
first place the oxygen mask on yourself, then assist the people 
around you.

 I decided to make my passion my career. It was the only way 
I could see myself re-entering the work force. I was told by 
some people that I was crazy to do an apprenticeship at 43. I 
told them I still had 25 years till retirement and would be crazy 
not to make the change! A month after I came out of hospital, 
I applied for a few jobs and was told I was overqualified 
and couldn’t get a go. A week later I applied for my current 
position at Procycles. I waited a few days and called them to 
follow up. I was told it would be a risky move for them as a 
lot of mature age apprentices don’t work out. I emailed them 
some photos of my cars as well as photos of guitars I had 

made. I followed up with more phone calls and was finally 
called in for an interview. 

I got the job! Funnily enough, Procycles is down the road from 
where I originally grew up. 4 years on and I am fully qualified, 
happy and healthier than I’ve ever been. We also managed 
to have a fourth child, a cute boy to keep us even more busy! 
Amongst his first few words were “helmet” and “bike”.

I have to say a big thank you to Procycles owner Anthony 
Katter, for taking the chance and giving me the opportunity. 
Also, many thanks to Marcel Cross and Scott Norman our 
workshop manager for the ongoing support and training.

Last but not least, thanks to the teachers at TAFE NSW, 
Michael, Karl and Paul who love what they do and go above 
and beyond to help us learn. Their dedication certainly is an 
asset to our industry.

 Moving forward, I would like to continue with further training 
and pursue the BMW Master Tech qualification. There’s also 
some custom bike work on the cards as well as a new shed 
with more tools!!!!! Maybe some more guitars……But no 
babies!

While my story is long, I have shared it with you to show 
others, who may be suffering from similar issues, that there is 
always a way out, a way forward. You need not suffer alone. 
Reach out. I kept my illness a secret for 15 years and it nearly 
cost me everything. Now that I have opened up about it, 
others have come back to me talking about their illness and 
suffering. They have gone on to seek help themselves.

Many thanks.

Keep riding and stay safe!

 

Max Draper 
Vic/ Tas Zone

18/4/1995

Max was born in 
Melbourne and 
moved to Echuca 
Victoria with his 
parents Paul and 
Andrea, and brother 
Mitch, in 2005 when 
he was 10 years old.  

He attended 
Moama Gramma 
School where he 

completed Year 11.  On leaving school Max started a pre 
apprenticeship in certificate 2 in automotive studies, this led to 
short stints with various auto workshops until he secured an 
apprenticeship with Callaway Performance Developments at 
Torrumbarry. 

Max completed his 1st year at TAFE in Echuca and 
subsequently travelled to Melbourne to continue and complete 
at Kangan in Docklands.

Max loves living in the country and enjoys all the benefits that 
easy access to the bush provides, motorcycle riding, camping, 
water skiing. He is always working on someone’s vehicle or 
boat.

Max likes to use the chassis dyno and engine reconditioning 
equipment where he is honing (pun intended) his machine 
shop skills. He has completed work ranging from simple 
services & dyno tuning through to engine machining, 
rebuilding of engines and full bike restorations.

He intends to stay in the industry, hoping ultimately to own 
and operate his own business. 

Max acknowledges the support of his parents, Paul & Andrea. 
Callaway Performance, Greg & Vicki Callaway and Ulysses, 
with special thanks to Helena who suggested his application 
after visiting the workshop, and all the members of Echuca 
Ulysses for their support.



RIDING ON 24

Kurt Grenfell 
WA/ SA Zone

Acknowledging 
apprentices for high 
achievements is very 
important as it not 
only credits them for 
their achievements 
but also gives other 
apprentices a goal to 
aspire to.

I would like to 
personally thank Alan 
Stone , our head tech 

at South West Yamaha for his efforts and knowledge , he has 
been instrumental to Kurt’s learning in the motorcycle industry 
and without Alan we would not have achieved such greatness 
with Kurt.

Kurt started with us in late 2013 as a TA with the goal to start 
his apprenticeship the following year. As it turned out, being 
a new business had its difficulties and we weren’t able to put 
Kurt on as an apprentice until 2015. He remained as a TA for 
one year, we feel this gave him a good leg up as a first year 
apprentice as he had a good insight into the trade before 
starting his time.

Kurt grew up locally here in the SW of WA, first in Bunbury 

before moving to Capel .

He lived with his mum and stepdad, remaining close with his 
dad, a friendship that is as strong as ever today. Kurt is an 
only child, he has a group of very close long term friends, one 
in particular has become a motorcycle mechanic also . 

Kurt stayed at school completing year 12 attending Newton 
Moore Senior High.

He graduated with honors in 2011, with sport and math being 
his strong subjects.

He worked with a local freight company before gaining some 
part time work in the motorcycle industry, an industry that he 
had always wanted to be part of.

Once into the industry, Kurt quickly settled in cementing his 
spot in our workshop, learning to change tyres and basic 
servicing whilst still working as a TA.

One of his pastimes is of course motorcycle riding , Kurt owns 
no less than five Yamahas. All in different disciplines of the 
sport, from road bikes to dirt bikes and even a fun bike for 
entertainment with his mates 

It didn’t take long for Kurt to shine as an apprentice, being 
nominated for apprentice of the year in his first year with the 
ATC (Apprentice and Traineeship Company). making the final 
cut but not taking out the award.

Michael Morgan 
Qld/NT Zone

I was recently 
delighted to learn 
that I’ve been 
chosen as the 
regional winner 
for Ulysses QLD 
and NT Motorcycle  
Apprentice Of The 
Year.

I currently live in 
Emerald QLD and 
have been here 

my whole life, I work in our family business “Morgan Motors” 
with my parents and sister and have done so on and off from 
a young age. The business was started in 1999 and is owned 
by my parents Dean and Michelle Morgan. The dealership has 
been proudly selling and repairing Hondas since the doors 
opened. 

From a young age I have always found myself interested 
in “tinkering’ with things and I am probably best known for 
not being able to leave well enough alone. My hobbies have 
typically revolved around this with project cars and bikes 
taking up a lot of time and money, much to my girlfriend’s 
disgust! My other interests include a burning desire to go 
fishing! 

Since completing Grade 12 here in Emerald I have completed 
my CERT III in Automotive Mechanical Technology (heavy 

vehicle) and since starting at Morgan Motors am now in my 
4th year of a CERT III in Motorcycle Mechanical Technology. 
I have also completed multiple levels of training within the 
Honda franchise which I have found extremely helpful in my 
transition from fixing trucks to fixing motorbikes!

The majority of motorcycle needs in our region has always 
been for agricultural applications. This has led to most of 
my experience being based around ATV, Ag bikes and SXS 
buggies. I also have exposure to Honda Marine, Honda 
Power Equipment and Husqvarna Power Equipment. Having  
agricultural customers means we do see quite a few rough 
and poorly maintained bikes. Lucky for me that I enjoy engine 
rebuilds and solving complex electrical/mechanical faults as I 
find a lot of satisfaction in fixing things others can’t! 

My motorcycle apprenticeship training has been with MTAQ 
and my trainer has been Peter Jaensch. I’d like to thank Peter 
as he has been an extremely good trainer and I have enjoyed 
learning lots of new things with him. Peter has also nominated 
me for apprentice of the month within MTAQ which I won for 
February last year.

In the near future I aspire to have my own apprentice to 
whom I can pass on some of the knowledge I have gained 
in the industry. A major goal that both myself and my sister 
Caroline have as time goes on is to take over from our parents 
in running the family business. 

I would like to proudly thank the Ulysses Club Inc for this 
opportunity and for the recognition of my efforts. I would also 
like to thank my family for their support. 
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He was again nominated in his second year, this time winning 
the TAFE and ATC awards. Our office is full of his plaques and 
certificates. 

In Kurt’s third year he again took out the TAFE award for 
Motorcycle Mechanics, the ATC only running their awards 
every second year. 

He also was nominated for the World Skills awards for 
motorcycle mechanics in his third year, this being a 
competition run by the TAFE lecturers. With five tasks put to 
the top students in that year, Kurt placed third, being awarded 
a certificate and a medal for his results. 

At the end of his third year Kurt was contacted by the Ulysses 
Motorcycle Club Inc and was interviewed for its Motorcycle 
Apprentice Of The Year award. After being vigorously tested 
over the phone by Graham Moore, he has been acknowledged 
as the winner of this prestigious award for Western Australia 
and South Australia.

Kurt now starts his fourth year of his apprenticeship and 
we know he will complete his time at the end of this year. 
We hope Kurt stays on with South West Yamaha for some 
time, though we know one day he will move on into his next 
adventure in this industry.

Kurt would like to eventually further himself by becoming a 
mechanic with the Moto GP or Superbike championships or 
even with in a factory race team in the sport of Moto Cross, 
a goal that we feel is completely achievable by a young man 
with such a promising start to his career.

He was lucky enough to work with one of the leading riders 
and his mechanic when we hosted AJ Catanzaro the American 
supercross racer and Jeremiah Ellis ( his mechanic ) last year 
at the prestigious Manjimup 15000 Moto Cross event.

Kurt learned a lot about bike setup and race prep when 
working with these two over the two weeks they were in 
Australia.

Kurt would like to take this opportunity to thank his parents 
for their support, his employers for the opportunity to 
complete his apprenticeship in an industry that he is so 
passionate about. Also to Alan Stone for being such a great 
role model in the workshop and sharing his vast knowledge 
with hi. Jason Hoesle his TAFE lecturer, the Apprentice and 
Traineeship Company, Andrew White being his field officer, 
always supporting Kurt throughout his apprenticeship.

Last but not least the Ulysses Club Inc for its awar , Kurt has 
had a lot of success in his time as an apprentice motorcycle 
mechanic, but holds this award as important as any of the 
others. He feels very privileged to not only be nominated but 
also to win it for his zone.

With Thanks 

Jeremy Bennett re Kurt Grenfell

$7690 - 18 Days
$6990 - 20 Days
$3990 - 15 Days

$8890 - 19 Days 
$9190 - 19 Days     
$8590 - 19 Days

30 YEARS OF ORGANISING TOURS
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Quite a few people have asked us “What was the best part 
of your trip to the USA?” It is so hard to pick a “best bit”. We 
saw and did so much in three weeks.

We arrived in LA after 22 hours travel time, so were exhaust-
ed by the time we arrived at the hotel, but we dropped our 
bags and grabbed a cab to Eagle Rider to pick up our bike. 
Unfortunately, the Goldwing I had ordered was not available, 
so they offered us a brand-new Harley. The manager had 
one coming back from a tour that afternoon, so we spent the 
rest of the day cruising around the local area on the Harley. I 
don’t want to put down Harleys but I found it did not suit my 
riding style. In the LA suburbs every intersection that doesn’t 
have traffic lights has a stop sign on all four corners, so it is a 
constant stop start, I was very happy to pick up the Goldwing 
later in the afternoon.

We spent the next couple of days in LA cruising along the 
beaches, through Hollywood and Beverley Hills. Venice Beach 
was amazing, packed with the iconic things that it is famous 
for. Street art, skateboarders, body builders and a passing 
stream of people meant that there was always something to 
look at. The hills above Hollywood are packed with mansions 
perched above each other on the side of the steep hills. 
Beverley Hills was equally as impressive with most of the 
home’s massive gardens being tended by gardeners. In sharp 
contrast, a few streets away, there were small communities of 
homeless people sheltering under the overpasses. We enjoyed 
our time in LA and found the people very friendly and cour-
teous on the roads, often moving over to allow the Goldwing 
space to ride between the cars.

Our next destination was Las Vegas and it was good to get 

out on the 5-lane 
concrete highway 
and away from the 
city traffic. The 
speed limit was 
70mph with most 
travellers sitting 
about 10mph over 
this. We saw very 
few police on the road. They were mainly parked at road-
works or in the small towns off the highway, that relied on 
food and fuel stops to survive.  Some of those were on the old 
Route 66 and still had the old diners and cafes which looked 
like they were right out of (or still in) the 50’s. 

As we approached Las Vegas you could see the huge buildings 
rising up before us, a stark contrast to the desert before that 
seemed to be devoid of all life. At least the Nullarbor has a 
few trees and shrubs and the occasional roadkill. It was soon 
apparent of the extravagance and that no expense has been 
spared to make everything bigger and better than anywhere 
else in the world. At the first overpass there is even a phone 
tower cleverly disguised as a palm tree. The first impression 
as you ride down “The Strip” is one of utter amazement. With 
the extravagance of gold clad buildings, Egyptian Pyramids, 
Olympic pool sized fountains and even a mini New York 
complete with the Statue of Liberty and a roller coaster that 
starts on the roof and goes through the wall into the building 
below. Caesars Palace has a shopping arcade resembling a 
Roman village with cobblestone roads and the roof painted to 
look like a Summer sky, complete with soft fluffy clouds, The 
Venetian has canals going through it with Gondoliers singing 
opera….. just incredible.

chris and 

dianna  

cross  

the USA
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At the other end 
of town is the 
older Fremont 
St with a huge 
overhead LCD 
screen hundreds 
of metres long as 
the roof with zip 
lines running un-
derneath for the 
brave tourists to 
fly like Superman 
over the crowds. 
It was very pleas-
ant wandering 
along the street 
where there was 

a New Year’s Eve atmosphere with many of the revellers 
drinking cocktails out of plastic mugs shaped like a boot. It 
was a very warm night – still over 100 degrees Fahrenheit at 
midnight.  

Next morning, we were back on the road again with the first 
stop being the spectacular Hoover Dam. This dam was so 
important to the local area it was protected by gun emplace-
ments in WW2 and they even considered building a decoy 
dam in the area. The stone emplacements must have been 
intolerably hot as the temperature there was 117 degrees F 
(about 47 degrees C in our language—bloody hot in anyone’s 
language) while we were there.

We arrived at Williams in the mid afternoon and were very 
taken with the main street that was lined with diners, café’s 
and memorabilia stores all in keeping with the Route 66 
theme. That night we dined on jalapeno poppers and burgers 
in the courtyard while listening to a local Indian guitarist (the 
kind with feathers, not a turban) singing rock & roll songs. 
What an excellent night.

We were off early to the Grand Canyon Heliport for a flight 
over the stunning Grand Canyon. We paid the extra $100 (on 
top of the $A800) to both sit in the front of the helicopter 
and it was well worth it for this once in a lifetime experi-
ence. Our pilot was excellent with a smooth take off and she 
had an exceptional knowledge of the Canyon’s history and 
surrounding areas. We sped along a few hundred metres 
above the forests surrounding the Canyon before flying over 
the edge and into the amazing Canyon. I was expecting a 
massive canyon but nothing like the spectacle that lay before 
us. The Canyon is 446km long and 16-29 km wide with the 
Colorado River winding its way down the centre. There were 
several groups of people on rafts that were dwarfed by the 
size of the canyon. 

After the flight we cruised along the road next to the canyon 
& saw an enormous Elk enjoying his lunch before casually 
strolling across the road to join his friend.

We headed off early the next morning to try to beat the heat 
and took the exit off the highway to Seligman to ride some 
of the Route 66 and avoid bridge works on the highway. 
Seligman is like most towns along the old Route 66 with the 
diners and cafés doubling as museums with great displays 
of old cars, bikes and relics from days gone by. Route 66 

was a great road to cruise down, long sweeping bends and 
straights that went on for miles. There was almost no traffic 
which meant you could do freeway speeds but still admire 
the scenery.

We spent the night in Las Vegas and were again lured by the 
bright lights to marvel at the fountains and overall extrava-
gance of the casino’s.

The next couple of days were spent travelling to San Fran-
cisco with an overnight stop at Bakersfield. The scenery was 
mainly market gardens, but on a scale we never imagined 
possible. Strawberry farms stretched as far as the eye could 
see in both directions. The roadside dotted with old school 
buses filled with fruit pickers and towing trailers carrying 
portaloos. Another thing I found amazing, dotted throughout 
the market gardens were “nodding donkey” oil wells, which I 
imagined would only be in Texas. We both thought it unusual 
that a State like California that is so big on environmental 
issues would have oil wells in market gardens, gazetted wet-
land areas and dozens of oil rigs just off pristine shores.

The final section of highway into San Francisco rose up into 
the mountains and the temperature dropped dramatically. We 
were soon riding above the clouds that obscured the valley 

below. After we checked into the hotel we headed down to 
Pier 39 for a delicious famous clam chowder served in a sour 
dough bread bowl. We were drawn to the far side of the 
jetty by the barking sounds of seals and were delighted to 
see around 20 pontoons covered in seals jostling for the best 
position. New comer seals were discouraged from climbing 
aboard by the larger seals barking in their face & pushing 
them off with their chest.

Before heading back to the hotel, we rode over the Bay 
Bridge, stopping off at Treasure Island which is home to a US 
Naval base. At the lookout there was a family of Raccoons 
with the mother doing her best to keep the babies away from 
tourists feeding them a variety of junk food.
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The streets of San Francisco are famous for their steep hills 
and street cars and we encountered both while riding around 
town. We were hoping to travel down the Pacific Coast Hwy 
but due to bushfires followed by heavy rains, the highway 
had been cut by massive landslides, some of which will take 
another 12 months to clear away. We took a detour through 
an army training camp across to the coast. The winding road 
through the mountains were quite narrow and had no guard 
rails, so you had to concentrate on the road. The hairpin 
bends were reminiscent of those in the Swiss Alps. Just before 
Santa Barbara, we saw a pod of about 20 whales frolicking 
close to the shore. 

The lure of ice-cream drew us to the famous Malibu Beach. 
After waiting 10 minutes for a parking spot, we strolled along 
the footpath towards the Malibu pier stopping to admire a 
half metre high marijuana plant growing next to the street 
palms. The pier offered great views of the houses on stilts 
right on the beach and the mansions in the hills above which 
had amazing views over the ocean. We spent that night in LA 
before flying to New York early the next morning. 

We picked up our bike for the next 4 days, a Honda CBR 500, 
it seemed very small after the Goldwing but turned out to be 
a perfect commuter for the 6 kms between our hotel and the 
centre of New York.

We hired pushbikes to ride around Central Park in the middle 
of the city. It was great to see the New York people making 
good use of the park with business people eating their lunch, 
girls sunbathing and 3 baseball games in full swing. We also 
saw a wedding, street performers and people rowing on the 
lake. So much was happening at every turn. Next stop was the 
lookout on the 102nd floor of the Empire State Building, which 
was filled with visitors from all over the world. Apart from the 

buildings, 
rivers and 
bridges, 
we saw 
rooftop 
parties, a 
yoga class 
of over 
50 people 
in a park, 
helicopters 
flying be-
low us and 
swarms 
of people 
scurrying 
along the 
street like 
little ants.

We arrived 
at Times 
Square 

with time to stroll up and down the path marvelling at the 
huge electronic billboards. By the time we ordered our NY 
pizza from a street vendor the crowds had swelled to fill the 
entire footpath and we changed from watching the lights to 
watching a steady stream of people dressed (and undressed) 
as cartoon characters and some with only painted on Ameri-

can flags as clothing. 

The next morning the pace slowed a little with a leisurely ferry 
ride out to the Statue of Liberty. The detail captured in the 
beaten copper surface is incredible. The entire inner skeleton 
has been replaced with stainless steel after the original iron 
framework suffered badly from corrosion. The museum inside 
the pedestal was very interesting with the wooden formwork 
and some of the copper skin displayed. The big toe itself 
is almost 2 metres high. We climbed the 215 stairs to the 
pedestal observation deck to admire the magnificent views of 
the harbour. After we got off the ferry we took a short ride to 
the 911 Memorial park. The ponds are quite plain but beautiful 
and the whole area is such a serene memorial to the thou-
sands that lost their lives. That night we took in the Broadway 
show Bandstand. The theatre was packed with the upper-class 
sipping on champagne cocktails, so we felt a little out of place 
with our hiking boots and helmets. When the show finished, 
we joined the throng of people inching slowly to Times Square 
for an after-show drink. We settled on Planet Hollywood on 
45th St.

For our final full day in New York we decided to ride over 
Brooklyn Bridge which was packed with walkers and joggers 
using the elevated walkways that gave stunning views of the 
city. We boarded the ferry for a relaxing cruise up and down 
the Hudson River before we ended the day at Gantry Plaza 
Park to watch the sun go down behind the city as we sat eat-
ing dinner and drinking a delicious grapefruit beer or two with 
the locals. New York has a surprisingly large number of parks 
with an incredible amount of seating. It really encourages 
people to go out and enjoy life in the great outdoors.

Before flying out to LA later the next day, we had one last 
thing on our list to see - Grand Central Station. The archi-
tecture is amazing, and it is surprising to find out that it was 
earmarked to be demolished in the 60’s.

We arrived back in LA & booked another Goldwing from Eagle 
Rider for the next 2 days & took a ride up to the Hollywood 
sign. We did a tour of Warner Bros Studios after that which 
was very interesting. Later in the day we decided to head 
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south and check out the beaches down there. We found a 
great little pub for dinner and watched the sun set over the 
Pacific Ocean.

Our last day in the US was spent further south visiting 
Long Beach. We took the bike back and headed off to 
the airport. What an amazing holiday we had. The bike, 
distances & places to visit we planned were all perfect. 
One piece of advice is to book tours to popular attractions 
online. You get to jump queues and some attractions get 
booked out months in advance for instance, if you want to 
get to the crown of the Statue of Liberty you need to book 
5 months in advance!!

 I can’t say enough about Eagle Rider in L.A. They chose 
& booked all our accommodation in California, Nevada & 
Arizona, & they were all good hotels, at a great price. Their 
bikes were all clean & reliable & never missed a beat. The 
bike & 14 days accommodation out of L.A. cost $A5,500, 
including upgraded accommodation, upgraded insurance 
& state taxes & fees. We would love to go back & do some 
more touring one day.

 Chris & Dianna Glover #25012 & #31050



Good Evan’s Epic Expedition 
 
Tuesday 31st Oct 2017

Finally, the wait was over for the chosen few that would make 
the epic journey that was about to begin.

At exactly 9am (give or take 20mins), nine brave souls met at 
Macquarie Park, Windsor.

Our Illustrious leader David “Good” Evans, Trumpy Dave, 
Occidental Dave, Ranger Pete, Yoda Joe and brother Mark, 
‘Later’ Ron and mate Warren, and TEC Jeff Gamble, all were 
to be lead up the garden path, better known as the Putty 
Road, to the Grey Gums café. Two blow ins, Concord Tom and 
Richmond Ross escorted us here to ensure we did in fact leave 
the city.

After mortgaging our homes to pay for breakfast 
we farewelled Ross and Tom as we continued our quest for 
greatness and set forth for Singleton. Well a small breakaway 
group couldn’t contain their excitement as they darted off 
into the distance to ride the Putty. We made MacDonalds 

at Singleton at 12.30pm. Those without tastebuds chose to 
eat, those with tastebuds intact opted for coffee. With our 
sights now set on the country music capital of Tamworth, we 
screamed up the New England Hwy at a respectful 80kph, to 
the frustration of other motorists.

Wests Tamworth was chosen for the evening meal, before 
returning to our motel for the evening. Here, Yoda told us 
some bedtime stories. He said they were jokes but with 
everyone nodding off I could tell otherwise. The fights soon 
began as to who was sharing a room with who, except for Jeff 
and Pete as ‘they’ had their own room.

Wed 1st Nov 2017

With a 9am start most were up and out by 7am. I believe this 
was due to the fact that breakfast was included in our room 
cost. This allowed us to get an early start as we headed to 
Armidale. Stopping at Moonbi Hill lookout we negotiated the 
160 or so stairs for spectacular views over the Peel Valley. 

Continuing towards Armidale a short morning tea break was 
had, before hitting Dorrigo for a pie and coffee for lunch.
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There are numerous waterfalls along the way and I’m sure we stopped 
at them all. A slight detour after lunch took us to Dangar Falls. We 
stopped to look at a big hole in the ground a short time later, possibly 
caused by a meteor or a glacier. On reading the information board we 
actually discovered it was a waterfall  (Wollomombi Falls). We found 
another waterfall further up the road (Ebor F   alls) which is quite 
picturesque. I’m beginning to understand why this section of road is 
called “Waterfall Way”. 

Setting the GPS for Nambucca Heads the roads and scenery here are 
spectacular. On a motorcycle it doesn’t get much better than this.

Arriving at our motel we decided a bbq was a good idea, along with a 
few beers and a glass or two of red. What a great day to end a most 
enjoyable days riding. The 3 Daves who lost the fight the night before 
again shared a room whilst Jeff and Peter had their “own” room.... la de 
da.

Thurs 2nd Nov 2017

With all the bikes packed we set off for Macksville, totally disgusted 
that our $25 room cost didn’t include a cooked breakfast. After 
commandeering a small café and admiring the views of Macksville we 
headed south down the Pacific Highway to the Wauchope turn off. 
Three riders thought it would be a good idea to head off in front of the 
rest (two Harleys and one amazing Chinese sports tourer superbike 
CFMoto). On approaching the Wauchope turn over the river to the left 
the cumbersome Harleys couldn’t manage the 90 degree corner so we 
opted to continue straight ahead. Beautiful roads followed though they 
seemed to be getting narrower. About 25kms later we asked if we were 
heading to Wauchope only to be told we missed the turn off by about 
20kms and we were headed for a dirt track that led to the mountains. 
Oops!!

We turned around and headed back to Wauchope. Unsure 
now where our colleagues were we turned right on the Oxley 
Highway to Walcha, stopping at Timbertown to locate our lost 
companions to no avail. We figured it best to ride to the next 
town for lunch and fuel. There are NO bloody towns between 
Wauchope and Walcha. Or petrol stations.

What we did have however was the majestic Oxley 
Highway, 6978 corners (approx.) of what has to be the best 
motorcycling road in NSW. On entering the straights of the 
Enfield State Forest I had an incident with a small brush 
wallaby that took a close look at the front wheel of my bike, 
fortunately I stayed upright and the wallaby hopped off into 
the bush probably more scared than I was.  With the Harleys 
struggling to keep up with the CFMoto superbike we arrived in 
Walcha at 1.30pm. Fuel, lunch at the pub and a beer or two, 
then we located our motel for the evening and booked in. 

Our lost companions pulled in 
at 3.40pm 

after their lunch in Wauchope and visiting the Aspley Falls.

Some chose dinner at the pub while others opted for bbq 
chicken and beer at the motel, followed by a beer and some 
red wine. An early evening was had for an early start the 
following day.

The three Daves again shared the same room and had to fight 
over two sachets of coffee. Bloody Jeff and Peter didn’t have 
that problem as they had their own room, miserable bastards.

Fri 3rd Nov 2017

A very early start as we headed for home via Gloucester 
and Thunderbolts way. Every ounce of awareness and 
concentration is required to ride this road, with a pea soup 
fog slowing us down for the first hour or so. We safely made 
Gloucestor  for breakfast around 9.30am and had the best 
bacon and egg rolls in town.

Later Ron and Warren left us here and headed home via 
The Hunter valley, probably for some more red.

The remaining magnificent seven headed for the Pacific 
Highway at Heatherbrae and onto the Wyong service 
centre for re-hydration and to say goodbye. We parted 
company at 1.15pm and headed for our respective homes.

A truly wonderful four days of great company, wonderful 
roads and spectacular scenery; our thanks go to David 
“Good” Evans for his hard work and organisation. We all 
look forward to the next adventure.

David Schoer #64785
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The smallest parts of countries tend to be special. England’s 
smallest county, Rutland, has the motto “Multum in Parvo” 
(Much in Little) and has a distinctiveness that attracts tourists. 
In Saarland, Germany’s smallest state, you will see car stickers 
proclaiming “Großes entsteht immer im Kleinen” (Large things 
always arise in small things). This compact state is the home of 
Ulysses Club Germany, the host club of the 2017 International 
Gathering held over the Pentecost holiday weekend in early 
June this year.

Saarland’s central location makes it ideally suited for such a 
meeting. Bounded by France, Luxembourg and the large 
German state of Rhineland Palatinate, Saarland provides a good 
base for visiting the Vosges, the Mosel, the Rhine and the hilly 
Eifel and Hunsruck regions. If you ask one of the club members 
how long it takes to ride to any interesting tourist spots in these 
areas you will receive the reply “About one and a half hours.” 
Saarland itself provides much of interest to see; the forested 
hills are riddled with empty roads that are ideal for motorbike 
trips. 

On the Friday evening visiting riders from Ulysses clubs in Great 
Britain, France, Switzerland, Norway and Australia started to 
congregate in the Schutzenhaus (“shooting house”) bar and 
restaurant in the countryside just outside Eppelborn. Proprietors 
Anne and Stefan had worked hard to set out marquees, tables 
and an outside bar to cater for the gathering crowd. With typical 
German efficiency tickets were on sale for drinks and food and 

the serving staff worked hard to ensure that members’ glasses 
were filled with local beer and wine. We were warmly welcomed 
by our German hosts and it was good to meet up with friends 
from previous years and get to know new faces from the various 
countries. In all more than 100 members attended the event 
and we counted at least 70 bikes.

At 10am on the Saturday the local petrol station (the “OIL 
Tankstelle”) provided the meeting place for the group rides. 
Armed with coloured ribbons riders located their group leaders 
amongst the growing mass of motorbikes. Although, as might be 
expected in this country, BMW GSs seemed to dominate, there 
was a ride range of marques, models and ages of bikes on show 
to engage members in earnest discussion and tyre-kicking. Ride 
leaders set off with their multinational groups, proud to take 
us on a tour that showed off the best of Saarland’s roads and 
viewpoints. The organisation was impeccable and the various 
groups were able to meet up at various locations including the 
lunch stop at Saarschleife, a lofty viewpoint that provided a 
stunning vista over a huge meander in the River Saar. The roads 
were traffic-free and a pleasure to ride on, the villages were 
quaint and a glimpse into gardens would reveal the tripods of 
the “Schwenker” swinging barbecues, a well-known feature of 
this small state.

The Schutzenhaus was packed on the Saturday evening and the 
crowd was treated to a performance from “The Ipcress Project”, 
a talented band led by club member Christoph. We enjoyed 

2017 International Gathering  
of Ulysses Clubs: Eppelborn, Germany



R I D I N G  O N  33

classic rock and blues sounds from the 60s and 70s 
including, of course, Cream’s “Tales of Brave Ulysses”. 
Multi-lingual speeches by Gernot Mining, president of the 
German Ulysses Club emphasised the strong feeling of 
community offered by such a meeting. The German club 
had even organised a weekend of warm summer weather 
which allowed us to sit outside into the late night. 

Sunday’s ride took us into the beautiful Hunsruck-Hochwald 
national park part of which is in the neighbouring state, 
Rhineland Palatinate (about one and a half hours from 
Eppelborn!). There was some fabulous riding through 
forested hills and the stop at a skiing centre provided an 
assembly point for an impressive array of bikes in the 
huge car park. Even though this was a holiday weekend, 
the roads were empty enough for the riders to enjoy the 
sweeping bends and the beautiful views.

A final evening at the Schutzenhaus provided members 
to share plans for their journeys on the Monday. While 
some would be starting the often long ride home, others 
had plans to ride the Nurburgring, which is only about one 
and a half hours away, or extend their holiday with a trip 
to the Italian Lakes and Austria. Farewells were said and 
members left with an overwhelming feeling of warmth and 
friendship that resulted from this wonderful opportunity 
for Ulysses members to get together. We are so grateful 
to Gernot and the members of the Ulysses club for 
hosting and organising such a successful weekend and for 
offering such a warm and genuine welcome to the visiting 
Ulysseans. Saarland may be a small state but it has a big 
heart! 

Pete Bull (“Twoshedspete”),  
Ulysses Club Great Britain.
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A motorcycle tour through Bhutan, organised by Mike 
and Denise Ferris of ‘Ferris Wheels’ fame, had been in 
my sights for several years. Speaking with them at the 

Ulysses AGM in Launceston I found out the next such tour was 
scheduled for March 2017.

Riding home from Launceston on my old 1940 Harley out-
fit, I decided it had to be now or never, as my big ‘Eight-Oh’ 
birthday was looming large on the horizon. So I was the first 
to register, just after my birthday. Ferris Wheels had been 
re-launched as World On Wheels and the tour had been 
re-titled the Thunder Dragon tour, it would be a joint venture 
in cooperation with Australian Road Rider magazine, but the 
fundamental structure of the tour remained the same.

Arriving in Kath-
mandu on March 
6th I soon met up 
with the other 
participants. There 
were three pillions 
and fourteen riders 
including the leader 
Mike Ferris and the 
newly-appointed 
editor of ARR, Greg 
Leech. We had two 
days checking out 
Kathmandu and 
getting to know 
one another. There 
were two backup 
vehicles, a small 
truck with tools and 
bike spares and a 
minibus with our 
luggage.

On a very soggy 
day, dressed in all 
our wet weather 
gear looking like 
spacemen, we 
prepared to board 
our respective 
spaceships. These 
spaceships were 
actually rather 
antiquated 500cc 
Royal Enfields, still 
being produced 
in India to their 
1950’s design 

specs. Fortunately, the gearbox and rear brakes had recently 
been relocated to the correct sides of the bike – by modern 
convention at least.

An ignominious start for me. Five minutes after leaving the ho-
tel, a young girl on a push bike cut across my front wheel on 
a slippery downhill, causing me to notch up the first spill. The 
rest of the day I stayed upright despite the horrendous traffic 
around Kathmandu, and we arrived at our resort in Pokhara at 
5:00pm. A rest day here gave us the chance to go paragliding 
from a nearby hill, giving spectacular views as we glided into a 
valley with the large lake Phewa below us, weather perfect.

The next day’s destination was Lumbini, the birthplace of Lord 
Buddha. Our start was delayed due to a sudden petrol strike, 
but Mike’s local partner Amar convinced the gas station propri-
etor to be kind to the tourists and he opened up specially for 
us! Wonderful people, the Nepalese. The combination of bad 
roads and continuous rain provided a steep learning curve for 
me, as cross-country riding was not my forte.

Our longest day of 320k took us to the town of Biratnagar 
near the border. Once again Mike and Amar had organised for 
us to get emergency fuel which was just as well, as we saw 
long queues of vehicles lining up outside gas stations. The 
Hindu Festival of Colours ‘Holi’ was in full swing, where the 
locals cover each other in colourful powders. We stopped to 
observe the music and dancing and within minutes we were 
covered in colours. When we got to the border, no-one at Im-
migration even batted an eyelid at the 17 foreigners covered 
from head to toe in yellows and reds and purples.

The first thing I noticed after crossing the border into India 
were the better roads and less traffic. The ride up to the local 
capital of Darjeeling passed through numerous tea plantations 
spreading up the side of the hill, on a very narrow road full of 
hairpins. Magazine editor Leech had us riding in formation for 
an amazing photo opportunity showing the hilly landscape and 
winding roads.

We stayed at the wonderful Cedar Inn at the very top of the 
town, with magnificent views looking down across the whole 
town and valley. We had a rest day to explore the Darjeeling 
Zoo and the Himalayan Mountaineering Institute, founded by 
Tenzing Norgay after he had climbed Mt Everest in 1953 with 
Edmund Hillary.

Interestingly, World On Wheels utilises the same corner-man 
system as is popular within the Ulysses Club, where the rider 
immediately behind the leader is designated to stay and mark 
a corner until Tail-End Charlie comes along. Interestingly, it 
often goes wrong because the chain is only as strong as the 
individual links. And so it was that several of us missed a vital 
left turn which led to the border into Bhutan. Fortunately, one 
of them/us was Chris, who had already been involved in one 
or two corner misunderstandings and had developed a ‘hom-
ing pigeon’ sixth sense and was able to get us back on track. 
We caught up with the main group just as they were finishing 
apparently a gourmet lunch, and reunited we made it through 
to the Bhutan Immigration Office before the 6:00pm close, 
although not before one of our number had a spill after hitting 
a rock growing out of the road.

Crossing into the Buddhist Kingdom of Bhutan meant we 
needed to have a government-appointed guide. Yongten had 
perfect English and was very well educated; we could not 
have asked for a more knowledgeable guide. The roads and 
traffic were remarkably better than in India, which was already 
better than in Nepal. A rest day in Paro gave us time to climb 
up to the ‘Tigers Nest’ monastery, an amazing sight perched 
precariously on the side of a mountain and built more than 
400 years ago. The climb took a couple of hours and halfway 
up it started snowing, so by the time we returned to our hotel 
I was well and truly ready for the ‘Signature Ritual Massage’ I 
had pre-booked earlier.

Next day was an easy half-day ride to the capital Thimpu, 
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allowing ample time for us to take in a Grand Tour of this 
amazing little city. On a nearby hill is purportedly the world’s 
largest Buddha, it was certainly large enough to be visible 
from all over the valley including all the approach roads. We 
then visited the Golden Takin sanctuary to observe Bhutan’s 
national animal the takin, which looks like the head of a goat 
has been transplanted onto the body of a cow.

A day I was really looking forward to was the visit to the mag-
ical Punakha Dzong, which is a fortress monastery at the con-
fluence of two rivers with a commanding view down the valley. 
A spiritual reading I’d taken before leaving home indicated I’d 
had a past life here as a senior monk. Wow!

The following day was only 90k to the regional capital of Jakar 
but the road was shocking. Mike decided to drop to the rear 
rather than the front in case he was needed, and indeed the 
road was a virtual mud bath, causing many of us to have a 
spill. I had my worst spill here, falling heavily on my left to 
bury myself head to toe up to my armpit and crotch. Although 
shaken, I bounced back on the bike and rode on, after Mike 
took the obligatory photo of course, of me absolutely caked 
in mud. I ended up in a lot of pain that evening after the 
adrenalin wore off, but not enough to stop me riding on and 
enjoying the rest of the tour.

Mike observed that the brilliant roads he’d promised us had 
been ripped up since he was last here two years ago, in a 
huge government ‘highway improvement’ program. And so the 
next couple of days had to be scheduled around road closure 
timings. We had an early-ish start (8:00am) from Jakar to 
ensure we reached a certain place by a certain time, which 
meant climbing our highest pass at 3,780 metres with fresh 
snow still on the ground, which made for hazardous riding. 
Trucks had pushed snow and mud into a hump in the middle 
of the road which made negotiating traffic and bends quite 
challenging. I’m still not quite sure how we survived these last 
couple of days!

The following day, Trashigang was only 90k away but some 
of the group were delayed by an unannounced road closure. 
Those of us up front enjoyed a liesurely lunch in the beautiful 
town square of this gorgeous little place. Correct and consider-
ate parking was strictly, but charmingly, enforced by the local 
policewoman. Polite law and order is a delightful aspect of 
this country. Mike recounted an episode from a previous tour 
where his entire group had briefly parked illegally to watch an 
archery game, only to earn the wrath of the local policewom-
an. Threatened with fines and a consequent delay, Mike asked 
politely if there was another way to redress their misdemean-
our. After consulting with her seniors on the radio, the young 
officer turned and announced to the group, ‘You must all come 
to the Police Station and apologise to my Superintendent’.

Our last day in Bhutan was stressful and exhausting. It started 
off really well, stopping for coffee in a quaint little village. 
Mike seems to know how to sniff out these delightful little 
shops which are invisible to the rest of us. But our local escort 
Yongten warned of more road blockages ahead for blasting, 
and we missed the 12:15 window of opportunity which meant 
we hastily aborted our liesurely picnic lunch and hurried on, 
so we didn’t miss the next one at 3:00. The roads were very 
dusty, narrow, and littered with large boulders from the blast-
ings. Trucks coming the other way gave little room or concern 
for motorcycles, as they were in a similar hurry to beat the 
road closures. The World On Wheels motto of ‘Life is a daring 
adventure or nothing at all’ took on a very real meaning.

But it must be said there was still time to stop and take in the 
magnificent views from the mountain roads to the plains far 
below. The final section found us on an excellent new road 
with virtually no traffic to the exit border town of Samdrup 
Jongkhar, giving us the chance to hone our cornering skills on 
long, sweeping, wide roads.

After crossing back into India again we rode for another 100k 
to our final destination, the Assam capital of Guwahati, where 
we kissed the bikes goodbye. After 2500k of very demanding 
but exhilarating riding, this was quite an emotional moment 
for many of us. I, for one, simply loved riding my trusty, 
reliable, Royal Enfield. This evening was a celebratory farewell 
dinner where we enjoyed the excesses of all that was on offer!

The bonus encore of this tour was then flying to Chennai 
(formerly Madras) on India’s east coast for a visit to the Royal 
Enfield factory. This new production line was built in 2011 and 
is immaculately clean and very well run. It was fascinating to 
follow the different models from the spare parts section to the 
paint shop and assembly line. One completed bike rolls out 
every 20 minutes to be immediately tested on the dyno and 
the purpose-built test track.

For me this was the trip of a lifetime. Mike and Denise’s World 
On Wheels operation is certainly well organised and well run. 
They run this tour every second year which means the 2019 
tour should be all on brand new completed roads. W O W !!  
Highly recommended. (www.WorldOnWheels.tours)

Graham Felton

# 32345
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A GRAND RIDE IN  
THE GRAMPIANS

IT was another huge event when the Grampians Ride to 
Remember was held on February 2.

Estimates of number varied, but there were around 550 
registered participants, plus late arrivals, who enjoyed a 
ride through the picturesque Grampians region.

This was followed up with a BBQ lunch, and a Show & 
Shine which was well supported by the local motorcycle 
shops. 

Ride to Remember is organised by a sub-committee of 
the Ararat RSL, who were thrilled with the big turnout of 
motorcycle enthusiasts from across Victoria, South Australia 
and from throughout the local areas.

The event perpetuates the memory of Victoria Police killed 
in the line of duty, which was signified by one minute’s 
silence prior to the Ride commencing.

It was the 10th Anniversary of this event, which raises 
significant funds for the Victoria Police Blue Ribbon 
Foundation – Ararat Branch, to support East Grampians 
Health Service.

 Ulysses Club Grampians Branch thought they had it 
covered with an information stall, which was promoting 
both the Club and their local Branch activities, but they 
were amazed by the level of interest.

We handed out 23 membership application forms, and 580 
flyers detailing our Branch activities, and a magnificent day 
was had by all in attendance.

John Harkin #26230

Grampians Branch Secretary

Media Release, Ararat RSL

This year’s Anniversary Ride was extended to 234km, to 
include the spectacular route from Dunkeld to Halls Gap 
via the Grampians National Park. The route included 
morning tea at the Willaura Memorial Hall and a water 
stop at the Halls Gap Cricket Ground before returning to 
Ararat for a BBQ lunch at Alexandra Gardens. 

 Sarting this year from the Ararat RSL carpark and 
spreading across Queen St, the assembly of bikes was 
testament to the growing interest in the annual Ride. 

Coordinating this year’s Ride involved huge support 
from Victoria Police, and Ride coordinator Dianne 
Radford was full of praise for all involved.

“The Grampians Ride to Remember requires a lot 
organising and importantly the involvement of our local 
police whom we are indebted, in addition to the State 
Solo Unit with this year four coming up from Melbourne. 

“They do a fantastic job and are ably assisted by our 
volunteer marshals and support crews, who for the 
last few months under the guidance of Chief Marshall, 
Simon Clayfield rode the Ride route many times and 
addressed all the safety aspects so everyone had a safe 
and enjoyable Ride, and it was.” 

Leading the Ride out of Ararat was patron, Victoria 
Police Assistant Commissioner of Road Policing, Doug 
Fryer together with the police solos to the raising of 
the flags by Victoria Police Blue Ribbon Foundation 
CEO Neil Soullier, Ararat Branches Terry Weeks, Ararat 
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Deputy Mayor Gwenda Allgood, East Grampians Health 
Service Board President Matt Wood and retired long time 
motorcycle supporter to the Ride, David Rosengreen of 
Ararat. 

The Ride travelled out of Ararat via a contingency route to 
Lake Bolac and onto Willaura for morning tea, where the 
Willaura Health Service Auxiliary, together many helpers 
looked after the large contingent. Then it was onto Dunkeld, 
up through the Grampians National Park to Halls Gap for a 
quick water stop and back through Pomonal and Moyston to 
Ararat – total of four hours. 

Feeding the masses at the Alexandra Gardens, as per every 
year of the Ride was the Ararat Lions Club who had a big 
team of members involved again and did the task in record 
time, plus the hot and cold drink stations did a good trade.  

The ‘Show N Shine’ was well supported by riders with some 
impressive bikes vying for prizes and trophies plus there 
were displays by long-time supporters and the Blue Ribbon 
merchandising van did a roaring trade.   

Reflecting the past 10 years, Dianne 
Radford said: “It is fantastic that the 
Grampians “Ride to Remember” has 
become a signature regional event and 
the interest by motorcycle enthusiasts 
to do the Ride has increased, and more 
dramatically over the last couple of 
years. Approximately $100,000 has been 
raised in the ten years to support the 
Ararat Branch projects at East Grampians 
Health Service.”

Following a full debriefing of all involved 
in this year’s event the Ararat Branch and 
the Ride Sub Committee will sit down with 
Victoria Police to start planning for next 
year’s Ride To Remember.

Approximately 
$100,000 has been 

raised in the ten 
years to support the 

Ararat Branch projects 
at East Grampians 

Health Service.
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We can customise any tour to suit your individual needs. 
Freight bike options available. No bike option in Milwaukee available.

GREAT PEOPLE, AMAZING ROADS. SPECTACULAR SCENERY.  AN UNFORGETTABLE EXPERIENCE! PH HEAVY DUTY ON 03 9317 5004 OR TOUR DIRECTOR GAY ZAZRYN ON 0414 268 155  HEAVYDUTY.COM.AU

ALL TOURS INCLUDE 
 Return air flights from 

Melb/Sydney/Brisbane
 Transfers
 Bike Rental
 Accommodation
 Travel Insurance
 National Parks Pass
 Fuel/Toll/drinks en route
 Back up vehicle to carry 

luggage & transport
 Welcome & Farewell Dinner
 HEAVY DUTY Pack

 The Best Tour Leaders who are riders and know the best places to see!

CELEBRATE 
HARLEY’S HUGE 

115TH ANNIVERSARY 
IN MILWAUKEE 

WITH US!

LET 
HEAVY DUTY 

TAKE YOU ON A 
SPECTACULAR RIDING 

EXPERIENCE WITH 
DESTINATION 

STURGIS!

RIDE IN AMERICA IN 2018 WITH

PACKAGE ONE
LAS VEGAS TO STURGIS RETURN 

27 DAYS JULY 28 – AUG 24 
PRICES FR $14,995

PACKAGE TWO
DENVER TO STURGIS RETURN 

16 DAYS AUG 4 – 20 
PRICES FR $12,590 

PACKAGE THREE
LAS VEGAS – STURGIS – MILWAUKEE – LAS VEGAS 

54 DAYS JULY 28 – SEPT 19 
PRICES FR $23,780

PACKAGE FOUR
CHICAGO TO LAS VEGAS 

18 DAYS SEPT 2 – 19  
PRICES FR $12,590

PACKAGE FIVE
MILWAUKEE TO CHICAGO TO LAS VEGAS 

22 DAYS AUG 28 – SEPT 19 
PRICES FR $18,990RIDER & PILLON

PP TWIN SHARE
RIDER & PILLON
PP TWIN SHARE

RIDER & PILLON
PP TWIN SHARE

RIDER & PILLON
PP TWIN SHARE

RIDER & PILLON
PP TWIN SHARE
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Specialising in unique adventures  
across the world

We are Long Road Adventures, an adventure travel company 
 derived from a love of motorbikes, travel and adventure. 

These adventures will at times test you, always amaze you, and if 
you are like us, they may change the way you live your life once 

you return home.

Contact Simon on 0497 258 320 
info@longroadadventures.com
www.longroadadventures.com

Why Choose Us?
Our team is all about...

✓ Experience  ✓ Safety  ✓ Support
Book now

• Sri Lanka 2018 
• India August/September 2019 

• Mongolia July 2019

LONG ROAD ADVENTURES

www.postiebikechallenge.org    Ph. 0411 090 891

Desert - Gulf of Carpentaria - Rainforest
8 - 19 Sep 2018

A truly unique fundraising adventure that will have you 
recounting stories to your friends. Ride  3800+km, on an 
unmodified Postie Bike across Australia. Rainforest to arid 
outback; Stockman’s Hall of Fame; Dip your toes in the Gulf 
(catch a barra’ or be caught by a croc!); Daintree NP track and 
water crossings (feel free to walk through); Final haul to Great 
Barrier Reef in Cairns. Out of the way route and stopovers: 
Mountain top sunset dinner, camp out under the stars next to an 
outback river oasis, swim in hot natural springs and enjoy the 
camp oven and a coldie with the locals. Finale is a celebration 
dinner and a soft bed at a Cairns resort.

Your choice - donate the bike we supply or keep it!

$5850 Incl bike, accomm, meals, mechanics, spares, 
support truck and vehicles.



 
Playing The  
Numbers Game
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A few words from 
Peter  ‘the Bear’ 
Thoeming #675, 

Editor Emeritus 
of Australian 
MOTORCYCLIST 
Magazine

There has been 
another epidemic of 
ill-informed gibbering 
in the newspapers 
about the dangers of 

older motorcyclists who 
return to riding. Their casualty rate is up, up and away it 
seems, and government bodies as well as members of the 
Ulysses Club (who really should know better) have been 
beating their breasts about this. 

For heaven’s sake, get your facts right or leave it alone!

People, participation by riders over 50 years of age has 
nearly doubled (90 per cent) recently. 

It doesn’t matter what the time period actually is, because 
I am about to compare oranges with oranges. Over the 
same period, crash rates for these poor doddering old fools 
(who should really be on the mobility scooters that make 
footpaths dangerous even for sprightly folk like me,) have 
gone through the roof. Right? 

Well, no, because the crash rates have risen by roughly half 
of the participation rate increase (54 per cent). Now, even 
if you spent your entire school time in a GA class (never 
mind, just showing off how old I am) you will be able to see 
that that does not appear to suggest that older riders are 
dangerous.

In fact, it demonstrates precisely the reverse. Getting us old 
blokes onto the road makes the average crash rate lower.

In case you think I’m cooking the books, here is Dr Liz 
de Rome, one of Australia’s few genuine motorcycle 
safety academics, commenting on the circus of old fools 
supposedly pivoting and crashing all over our nice clean 
roads.

“This is not supported by the statistics.”

Liz, with whom I do not always agree, nevertheless has 
her fingers on the statistics and knows how to interpret 
them, something that I may (may) not always be able to do 
perfectly.

All those well-intentioned idiots who keep insisting that 
the sky is falling are of course speaking from personal 
knowledge. They (and we) all know someone who has come 
back to motorcycling and has crashed. But one swallow, as 
Aristotle pointed out, does not make a spring. You might as 
well say that all parliamentarians are egotistical poseurs. 
Yes, you might say that.

The point is that, if the bad news bears were right we 
should all know a lot more returners who have crashed. 
Statistics can lie. But not in such a simple case, and not to 
Liz de Rome.

If you don’t understand statistics, as those benighted souls 
whom the papers drag out from under their logs obviously 
don’t, just listen to people who do. And who don’t have 
a vested interest in making us older gentlefolk look like 
incompetent crashing morons.

Older riders crash just like everyone else. They don’t crash 
more often than everyone else; in fact they crash less 
frequently. Have you got that?

Some people should really have done maths at school 
instead of woodwork in GA*.

*If you don’t understand what I’m on about, drop me a line 
and I’ll explain it.
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Introducing:  
the Gallivanting Grandma! Lyn Tout #42398.

Lyn’s love of riding bikes occurred in her late teens to 
early twenties. 

She rode her Honda 100 from Lara to Geelong to attend 
Teachers College, her dream was to one day own a 
Honda Gold Wing!  After retiring her bike to have children 
in the later 70s, Lyn was surprised by her husband 
for her 50th Birthday with a Honda Rebel 250. The 
Gallivanting Grandmother instantly fell back in love with 
two-wheel machines.  

Lyn’s teaching career spanned some 40 odd years, 
teaching all grade levels in primary school culminating 
in becoming the Principal at Werribee Primary school in 
2002, the very school she attended in the sixth grade 
many years before. Lyn has also been very active in both 
the Geelong and Werribee Hockey Clubs where she holds 
Life memberships in both. Currently, she is Chairman 
of the Board (President) at Werribee Hockey Club and 
has been for many years. Lyn finally retired from a 
competitive role as goalie in 2016 but is still active in 
organising Masters Hockey for Victoria. Lyn was rewarded 
for her community, education and voluntary contributions 
to the City of Wyndham by being nominated to carry the 
2018 Commonwealth Games Queens Baton, leaving from 
Werribee Primary School in February 2018.

Lyn strongly encouraged her husband to get his 
motorcycle licence, generously offering her 250 Honda 
to him while she upgraded to a Yamaha 650cc cruiser in 
2003. The pair enjoy riding so much that they decided to 
join the Ulysses Club in 2005 and affiliated themselves 
with the Westgate Wanderers Branch, they have been 
active members ever since.

It wasn’t long before Lyn became an even more 
active member, including taking on committee roles as 
Quartermaster from 2014 to 2016 and then as Treasurer 
in 2017. Lyn has also organised “Ladies Rides” where the 
boys were allowed to tag along. Lyn is also in the 2019 
National Rally organising committee, managing seven 
portfolios.

Lyn thoroughly 
enjoys weekend 
rides, day trips and the AGMs. 
Her favorite rides are probably the long distance 
rides to get to and or from AGMs such as Albany, 
Maryborough in 2013 via Karumba in Qld. The 2014 
Alice Springs where the return trip took in the Nullarbor 
Plain, Kalgoorlie, Geraldton, Broome and the obligatory 
stop in Darwin to play hockey in the National Masters 
Championships before returning to Melbourne via Alice 
Springs taking in total three months.

She now has her very own Gold Wing, fitted with a 
Wedgetail. The extra wheels are often referred to as 
Granny Wheels!  Nothing gave her more pleasure in 
2017 than being able to truly use her Granny wheels 
when taking her oldest Granddaughter to school on her 
motorbike for her 8th birthday! She often refers to her 
as her Biker Girl, her way of passing on her passion for 
riding bikes. 

John Tout #42398

Westgate Wanderers Branch  
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The Riverland Region Community in South 
Australia is thrilled to welcome all Ulysses Club 
members and their partners to the 2018 AGM 
Event.  Your hosts are the local Mallee Branch 
and the Torrens Valley Branch with considerable 

help from the other South Australian Regional and 
Adelaide based Branches. This Event will take place from 
Monday, May 7th to Sunday, May 13th.  The Riverland 
comprises the five main Towns of Renmark, Berri, Loxton, 
Barmera and Waikerie that are in close proximity to each 
other and 240 kms North East of Adelaide.  The AGM 
Event will be centred at the Riverland Field Days Site 
which is 4 kms from the Town of Barmera, located on 
picturesque Lake Bonney.  The Field Days Site comprises 
a fully fenced secure area of 12.5 hectares of green lawn.  
All campers, including RVs will be accommodated in the 
one area with plenty of space on offer.  For additional 
information on the venue and the AGM Event in general, 
visit the official AGM Event National website at  
https://agm2018.ulyssesclub.org.  For those members not 
planning to camp onsite, there are a multitude of Caravan 
Parks, House Boats, Motels and B&B’s to choose from in 
nearby locations, in fact there are up to 2,300 hard beds 
available across the Riverland.

The Riverland is known as the fruit bowl of South 
Australia with its ample irrigation supply coming from 
the mighty River Murray that winds its way majestically 
through the Region.  Oranges, wine grapes, vegetables, 
almonds and many exotic fruits are grown in the Riverland 
and shipped to all parts of the Country and internationally.

Tourism is a major industry in the Riverland and there 
are quaint coffee shops and tourist destinations to visit 

including some iconic wineries, distilleries and a world 
heritage listed location.  Do you know that the famous 
Stones Green Ginger wine is crafted at Renmark?  Check 
out the Destination Riverland website for a raft of 
opportunities to savour during your stay in the Riverland 
during AGM Event week.   
See www.destinationriverland.org.au    
From the Riverland, other iconic South 
Australian tourism destinations can 
be explored including the Barossa 
Valley and the majestic Flinders 
Ranges.  Consider adding these 
destinations to you AGM Event 
itinerary before or after the 
Event week.

Ulysses Club Inc. AGM Event 2018

WELCOME TO THERiverland
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Ulysses Club Inc. AGM Event 2018 -Monday 7th May to Sunday 13th May

Riverland - South Australia
CONTACT THE NATIONAL ADMINISTRATION OFFICE 
ON 1300 134 123, FOR ALL ENQUIRIES. 
 
REGISTRATION – ONLINE:

Go to www.ulyssesclub.org and click on the registration link 
available from the 2018 AGM Event web page.

REGISTRATION PAPER FORM:

Please complete the registration form and submit with 
payment details to the National Administration Office, PO 
Box 3242, Narellan NSW 2567 or Fax 02 4647 7740 or email 
a scanned copy to info@ulysses.org.au 

Cheques and Money Orders payable to Ulysses Club Inc.

PAYMENT BY DIRECT DEBIT:  BSB 062 813, Account 
Number 1020 1995, Name: Ulysses Club Inc.  Reference 
must include membership Name and Membership Number so 
we can verify your payment.

EVENT VENUE:  The Riverland Field Days Site is the 
main venue for the 2018 AGM Event.  It is situated 
approximately 4 kms east of the township of Barmera, 240 
kms from Adelaide and 150 kms west from the Victorian 
City of Mildura.  The Field Days Site will host the Event 
Campground, Trade Show and all entertainment. The 
Extended NatCom Meeting will be held in the Barmera 
Recreation Centre on Friday May 11th and the Annual General 
Meeting will be held at the Chaffey Theatre at Renmark on 
Saturday 12th May.

REGISTRATION FEES:

Everyone attending the Event must pay the applicable 
registration fee whether they are a member or a guest of 
a member, regardless of the amount of days they attend.  
Each member is allowed to register one paid guest.  
Members who have not registered to attend the Event may 
participate in the Grand Parade and gain entry to the Annual 
General Meeting on the Saturday. 

This year a special three day pass will be introduced.  For a 
discounted sum, members and their guests can attend from 
the Thursday to the Sunday (inclusive) of the Event with full 
benefits.  An open day to members of the public, is planned 
for Thursday May 10th.

CHECK IN:

This year we will have a complete change to the normal 
Check In procedure. Each membership card will contain a 
unique Radio Frequency ID tag which will enable members 
and their guests to enter and exit the AGM Event venue, 
have meals, collect ordered merchandise etc.  Those 
members attending the Event without pre-registering will be 
required to present themselves at Gate 7 at the Event Site 
for registration and fee payment procedures and collect their 
new RFID Card.

CANCELLATIONS:

A cancellation fee of $25 per person applies to Event 
registration cancellations received either verbally or in 
writing at the National Administration Office after 5pm on 
the 16th March 2018. 

After the AGM Event, refunds will only be made when notice 
is received within 30 days from the conclusion of the Event.

-   No refunds issued for Meals cancelled after 20/4/2018 
-   No refunds issued for Tent City cancelled after 27/4/2017

PERSONS UNDER 18 YEARS OF AGE:

Members’ guests and other persons under 18 years of age 
will not be admitted to AGM Event venues. Site Trader 
Employees and dedicated volunteers aged 16 years and over 
may be admitted provided prior approval has been granted 
by the National Committee.  No persons under the age of 16 
years will be admitted including children of Traders.

ANIMALS:

Companion animals must be registered to enter the AGM 
Event Site.  A $25 registration fee per animal is mandatory.  
Acceptance of companion animals is entirely at the discretion 
of the National Committee or the National Administration 
Office staff.  Animals that are registered will be allowed 
within the campgrounds area only.  Only bono fide Guide 
Dogs (not companion animals) will be permitted within the 
Trader and Food Service areas.  Guide Dogs are exempt 
from the animal registration fee but prior advice of their 
attendance would be appreciated.  Any animal which 
represents a danger or potential hazard to other registrants 
or themselves will not be permitted within any AGM Event 
venue.  Registrants who choose to bring companion animals 
must:

•	 Pre-register their animal with the National 
Administration Office prior to entering any Event 
venue

•	 Agree in writing to comply with the Club’s 
companion animal policy.

Exploring the Riverland Region:

The 2018 AGM Event Organising Committee have been 
working hard to put together a range of interesting rides and 
tours for you to enjoy during your stay in the Riverland.  

Bus Tours and River Cruises:

Relax while someone else does the driving and visit some of 
the interesting tourism destinations throughout the Riverland 
including the unbelievable Humphreys Irrigation Pump in 
action at Cobdogla, The Village, historic Loxton and cruise 
the Murray backwaters on an air boat.  The region is rich 
with pioneering history. If OP Shops visits are your thing, we 
can cater for this too.
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Destination Riverland Information Centre:

We are proud of our liaison with ‘Destination Riverland’, 
the local arm of the South Australian Tourism Commission.  
They work alongside several Visitor Information Centres 
throughout the Riverland (in each town) who offer advice on 
tours and accommodation choices.  Please visit them while 
in the Riverland to access their valued information on the 
region or check out www.destinationriverland.org.au  

RIDES:

We have a selection of fully escorted rides for you to choose 
from if this is your preference. There are numerous short 
rides to local destinations and those wishing to visit the 
Barossa Valley and the National Motor Museum can access 
these longer more strenuous rides which will take most of 
the day.  The Rides will be led by very experienced leaders 
with phone links to full break down facilities available if the 
worst happens.  (Towing services will be advised but broken 
down motorcycles cannot be picked up by the Ulysses Club.)  
All Ride information will be displayed in detail at the Event 
HQ Rides Desk, located in the centre of the Field Days Site.  
If numbers are oversubscribed, more parallel rides can be 
organised.  All rides will depart from the Field Days Site at a 
pre-determined location adjacent to the entrance gate.  You 
will need to be at the departure point 30 minutes prior to 
the ride departure time with a full tank and empty bladder!  
The longer rides schedule will allow time for sightseeing as 
well as morning tea stops and lunches.  We will also have 
maps and detailed ride sheets available for members who 
prefer to do their own thing.  All rides will be subject to 
pre-registration at least the day before and be subject to 
minimum, maximum numbers.

ULYSSES CLUB INC. AGM EVENT 2018 – Monday 7th 
May to Sunday 13th May, 2018

Riverland - South Australia

EVENT CAMPGROUND:

The Campground at the Riverland Field Days Site near 
Barmera is large in size comprising 12.5 hectares of mown 
irrigated lawn with ample room for all campers and RV’s to 
be on the one site.  The Event Campground will open on 
Monday May 7th at 8.00am.  All camping rates and camping 
block sizes have been calculated to accommodate as many 
people on site as possible.  Only rostered set-up volunteers 
who volunteer prior to set up week will be allowed access 
to the site prior to this time.  A list of volunteers will be 
maintained – if you do not volunteer, you will be denied 
access to the campground before Monday 7th May.  

We are aware of members gaining free early access to the 
Campground and do very little or no volunteering. The AGM 
Event Committee reserves the right to evict those that do 
not volunteer. Volunteer registration forms are available 
from the 2018 AGM Event website at, http://agm2018.
ulyssesclub.org/

CAMPGROUND RATES:

Camping fees cover the period from 8.00am Monday 7th 
May 2018 until Sunday 13th May.  All rates have been 
calculated to fairly cover the cost of hiring the campground, 
temporary toilets and showers, security, sewage and waste 
removal from the area.  If a campsite is shared by two 
people, both must register on the same registration form.  
No more than 2 registrants (Member + guest or 2 Members) 
per site. The 2nd Member/Guest that is camping on the 
site will also need to pay an $80.00  2nd Member/Guest 
camping fee.

UNPOWERED CAMPSITES:

Most camp sites will be unpowered. (see Medical Power 
Campsites for special conditions) All sites will be 6M X 6M 
in size and will be clearly line marked.  There are a number 
of camping supply retailers in the Riverland towns for your 
convenience if you need or forgotten anything.

240 VOLT POWER and WATER AVAILABILITY:

Power is not available for campsites or for RV sites other 
than for approved medical reasons.  Water is not available 
for connecting to RV’s but filtered potable drinking water is 
available on-site to be collected in containers.  RV’s are asked 
to enter the site with full water tanks and empty waste tanks.  
An RV waste dump site is available just off site.

RENT-A-TENT:

Members can hire pre-constructed tents equipped with 
stretcher beds and mattresses for two people. Two chairs and 
battery LED lantern lighting. A variety of extras are available 
from Rent-A-Tent via their website after you have registered. 
Alternatively, members can elect to provide their own 
bedding, sleeping bags, pillows, chairs etc. and if required, 
may post their equipment to the Event Parcel Services at the 
address as listed elsewhere.

If two people are sharing a Rent-A-Tent structure and 
registered separately, the National Administration Office must 
be given both names and membership numbers.  NOTE: 
bookings for Rent-A-Tent will close on Friday 27th April 2018.  
No other tents will be ordered from the supplier after this 
date.

MEDICAL POWER CAMPSITES:

Powered campsites are available ONLY for people with 
MEDICAL CONDITIONS NECESSITATING ACCESS TO A 
POWER SOURCE TO OPERATE MACHINES USED IN THE 
TREATMENT OF A CERTIFIFIED MEDICAL CONDITION.  
Campers requiring medical power for CPAP or portable 
dialysis machines etc must attach (or have provided in the 
past 12 months) a medical certificate clearly indicating which 
machines will be used.  If you have previously provided a 
medical certificate which lists this information, please note 
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this on the registration form.  Unfortunately, powered sites 
cannot be included in a group booking.

Any member found using domestic appliances connected to a 
medical site power circuit risks confiscation of that appliance 
and may be asked to vacate the event site.

CARAVANS AND MOTOR HOMES:

There is almost unlimited space for RV’s within the campsite.  
Each site will be clearly line marked with a size of 9M X 6M.  
Tow vehicles must be parked in a designated secure parking 
area close to the RV sites.  (All non-motorcycle vehicles also 
must be parked in this area away from the designated general 
campground.)

WHATS NEW IN THE CAMP GROUND:

For 2018, we will be having a trial where RV’s will be 
permitted to join in with their friends in a group booking 
setting within the general camping area under strict 
safety conditions.  We hope that this will bring about a 
greater experience for all as one happy family.   Once the 
Campground Coordinators have your group booking details 
you will be sent additional information regarding coming on 
site. 

GROUP BOOKINGS:

Members wishing to camp together may make a group 
booking for two or more campsites. These sites will be 
allocated by the Campground Coordinators. It is the 
responsibility of your group leader to follow up on the receipt 
and acceptance of the request.  Please read group booking 
application procedures below.

GROUP BOOKING APPLICATION PROCEDURE:

•	 Each member of the group must be registered to 
attend the AGM Event.

•	 After each member has received their confirmation 
documentation, the group’s nominated leader must 
write a brief cover letter listing the groups preferred 
booking name and including a copy of each person’s 
name and event registration number details. 

•	 To make the process easier for everybody please 
attempt to have the group arrive at the venue 
together.

•	 DO NOT post your group booking requests to 
the National Office. 

All requests for group bookings must be received no 
later than 5pm Friday 27th April 2018.

Please Post Group Booking confirmation to:

Group Booking Coordinators

Rex and Jenny Meredith, PO Box 4, Glenbrook 
NSW 2773

or Email: greenmeanstreak@hotmail.com

Contacts:

0450 903 937 (Jenny) 0414 395 458 (Rex) or (02) 
4739 3497 (Home)

ULYSSES CLUB INC. AGM EVENT 2018 – Monday 7th May to 
Sunday 13th May, 2018

Riverland - South Australia

PARCEL SERVICE:

There will be a dedicated parcel service operating for 
members to send their camping equipment to the main event 
site.  Members may also send parcels to their home address 
at the conclusion of the event using Australia Posts COD 
service, or a local freight company at members cost.

Parcels must comply with Australia Post specifications.  
Australia Post have advised that that the maximum size 
allowed is 105cm X 105cm X 105cm with a maximum weight 
of 22 Kg.  Please post to:

<Your name> <Your registration No> 

Ulysses Club Inc. – 2018 AGM Event 

C/o Barmera Post Office 

1 Barwell Avenue 

Barmera SA 5345

Parcels that DO NOT comply with Australia Post 
specifications:  You can make alternative freight delivery 
arrangements if your packed gear exceeds Australia Post 
specifications.  Please freight to:

<Your name> <Your registration No> 

Ulysses Club – 2018 AGM Event 

Parcels and Laundry Coordinator 

52 Field Day Drive

Barmera SA 5345

Collection arrangements for member’s parcels will be listed in 
the Event Information booklet.

LAUNDRY FACILITES:
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Whilst there are no laundry facilities onsite, a pickup and 
delivery service by a local (Berri) laundry will be available 
from the Parcels & Laundry Office at the main site. Details 
for the drop off & collection times will be in the event booklet 
and on display at the Parcels & Laundry Office.  There is one 
small coin-op laundrette at nearby Barmera 4 kms away from 
the Event site. Others are situated at Berri, Renmark and 
Loxton.

EQUIPMENT BATTERY CHARGING:

There will be free battery charging facilities throughout the 
camping site.  Members are responsible for looking after their 
phone, tablets etc whilst charging.

MEALS AND ENTERTAINMENT:

Beginning Monday 7th May, quality meals and snacks will 
be available from reputable vendors at the Food Court in 
the main event site.  Top class bands/DJ will provide the 
entertainment every night, except Monday, in the main tent 
throughout the Event week.

WEDNESDAY NIGHT ENTERTAINMENT AND MEALS: 
Note: Orders for Dinners will close on Friday 20 April, 5 pm.

On Wednesday evening, the Event will officially kick off with 
a gourmet BBQ style meal in the Main Tent prepared and 
catered for by a high quality caterer from Adelaide.  It will 
be a casual affair when AGM Event virgins (first timers at an 
AGM Event) will be given their special welcome.  The theme 
for the night will be ‘60’s Rock and Roll’ so dress accordingly.  
The menu consists of: 

Grilled lemon & herb chicken thigh- boneless, spicy beef 
sausage, prime beef burger with a grilled bacon rasher. 
Salads are steamed baby potatoes, spring onion and egg 
mayonnaise with green leaf salad and honey mustard 
dressing with sourdough roll and butter portion.  Dessert 
consists of tropical fruit salad topped with fresh double 
cream.

SATURDAYS NIGHT ENTERTAINMENT AND MEALS: 
Note: Orders for Dinners will close on Friday 20 April, 5 pm.

This is the big one for the week!  The newly elected National 
Committee will be introduced to the assembled members.  
The theme for the night is ‘Life on the River’ and again this 
formal dinner will be held in the Main Tent.  Swim into this 
fun filled night dressed in appropriate river gear.  The menu 
will be:

Slow roast lamb shoulder with demi glaze gravy complete 
with roasted sautéed potato, honey carrots and mint peas.  
Includes roll and butter portion.  For dessert we have lemon 
and lime curd tart with Italian meringue and fresh passion 
fruit sauce.  Tea and coffee will be available with both formal 
meals.

Both Wednesday and Saturday night dinners must be pre-

ordered on your event registration form.  Members with 
special dietary requirements should note their preferences on 
the registration form.  Members who chose not to pre-order 
can purchase a quality meal from any of the on-site food 
vendors and come along and join in the celebrations in the 
Main Tent.

Buses will operate on both the Wednesday and Saturday 
nights.  This year a ‘user pays’ system will be introduced and 
a fee of $5 will be charged to each person per night to cover 
the costs of hiring the buses.  This fee covers a return trip to 
and from the Main venue from your off-site accommodation 
place.  The need to be picked up will be ticked on your 
registration form together with the appropriate fees.  
Campers will not be required to pay this fee.  Please provide 
the address where you will be staying on your registration 
form.  The most practical bus routes will be defined once we 
know all the address locations.  If the final route does not 
go right past your door, you may have to make your way to 
the nearest pick up point. We will endeavour to transport 
the majority of members to and from the Main Site, but not 
everything is possible.

VOLUNTEERS LUNCH:

To show our appreciation of the Volunteers that perform 
countless hours of faithful duty during the AGM Event, there 
will be a free lunch provided on Sunday 13th at mid-day.  
(Hours will be tallied up from the total number of hours per 
volunteer and invitations issued accordingly.)

ACCOMMODATION OTHER THAN CAMPING ON-SITE:

There are many different forms of accommodation available 
in the Riverland Region.  For all bookings and information, 
contact the Destination Riverland Visitor Information Centres 
on 1300 768 582.

There are five Offices throughout the Riverland in 
various locations.  Check out all locations at: www.
destinationriverland.org.au 

Planning for the Riverland AGM Event has been in process for 
the past three years by a dedicated Organising Committee of, 
in excess of 100 members from all States of Australia.  We 
are excited to be able to present this opportunity to you to 
visit the Riverland in May 2018.

See you in May 2018 at the Riverland.
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ULYSSES CLUB INCORPORATED 
ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING 2018 
Chaffey Theatre, Country Arts S.A. 
Seventeenth Street, Renmark, S.A. 5341 
Saturday 12th May 2018 at 1pm
 
AGENDA

1. Welcome to members 

2. Introduction of the National Committee members 

3. Apologies 

4. Remembrance of members who have Ridden On

5. Recognition 

6. Minutes of 2017 AGM meeting held at Wauchope 

(These minutes have been previously distributed and will not be read out)

7. Matters arising from the Minutes

8. Reports

Reports are as published in the Autumn 2018 edition of the “Riding On” and will not be read out.

a) National President’s Report

b) National Vice President’s Report

c) National Secretary’s Report

d) National Treasurer’s Report 

e) National Purchasing Officer’s Report

f) International Liaison’s Report 

g) National Website Manager’s Report

9. Presentations

10. UCARF Presentation

11. Announcement of AGM 2021

12. Introduction of Presiding Officer

13. Elections

20. General Business

No other matters may be raised for a resolution unless proper notice has been given.

h) Close   

Ulysses Club Inc. AGM Event 2018 -Monday 7th May to Sunday 13th May

Riverland - South Australia



PLEASE NOTE: 
Registrations can be made online at www.ulyssesclub.org

MEMBER DETAILS

Surname: Given Name:

Membership No: Preferred Name:

Branch Name: Contact Phone No:

Email for registration correspondence to be sent. (DO NOT LEAVE THIS SECTION BLANK. IF YOU DON’T HAVE AN EMAIL, PLEASE PUT YOUR 
POSTAL ADDRESS) 

Note: Each financial member is entitled to register ONE non-member guest.

2nd MEMBER/ GUEST DETAILS

Surname: Given Name:

Membership No (if applicable): Preferred Name:

Branch Name: Contact Phone No:

EVENT REGISTRATION PRICE QTY. TOTALS

REGISTRATION 7 Day  
Includes unlimited entry to Trade show & marquees, event welcome bag & lapel badge. $110 $

REGISTRATION 3 Day Entry for this 3 Day pass is from Thursday, Friday and Saturday only. 
Includes unlimited entry to Trade show & marquees, event welcome bag & lapel badge. $90

COMPANION ANIMAL REGISTRATION (Please read ‘ANIMALS’ section) Animals Name/s: $25 $

CAMPGROUND REGISTRATION  PRICE QTY. TOTALS

What date do you intend to arrive on site?  Arrival Date: 

o Please reserve 1 (one) UNPOWERED Campsite for one person for 7 Days.  
 My registered 2nd MEMBER/GUEST is camping on my site with me.

$120 
$80

$ 
$

o Please reserve 1 (one) UNPOWERED Campsite for one person  for 3 Days. (Thursday, Friday 
and Saturday only) 
 My registered 2nd MEMBER/GUEST is camping on my site with me.

$95 
 
$80

$ 
 
$

o Please reserve 1 (one) MEDICAL POWER Campsite for one person  
o I have supplied a relevant medical certificate to the NAO within the past 12 months  
or 
o I have attached a current certificate issued by a medical practitioner, detailing the reasons why 
I require electrical power at my campsite 
 My registered 2nd MEMBER/GUEST is camping on my site with me.

$140 

$80

$ 
 
 

$

o Please reserve 1 (one) RV Campsite for one person  
 My registered 2nd MEMBER/GUEST is camping on my site with me.

Potable water is available, but connections are NOT allowed.

$140 
$80 $

$

 Please reserve 1 (one) TENT CITY Campsite for one person  
A TENT CITY campsite includes the hire of a pre-erected tent equipped with two single beds, 
mattresses, a LED light and 2 chairs 
 My registered 2nd MEMBER/GUEST is camping on my site with me

$380 
 
$80

$ 
 
$

REGISTRATION FORM 
Ulysses Club Inc. 2018 AGM Event – Riverland Mon-
day 7th May to Sunday 13th May, 2018.  $25 per 
person cancellation fee applies after 5pm Friday, 16th 
March 2018
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Ulysses Club Inc. 2018 AGM Event – Riverland Monday 
7th May to Sunday 13th May, 2018.  $25 per person 
cancellation fee applies after 5pm Friday, 16th March 
2018
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o I/We require access to a disabled toilet or shower in the campground 

o I/We hold a current Disability Parking Permit issued by a government authority

Please attach proof to this form if a disabled 
vehicle permit is required.

                                                                                                                      SUB-TOTAL: $

 

DINING (See Wednesday & Saturday Entertainment and Meals Section for Menu)  Note: Orders for 
Dinners will close on Friday 20 April, 5 pm.

PRICE QTY. TOTALS

o I/We will be dining at the Wednesday night ‘Meet and Greet’ social 
$30 $

o I/We require Bus pickup to the Wednesday night social evening
$5 $

o I/We will be dining at the Saturday night dinner 
$31

$

o I/We require Bus pickup to the Saturday night dinner
$5 $

Special Dietary Requirements -  Tick applicable box and make further notes if required

o Coeliac       o Diabetic o No Dairy o Nut Allergy o Vegetarian 
 
 
Please indicate the following if you have ticked the Special Dietary Requirements –

o For Registrant         o For Guest            o For Both

 

 
NOTE: Accommodation details are required to help us plan bus routes to the social evening and dinner.  Unfortunately, buses cannot pick up 
from all accommodation addresses. (Please read DINNER SHUTTLE BUSES section).  Campground registrants WILL NOT need this service.         

My Accommodation name/address is:  

 



CREDIT CARD DETAILS:              MASTER CARD / VISA  Note: No other credit cards accepted          

CARD NO: __  __  __  __  /  __  __  __  __  /  __  __  __  __  /  __  __  __  __   EXPIRY DATE ____  /  ____    
 
CVS:___________(Last 3 digits on back of card)

Name on card:__________________________________________________________ Signature:________________________________

Post or Email all forms and payments to: National Administration Office, PO Box 3242, Narellan NSW 2567 or Fax: 02 4647 7740  
info@ulysses.org.au  All cheques and money orders to be made payable to:  Ulysses Club Inc.

Direct Deposit Payments MUST include Member’s Surname AND Membership Number

BSB: 062 813               ACC Number:  1020 1995           Account Name: Ulysses Club Inc.

 
 

REGISTRATION FORM 
Ulysses Club Inc. 2018 AGM Event – Riverland Monday 
7th May to Sunday 13th May, 2018.  $25 per person 
cancellation fee applies after 5pm Friday, 16th March 
2018
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ULYSSES CLUB INC
ABN 25 637 297 337
ARBN 116 090 101

  
 
 
 
 

PROCEDURE FOR ATTENDANCE AT ULYSSES CLUB AGM 12 MAY 2018

The 35th Annual General Meeting of the Ulysses Club Inc is to be held on Saturday 12th 
May 2018 and will commence at 1pm sharp, after which time the doors will close.

The AGM venue address is Chaffey Theatre, Country Arts S.A., Seventeenth St., Renmark, S.A. 5341

Financial members, who are not registered for the AGM Event, can still attend the meeting.  

Due to the time constraints involved with processing the Annual General Meeting attendees and the 
necessary preparations that take place in readiness for the vote counting procedures, we ask that 
members who wish to attend the AGM please ensure an arrival that allows for adequate time to be 
registered and be seated in readiness for a prompt start.
Only financial members can attend the AGM, vote, and have speaking rights, so please check your 
membership expiry date prior to your arrival and if expired please renew your membership before 
lining up for entry into the Annual General Meeting. Members must present their current membership  
Card to gain entry. No card, no entry.

In order not to be disappointed, please remember that the doors will close once the meeting commences 
and members who arrive late will be unable to gain access to the AGM, thus allowing the business of 
the day to continue uninterrupted. 

The Civic Welcome will take place at the park adjacent to Murray Ave, Renmark, at 11 a.m. on 
Saturday the 12th of May 2018 at the conclusion of the Grand Parade.  

The Grand Parade will start at the Lake Bonney Barmera foreshore, Dean Drive, Barmera, which is 
approximately 4 kilometres from the AGM Event venue and campsite and will finish at Murray Ave, 
Renmark.

Henry Rokx

National Secretary

National Secretary
Henry Rokx

PO Box 3242

NARELLAN NSW 2567

Mobile: 0418 329 617

Email: secretary@ulysses.org.au 

Ulysses Club Inc. AGM Event 2018 -Monday 7th May to Sunday 13th May

Riverland - South Australia
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Page 1

These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report.

Ulysses Club Inc
ABN 25 637 297 337

TRADING, PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
$ $

SALES
Quartermaster Sales 61,331.07 99,505.70

61,331.07 99,505.70
LESS COST OF GOODS SOLD
Opening inventories 82,271.39 90,485.26
Purchases:

Purchase - Retail 33,416.41 50,776.46
Closing inventories (84,391.79) (82,271.39)

31,296.01 58,990.33
GROSS SURPLUS FROM TRADING 30,035.06 40,515.37

INCOME
Joining Fees 39,310.32 50,554.51
Royalties - use of Name/Logo (Licence Agree) 954.55 954.55
Members Subscriptions 519,072.80 490,813.46
Sponsorship - Web - 13,000.00
Sponsorship - Other 10,454.54 3,636.36
Sponsorship - UCARF - 1,000.00
Advertising - Web 2,813.63 4,190.90
Advertising Riding On 89,041.27 104,555.06
Miscellaneous income 2,313.02 7,040.09
A.G.M Event Surplus 46,897.39 (42,770.00)
Interest received 24,956.89 25,970.71

735,814.41 658,945.64
EXPENDITURE
Administration Accounting fees 24,960.00 24,705.60
Administration Audit Fees 6,900.00 1,450.00
Administration Bank charges & fees 10,645.52 3,219.30
Administration Credit Card Facilities 1,043.71 8,987.89
Administration Filing Fees 206.75 -
Administration Graphic Design Work 759.68 720.35
Administration Legal fees - 455.00
Administration Maintenance Office Furniture & Equipment - 220.18
Administration Office Equipment Expenses 3,033.84 3,240.06
Administration Office Storeage Expenses - 1,000.00
Administration Office supplies - stationary 4,151.67 10,380.33
Administration Postage 19,898.76 20,433.09
Administration Printing External 3,819.09 -
Administration Printing Internal 5,303.91 2,565.61
Administration Telephone, mobile and fax 13,432.05 11,314.82
Air Conditioning - 109.09
Building Electricity 3,551.35 3,863.63
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These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report.

Ulysses Club Inc
ABN 25 637 297 337

TRADING, PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
$ $

Building Repairs and maintenance - 3,213.35
Building Security 759.96 350.00
Building Waste Services 2,578.53 2,122.12
Cleaning 3,636.26 3,563.64
Costs for Legal Cases 635.50 -
Data Processing - Admin Bandit - 4,954.00
Data Processing - Equipment R & M 35,200.45 37,263.28
Data Processing - Equipment Rental/Lease - 505.64
Data Processing - IMS Maintenence 12,709.19 33,604.76
Data Processing - MYOB 971.83 883.62
Data Processing - Software Purchase 1,681.82 100.89
Data Processing - Web Maintenence 53,633.33 35,402.72
Depreciation - Computer Upgrades 9,793.00 9,794.00
Depreciation - Computers 1,452.00 2,864.13
Depreciation - Office furniture & equipment 2,433.00 2,987.93
Insurance - Association Liability 39,562.48 -
Insurance - Cyber 544.54 -
Insurance - Marine - 250.00
Insurance Premium - Business 2,372.57 2,126.92
Insurance Premiums - Professional Indemnity - 20,878.77
Insurance Premiums - Public Liability 20,849.07 37,769.52
Insurance Premiums - Voluntary Workers 2,527.04 4,760.01
Insurance Premiums - Workers Comp 1,502.22 1,544.39
MAOTY Expenses 445.62 -
MAOTY Expenses - Administration costs 270.01 -
MAOTY Expenses - Assessment Costs 400.00 -
MAOTY Expenses - Award Costs 6,000.00 375.46
NatCom Expenses 100.63 2,299.09
NatCom Meeting expenses  Accommodation 8,094.36 14,929.70
NatCom Meeting expenses Venue Costs 1,937.43 1,953.28
Natcom Meeting expenses Meals & Food 3,707.80 5,450.46
Natcom Meeting expenses Travel 19,832.67 21,252.33
Natcom Meeting expenses Vehicle Hire 414.53 927.15
Natcom Meeting expenses other 9,738.11 9,829.08
Other First Aid Rebate 2,902.00 3,966.25
Other Head Office general expenses 1,635.33 1,250.74
Other Memberships & Subscriptions 100.00 100.00
Other Rental - office premises 31,003.62 29,858.58
Other Rider Training Rebate 2,280.00 2,267.25
Other Sundry expenses 2,039.22 15,296.03
Other writre off of bad debts - (1,130.08)
Riding On Costs - In house Publishing & Mailout 214,213.30 221,025.43



RIDING ON 55

Page 3

These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report.

Ulysses Club Inc
ABN 25 637 297 337

TRADING, PROFIT AND LOSS STATEMENT
For the year ended 31 December 2017

2017 2016
$ $

Riding On Costs Editor Costs 57.77 186.94
Road Safety Meeting - Meals - 42.27
Road Safety Meeting - Travel 1,816.44 2,834.67
Road safety meeting - accommodation 1,249.64 1,893.05
Selling Advertising - General 202.36 86.40
Selling Freight Outwards 765.58 814.64
UCARF Expenses - Administration - 949.58
UCARF Expenses - Award Costs - 3,236.00
Wages - redundancy 12,540.00 -
Wages Holiday pay 14,599.13 10,235.52
Wages Long service leave 2,535.96 927.89
Wages Ordinary 131,778.30 156,298.64
Wages Overtime 8,964.76 3,212.46
Wages Personal Leave 755.38 1,678.71
Wages Staff training and welfare 531.35 669.51
Wages Superannuation contributions 14,567.19 16,308.14
Wages Travel 1,087.06 1,387.13
Wages Travel - 83.30

787,114.67 828,100.24
DEFICIT FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES BEFORE INCOME TAX (21,265.20) (128,639.23)
Income Tax - (1,505.20)
DEFICIT FROM ORDINARY ACTIVITIES AFTER INCOME TAX (21,265.20) (127,134.03)
Retained surplus at the beginning of the financial year 550,290.66 651,938.30
TOTAL AVAILABLE FOR APPROPRIATION 529,025.46 524,804.27
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These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report.

Ulysses Club Inc
ABN 25 637 297 337

BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2017

2017 2016
$$

ASSETS
Current Assets
Quartermaster Stock 84,391.79 82,271.39
Riding on Income receivable - 5,014.50
Rent Bond 4,751.78 4,751.78
Petty cash 300.00 300.00
CBA - AGM Account 38,959.03 34,395.10
CBA - Arthritis Research Fund 69,572.19 39,887.52
UCARF Acc # 2 10.00 4,294.71
CBA - Business Online Saver 150,150.22 63,654.93
Term deposits 878,904.64 1,249,825.67
Term deposits - UCARF 100,616.11 -
Prepayments 77,412.72 73,253.69

1,405,068.48 1,557,649.29
Non-current Assets
Computers at cost 25,607.13 25,607.13
Less accumulated depreciation (20,920.13) (19,468.13)
Office furniture & equipment at cost 51,866.30 51,866.30
Less accumulated depreciation (34,552.30) (32,119.30)
Computer Upgrades 29,410.00 29,410.00
Less: Accumulated depreciation (23,181.00) (13,388.00)

28,230.00 41,908.00
TOTAL ASSETS 1,433,298.48 1,599,557.29

LIABILITIES
Current Liabilities
UCARF Raffle Account - 4,284.71
Contra - UCARF 149,291.91 118,981.13
Contra - Ulysses Story 20,906.39 20,906.39
2017 AGM payments - (17,036.03)
2017 AGM receipts - 93,877.72
2018 AGM Payments (31,578.53) (3,831.89)
2018 AGM Receipts 23,255.46 -
2019 AGM Payments (4,155.13) (1,783.38)
2020 AGM payments (6,046.24) (3,632.52)
Provision for holiday pay 9,327.49 13,206.06
Provision for income tax (1,960.00) -
Provision for long service leave 9,952.20 7,416.24
ATO Running Balance Account 4,583.61 -
PAYG withholding payable 1,436.00 1,842.00
Provision for GST 6,512.17 34,199.00
Subscriptions in advance 400,287.61 434,408.71
Sundry Creditors 9,164.35 2,299.09
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These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report.

Ulysses Club Inc
ABN 25 637 297 337

BALANCE SHEET
As at 31 December 2017

2017 2016
$$

590,977.29 705,137.23
Non-current Liabilities
Subscriptions in Advance 313,295.73 369,615.79
TOTAL LIABILITIES 904,273.02 1,074,753.02
NET ASSETS 529,025.46 524,804.27

EQUITY
Accumulated surplus 529,025.46 524,804.27
TOTAL EQUITY 529,025.46 524,804.27
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These statements should be read in conjunction with the attached compilation report.

Ulysses Club Inc
ABN 25 637 297 337

STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
As at 31 December 2017

2017
$

2016
$

Total equity at the beginning of the financial year 524,804.27 1,146,136.21
Surplus attributable to members (21,265.20) (127,134.03)
Transfers to and from retained surpluses 25,486.39 (509,010.21)
Transfers to and from reserves

Income Tax on Profit - 2,236.80
Rider Safety Program - 7,497.00
First Aid Course rebate - 5,078.50

Total equity at the end of the financial year 529,025.46 524,804.27
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Ulysses Club Inc 
 ABN 25 637 297 337 

 NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
 For the year ended 31 December 2017 
 
NOTE 1: STATEMENT OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES 
This financial report has been prepared using the historical cost convention and on a "going 
concern" basis. Income from Subscriptions is only brought to account when monies are received. 
Any other monies owing to or by the club are brought to account at the balance date. 
Members subscriptions are related to the year from which they first become applicable and any 
additional monies received in advance of this period are treated and recognised as subscriptions in 
advance. No account is taken of changing money values or current valuations of non-current assets. 

Accounting Policy Change 
During the 2016 year the committee decided to amend the accounting policy for fees received in 
advance. 
In prior years, all fees paid to the Club were recorded as income in the year received even if they 
represented fees for payment in advance for subsequent years. Fees are now brought to account in 
the Profit & Loss only if they represent the current years subscriptions. 
Fees relating to subsequent years' subscriptions received in advance have been restated as liabilities 
both short and long term. 
This change of policy resulted in $509,010 being removed from retained earnings in the equity area 
to the liability section of the accounts in the 2016 year. These have then be moved to subscriptions 
in future years as they become due. 
This policy has been applied for 2017 and all subsequent years. 

NOTE 2: DEPRECIATION OF FIXED ASSETS 
Computers, office furniture and equipment are written off over their estimated useful lives using the 
straight-line method of depreciation. 

NOTE 3: INVENTORIES 
Inventories are stated at the lower of cost or net realisable value. 

NOTE 4: INCOME TAX 
The club is subject to income tax on certain items of income. No tax payable in respect of the current 
year is shown in the financial statements. Any tax paid on account has been treated as income tax 
refund due to Ulysses Club at balance date. 

NOTE 5: STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
A statement of cash flows has not been prepared as it would not result in a material elaboration or 
extension of information contained in the financial statements. As per Note 1 the financial 
statements have been prepared on a cash basis with the exception of the treatment of non-current 
assets and the introduction of any money owing to or by the club at balance date. 

NOTE 6: GST ADJUSTMENT 
GST liability totalling $25,485.00 was carried forward in the accounts from December 2015. On a 
review of the accounts, it was ascertaining that no GST was payable for previous years and 
accordingly the balance has been offset against retained earnings brought forward. 
2016 Accumulated Surplus before adjustment  $524,804.27 
GST adjustment         $25,485.00 
2016 Accumulated Surplus after adjustment  $550,289.27 



RIDING ON 60



RIDING ON 61



RIDING ON 62



RIDING ON 63



RIDING ON 64



RIDING ON 65

 

Ulysses Club Inc Statement by Members of the Committee 
 
 
 

The committee has determined that the association is not a reporting entity and that 
this special purpose financial report should be prepared in accordance with the 
accounting policies outlined in Note 1 to the financial statements. 

 
 In the opinion of the committee as set out in the accompanying financial report; 
 

1.       Presents a true and fair view of the financial position of  
Ulysses Club Inc as at 31 December 2017 and its performance for the year 
ended on that date. 

 
2.       At the date of this statement, there are reasonable grounds to believe that  

Ulysses Club Inc will be able to pay its debts as and when they fall due. 
 
 

This statement is made in accordance with a resolution of the committee and is 
signed for and on behalf of the committee by: 

 
 
 
 
 
 

...................................................... 
President:     Jen Woods 
 

 
 
 
 

...................................................... 
Treasurer:    John Osborne 

 
 Dated:   27th March 2018 
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u ral Australia have always been a 
supporter of our great Ulysses Club. 

I remember at the Nepean AGM when 
Jon Taylor took me for a ride as sidecar 

passenger in one of these Russian 
machines. We did a few laps around the 

event  lifting the sidecar wheel on many occasions. They have 
now moved their office to a northern NSW town named after this 
machine.... URALa.

I picked up this Sahara test outfit from Sydney 
dealer, Gasoline Motor Co ( Gasoline Ally)where 
Jason was most helpful in showing me the ins & 
outs of this unusual three wheeler. Gasoline Ally 
is another place you must visit to see a plethora of 
bikes old and new in a warehouse type environment 
where us elderly can reminis and even buy those fine old machines 
of yesteryear.

 It was a rainy Sydney Saturday so the ride home on a unfamiliar 
machine was interesting as I kept to the right of the left for this 
wide three wheeler if you know what I mean.  Need to watch out 
for the left guard which protrudes outside the sidecar  Jason told 
me this is a unpopular place for damages. Braking needs to be 
front and back at same time to avoid it pulling to one side. Sitting 
upright and singing “Farewell Aunty Jack” was my initial thought 
along the highway as memories allowed.

Get it dirty those great people from Ural Australia said, a first for a 
test ride. These machines are tough and even come with a shovel 
so you can dig yourself out of it. They come with tyre pump, a 
huge tool kit, spare wheel , jerry can and if you want, a rifle 
holder. These are accessories and  features from the war 
days in which the origin of this outfit was born. The original 
still working factory is near a famous Russian mount range 
called “The Urals”. Some major components are made by 
others though. 

Initially a little bumpy & clunky on the road and typical 
BMWobbly boxer engine but as we became accustomed 
things settled down on the comfy seat built for two. Enough 
get up and go in the city on the motorways and country roads 
along the Nepean NSW river. The turning circle is very good but you 
have just got to ensure the third wheel stays down unless your passenger is 
a thrill seeker.
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Be prepared for UDF  (Ural Delay Factor)  when you are out and 
about, to be stopped anywhere anytime by anyone and admired 
& asked questions of this war like machine. You quickly become 
an ambassador for these go anywhere three wheeling three 
person (or two) modern going but old looking URAL machines. 
Comments I did receive were, it’s ugly, its rugged, it’s funny 

looking and it looks old.  Beauty is in the eye 
of the beholder after all and they do come in 

many other colours.

One ride took me to outback rural areas 
over bumps jumps and mud holes which 
were well handled by the Sahara with 
its fuel injected engine, 4 speed gearbox 
(plus reverse), triple Brembro disc brakes 
and rugged looking bullet proof frame. 
These modern improvements have 
made this latest model on par with other 
adventure bikes yet keeping the original 
looks with better reliability now. The 
URALS have changed to bring them into 
the 21st Century and that is a good thing 
including push button electric start.

Over some shuddering corrugations 
on a dirt road we vibrated and were 
shaken but not stirred enough to be 

uncomfortable. It just keeps going and does 
not matter what you throw at it on the your 
adventure.
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Passenger has plenty of leg space in the sidecar with the 
seat & back being very comfortable with padding. Sidecar 
has suspension/disc brake/ grab rail/ light & power socket 
plus its own spring underneath.
 
This is an adventure machine with much boot space plus 
three luggage racks so would be great for an overnighter 
or a trip to the next Ulysses AGM with your partner or even 
your pet dog. Go off road with our adventure bike branch 
or join the local sidecar club near you which are becoming 
more popular.

The URALs have had it tough in the past but after riding 
one, seeing several videos on how they test them (even their 
company accountant does testing) and now with updated 
modern features these outfits are a serious machine for a 
fun time.

Dimensions (L x W x H) 2580 x 1700 x 1100 mm 
Wheelbase 1470 mm
Seat Height 785 mm
Sidecar Trunk Capacity 83 ltr
Road Clearance 140 mm
Dry Weight 332 kg
Recommended max Speed 115km/hr  Displacement  
 749 cc
Engine OHV Air-cooled, four stroke,  
 two cylinder                       
Valves per cylinder 2
Bore & Stroke 78 x 78 mm
Max output (hp) 41 @ 5500 rpm
Max torque (Nm) 56.9 @ 4300 rpm                           
Gearbox 4 forward, 1 reverse, 
 shaft drive
Final drive ratio 4.62
Alternator Denso, 55 Amp, 770 Wt                  
Fuel 95-98 Octane, unleaded
Fuel consumption 13-15km/ltr
Fuel tank capacity 19 ltr
Fuel Reserve Approx. 3.8 ltr
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Escape cold weather at Coral Coast Tourist Park  
 

108 Robinson Street Carnarvon 99411438 
info@coralcoastpark.com 

Just a short walk from the town centre Byo swag, tent, camper caravan,  
bus Or stay onsite in a cabin.

For other accomodation call the visitors  Centre 99411146 info@carnarvon.org.au
Breakfast available Saturday Sunday Monday  Dinner available Saturday Sunday  

Saturday ride to Rocky Pool & Gascoyne Junction
Sunday ride to The Blowholes

 
REGISTRATION: $10 includes cloth patch
For more info call : Chris 0419919275 or Peter 
0427509067

For rego form email: compland@dodo.com.au
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Restoring not one, but two Honda XLV 750Rs

Have you ever considered rebuilding an older and 
neglected bike, with the thought of restoring it to new 
or near new condition?  

Well that is just what brothers, Peter and Colin Tregonning, 
along with Peter’s son-in-law Rob, embarked on.  A mission to 
restore not one, but two fabulous old 1985 model HONDA XLV 
750R adventure bikes. 

This whole exercise began almost by accident…..     
Colin Tregonning, who lives in the UK, but visits brother Peter 
in Australia each year in December to partake of some good 
riding conditions over the summer months, has a friend in 
Lilydale (Vic), who had intended this task.

However, poor health intervened and in Dec 2016, Colin 
purchased the “two bikes” – consisting of numerous boxes of 
nuts, bolts, wiring looms, bits and pieces, some wheels, seats, 
handlebars, fuel tanks and two bare frames. Colin intended 
one for himself and the other for his brother Peter.

By today’s standards, the Honda XLV 750R is not recognised at 
the forefront of performance adventure bikes.  
However, they were innovative for their era, with shaft drive, 

good balance, and uncanny handling and performance 
from the 750 V-twin engine bearing the hallmarks of Honda 
reliability.  These bikes were to be the forerunners to the 
Honda range of adventure bikes to follow, including the famed 
“Africa Twin”.

For these two brothers, the real challenge lay ahead.  Initially 
it was determined to get all nuts, bolts and other relevant 
pieces re-plated, to make them all shiny new. Next was the 
cleaning of the frames and wheels for powder coating.

But with Colin returning to England, Peter was left with a still 
very daunting task.   Enter Peter’s son-in-law  Rob, whose 
Melbourne engineering workshop proved to be the ideal venue 
for the next stage of this dual restoration project.

At this point, the seemingly insurmountable challenge became 
a whole lot easier with the discovery of the original Honda 
workshop manuals on-line.  A quick download had the job 
moving ahead again.

Very soon, Peter was travelling from his home in Torquay (Vic) 
to Rob’s workshop every few weekends to keep the project 
moving forward. As the months ticked by, the bikes slowly but 
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surely began to take shape.  As the bikes were not in identical condition to begin 
with, it became apparent that one bike would be completed before the other.

But after 12 months of fairly solid toil by Peter and Rob, and the return visit of 
Colin to Australia in December 2017, the “re-launch” of the “A” bike took place.  
The bike initially performed beautifully, in-keeping with its revitalised appearance. 
However a “miss” was soon detected, and after a bit of detective work, a faulty (or 

worn out) magneto was diagnosed.  Replacement magnetos (two) were installed in 
the bikes and Bike “A” is now a regular in the hands of Colin – often seen around the 

vicinity of the Great Ocean Road.

After due consideration of all possible options, it has been decided by to make some minor 
modifications to Bike “B” with a view to converting it to a café racer.

Peter, Colin and Rob all admit that at times the project appeared doomed for one reason or another.  But with perseverance 
and some plain hard work, not to mention those on-line workshop manuals, the task of completing these dual restorations 
was eventually completed in early 2018.

 Peter Tregonning lives in Torquay (Vic) and is a long-time friend of National Vice President – Peter Baulch 
#27672, and is a potential new member to Ulysses Club (and Geelong Branch).    

Have you ever considered rebuilding an 
older and neglected bike, with the thought of 

restoring it to new or near new condition?  
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How do you put into words a ride of approximately 4000kms, 
with a group of eight other bikes (12 people) in a country 
where the scenery is stunning and forever changing, where 
there are road rules but they are not policed so you can 
‘almost’ ride as you like?  I will try . . . . . . . 

I was born and raised in South Africa but moved to Australia 
(from Canada) in 1985. Now living in Brisbane, Queensland 
and having been a bike rider and member of Ulysses for 
approximately 11 years, loving every minute of it and riding 
often, I have built up enough skills to join my two brothers 
and six of their friends on an annual ride (The Big Pull) which 
they have been doing for the past 16 years. I was invited 
to join the group in 2017 – the first lady rider they had ever 
had – so I felt extremely privileged. My son, Cameron, who 
currently lives in the UK, also joined this epic ride which 
follows almost the same route each year.

Two days before we headed off on our journey I attended 
the Johannesburg North Ulysses meeting. I had been to their 
meeting two years previously so I knew Alan, the president, 
plus a few of the other members.  They were so happy to see 
me and made my son and his wife and I so welcome.  

Before this story continues, there are a number of things I will 
mention which are very different to riding in Australia:

Besides the roads being in excellent condition there is no 
worry about animals on the road, which allows you to ride at 
speed quite safely. 

The shoulders of the highways are wide which allows 
motorists to move over, which they readily do, when they see 
you coming up behind them.

The speed limit – in SA it’s 120km/hr but most of the time one 
travels at speeds above this. 

Another thing is when you fill up with petrol, which is about 
$1.47, the service stations are not self service and you are 
allowed to sit on your bike while it is being filled for you.

We left Johannesburg on Saturday 11 November with me on a 
Honda Blackbird, which belongs to my brother Mike, and Cam 
on a borrowed Fireblade. The other guys rode BMW GSs, a 
Triumph Tiger and a BMW GTL Exclusive 1649cc.

We headed south-west along Highway 1 through 
Bloemfontein, Colesberg, and Hanover to Richmond in the 
Little Karoo,  where we stopped for the first night.  What a 
country of contrasts South Africa is, and so similar to Australia. 

On Day 2 we continued south west on Highway 1 through 
Beaufort West and Laingsburg and stopped at the small 
town of Matjiesfontein.  This historical town was founded in 
1884 by the legendary Scottish railway man, James Douglas 
Logan. The double-storey Milner Hotel was built in the early 
stages of the Boer War and was used as a military hospital 
with the turrets of the hotel used as a lookout post. The 
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grandeur of Matjiesfontein stretches back to a heyday when 
the village was a fashionable health spa that attracted visitors 
from all over the world, including Lord Randolph Churchill 
(father of Winston), Cecil John Rhodes, Rudyard Kipling and 
of course, Olive Schreiner.In 1968 David Rawdon purchased 
Matjiesfontein Village.  He renovated the hotel and renamed 
it the Lord Milner Hotel and today it is a popular tourist stop 
en-route through the spectacular Karoo to the stunning 
mountainous and valley vineyards in the areas around 
CapeTown.  

The following two nights were spent in Blouberg Strand West 
of Cape Town.  This gave me the opportunity to meet up with 
the Cape Boland President and his wife, Louwtjie and Susanne 
Hoon.  What a delightful couple! We chatted for a couple 
hours about our respective branches and said goodbye with 
invitations on both sides to come and visit.

A visit to Cape Point Lighthouse in the Cape of Good Hope 
Nature Reserve was a must and once again the ride and 
scenery there was spectacular with the rock formations on 
the left and the Atlantic Ocean on the right making it difficult 
to concentrate on the narrow winding road. This southerly 
point is where the Atlantic and Indian Oceans meet and often 
the weather is misty which was the case on this day which 
unfortunately made it difficult to witness the meeting of these 
great oceans.

Day 4 we headed off in drizzly conditions through the winery 

areas of Stellenbosch and on to Franschoek for coffee. This 
beautiful and trendy town is one of the oldest towns of the 
Republic of South Africa. Franschhoek boasts some of South 
Africa’s ‘Top 100’ restaurants and has become known as the 
country’s Culinary Capital. We continued up the twisty narrow 
Franschoek Pass and down the other side stopping at the 
Theewaterskloof dam which is one of the water sources for 
Cape Town and was critically low at 22%.  From here we 
headed down Sir Lowry’s Pass to Gordon’s Bay for lunch.  Food 
in South Africa is plentiful, very good and with the exchange 
rate (R100 to $10), very cheap.

We picked up Route 316 at Caledon and continued on to 
Napier, Bredasdorp and Arniston.  At this stage the weather 
had changed and we rode in drizzle and then heavy rain as 
we approached Arniston, a small settlement on the South 
Coast close to Cape Agulhas, the southern most tip of Africa. 
Arniston is named after one of the many ships which got 
wrecked in the 1800’s along this stretch of the South African 
coastline having become victims of ‘The Cape of Storms’.

Day 5 took us up the east coast towards Knysna via the 
peaceful historic town of Montagu which is also the start of 
Route 62 and offers spectacular scenery and mountain passes, 
orchards, vineyards and healing hot mineral springs. Heading 
out of the mountains and back towards the ocean we headed 
down the magnificent Outiniqua Pass to the Yellowood Lodge 
in Knysna, where we spent the night.  Evidence of the fires 
from early in the year was still visible and a reminder of the 

Besides the roads being in excellent 
condition there is no worry about 
animals on the road, which allows 
you to ride at speed quite safely. 
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devastation the picturesque town suffered.

Day 6 dawned sunny and clear and the perfect temperature 
of around 24 deg and we took the magnificent Garden Route 
eastwards up the coast towards Port Elizabeth, East London and 
finally Kidd’s Beach.

Day 7 we headed east on Highway 2 with Kokstad as our 
destination for the night.  It had been snowing in the 
Drakensberg ranges and the route we wanted to take via Mt 
Fletcher and Matatiele were snowed in, which for November 
is almost unheard of.  After much deliberation common sense 
prevailed and we decided to take an alternate route via 
Butterworth, Idutywa (pronounced Idutchwa) and Mthatha.  
Riding through these busy towns requires the utmost 
concentration as the traffic, pedestrian and animal activity is 
intense. There was police presence in the town of Butterworth 
and they pulled us over asking each of us for our driver’s 
license.  They did not seem interested in the fact that mine and 
Cameron’s were quite different, nor in the fact that 7 of the 9 
bikes did not have registration plates! I guess they felt they had 
to be seen to be doing their job so after chatting for about 20 
minutes they were happy to wave us goodbye

This day had to be the most exhilarating of the trip due to the 
excellent road conditions and great visibility.  The road follows 
a route across the top of grassy hills that makes you feel as 
if you are riding on top of the world, so that, combined with 
the vision of the peaks of the Drakensberg mountains in the 
distance covered in snow, is extremely difficult to put into words. 
However, it was the only days riding where we had to be super 
vigilant about animals on the road as the cattle, horses, sheep 
and goats graze freely along the sides of the road.   Three of our 
bikes at the front who were ahead of the rest of us had a very 
near miss with a cow.  Fortunately, though, the experience and 
expertise of the riders avoided what could have been a disaster. 

Kokstad, situated on the outer slopes of the Drakensberg 
mountains, is the fastest growing town in the KwaZulu province 
of Natal and is 1,302m above sea level. The security in all guest 
houses in the towns we stayed was high – 6ft high walls with 
razor wire and electric gates.

Day 8’s destination was the small, picturesque town of Clarens, 
situated in the foothills of the Maluti Mountains in the Free State 
province.  It is nicknamed the “Jewel of the Eastern Free State” 
and was established in 1912, being named after the town of 
Clarens in Switzerland where exiled Paul Kruger spent his last 
days. 

I lived the dream for these past 8 days and felt very sad that 
the following day we would be heading the final 336kms to 
Johannesburg. But all good things come to an end including this 
story.

All I can say is, if ever you want to experience some seriously 
fantastic bike riding, head to southern Africa!

Louise Rose #49168

President, Northern Gateway Branch
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Telemachus  
Medal double-up
Sharryn Nankervis and Christine Moore have each been 
awarded the Telemachus Medal for their service to the 
Central Highlands Branch.  They are the first recipients 
of the award in the Branch, which celebrated its 20th 
Anniversary in 2016.  

Sharryn is now in the eleventh year of her Presidency 
(2007/2008 – 2017/2018), while Christine is in her 
thirteenth year as Secretary (2003/2004 – 20014/2015, 
2017/2018).  By any measure their contribution and 
service to the Branch have been beyond normal 
expectations and both Sharryn and Christine have had 
a significant, positive impact on the Branch.  

Sharryn’s presidency has seen a revival of spirit 
within the Branch and a boost in morale.  Through 
her personality, enthusiasm, friendly open manner, 
energetic leadership and welcoming approach she has 
rekindled enthusiasm within the Branch and played a 
significant role in presenting a welcoming and inclusive 
group to newcomers.  She has changed the culture 
within the Branch to a more gender inclusive group 
with a very “broad church” approach to involvement in 
motorcycling.  This has meant that more women and 
novice riders have felt comfortable within the Branch.  
She has championed the use of electronic and social 
media to improve communication among members, 
which has meant that less active members can still 
keep in touch with the Branch and that dissemination 
of information is much more effective.  She has 
encouraged development of different types of Branch 
rides to ensure all members have an opportunity to ride 
with confidence and within their skill level.  This has 
been an important measure to retain new members.

Sharryn has also acted as 3BA Christmas Appeal Toy 
Run coordinator for the last four years; this event 
raises over $20,000 (cash and in-kind) each year for 
local disadvantaged members of the community.  She 
has, at times, also  carried the additional duty of 
newsletter editor whilst president.  This reflected her 
commitment to reviving interest in the newsletter as 
a communication medium.  Not only did she provide 
editorial leadership for several editions she provided 
most of the copy.  Sharryn has also broadened 

participation in decision-making and 
planning within the Branch by including “extra” 
committee members where individuals have expressed 
an interest in particular aspects of Branch management.

As Branch Secretary Christine has worked diligently and 
with great attention to detail to set up administrative 
processes and functions in order to ensure the Branch 
runs smoothly and in a manner that is compliant with 
the Club constitution.  Her objective has been to ensure 
that members are able to enjoy their association with 
the Branch, in a sense oblivious to the administrative 
machinery required for the Branch to function.  She 
has fulfilled her role in way that has been thorough, 
efficient, effective and unobtrusive, and has been 
motivated by a desire for members to feel the Branch 
as “family” and to further the objectives of the Club.  
She has taken on a series of roles far wider than 
would normally be expected of a Branch secretary and 
has been concerned with all aspects of the life of the 
Branch.  In addition to secretarial duties as specified 
in the Constitution, her roles have included social 
function organiser; caterer; fundraising organiser; 
logistics and transportation; provision of gifts and 
cards for milestones, health issues and bereavement; 
archivist and record keeper; organiser of awards and 
prizes; welfare monitor; contributor to organisation and 
running of charity events such as “Cops ‘n’ Kids”, “Very 
Special Kids”, and annual 3BA Christmas Appeal Toy 
Run.  She has taken on these multiple roles voluntarily, 
willingly and selflessly, with a maternal and personal 
touch.  Importantly, Christine has ably supported the 
President in working to improve Branch morale.

The Central Highlands Branch is proud of its 
Telemachus Medal winners and expresses its thanks for 
the service and commitment Sharryn and Christine have 
demonstrated over more than a decade.

Brad Mitchell #64625
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P R O D U C T  R E V I E W S

HELMETLOK seems to have been around for years, 
mostly because it has.

In fact its second generation was launched in 2012, now 
it has reached Gen III status.

It is still a carabiner-style lock, with a four digit 
programmable locking mechanism, 

designed to lock your helmet to 
your bike. 

While the new version 
shares componentry 
with the Gen II 
version (including 
the zinc alloy locking  
mechanism), its 
designers corrected 
one shortcoming that 
became apparent 
with the passing of 

time.

Numbers on the combination lock gradually wore away, 
making them difficult to see and operate.

To counter this, the numbers are double engraved and 
then painted, a process that prevents the numbers 
rubbing off.

It remains very easy to use, just open the lock, slip the 
carabiner through your helmet’s D-Shackle, attach it to 
your bike and lock it.  Included is a clever little cable 
that allows you to lock your jacket to your bike as well. 
Sounds funny, but the instructions make sense.

Compact enough to fit in your pocket or on your belt 
loop, HELMETLOK Gen III is available from Rocky Creek 
Designs for $32.50, cheap insurance by any measure.

Gary Warner #65262

THIRD VERSION  
OF A GOOD IDEA

“Compact enough 
to fit in your 
pocket or on 

your belt loop, 
HELMETLOK Gen 

III is available 
from Rocky Creek 

Designs”
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My first thought, when I was invited to review a device for 
mounting mobile phones on motorbikes, was: What’s the 
point? I can listen to music with the phone in my pocket or the 
top box, I don’t want to make or take phone calls, and I prefer 
to use paper maps anyway!

But I came to like the SP Connect mount. In fact, I now think 
it is essential for anyone interested in not getting a speeding 
ticket, or in not getting lost, and for Ulysses ride leaders in 
general.

I ride a 2012 Honda Goldwing, and the bride and I use Sena 
SMH10 Bluetooth headsets to talk to each other and listen to 
music from my iPhone. Previously I would just stuff the phone 
in my pocket, but having it mounted on the handlebar enables 
me to make much more use of its capabilities.

The SP Connect mount consists firstly of a phone case that is 
relatively slim and appears to offer good protection. One half 
of the mounting system is on the back of the case; the other 
half is mounted on the bike. Cases are available for all iPhones 
from 5 through to X, and a handful of Samsung phones. For 
other phones, a stick-on “universal interface” is coming soon.

The SP Connect Moto Bundle, which includes the case, a 
transparent weatherproof cover and a handlebar mount, 
retails for $129.95. Because the handlebar mount won’t fit on 
the Goldwing’s odd-shaped bars, I also got a Ballhead Mount 
($14.95) to attach to the RAM mount on my left handlebar. I 
was saving the RAM mount for a cup holder or ashtray but the 
phone mount won out.

Once the mount is on the bike, attaching the phone is simple: 
just push it on, turn it 90 degrees and it’s securely locked in 
place. Hundreds of kilometres on the worst roads I could find 
failed to dislodge it. Using the phone for navigation or even 
music chews up the battery, so I connected it to a power 
socket in the Wing’s glovebox. 

With the iPhone 8 paired with the Sena headset I can listen 
to music, watch the Google Map unfold on the phone, and 
be interrupted every now and then by a sweet voice advising 
me to “Turn right in 200 metres”. This is very handy in an 
unfamiliar city! And, with the snap-on weatherproof cover in 
place, it is usable in rain or shine.

But after a rather robust debate at our monthly branch 
meeting about the appropriate speed at which to travel on a 
group ride, I discovered an app that makes the SP Connect a 
no-brainer. Everyone knows that the speedo on their bike or 
car is out of whack by a certain amount; the trick is to know 
by how much.

There are multiple apps for iPhones and Android phones that 
give a readout of your correct speed as calculated by the 
phone’s GPS. I chose one called Speedometer 55 because 
of its good reviews and its versatility. Not only does it give 
a constant digital readout of speed, it can also keep a log of 
your trip, including speed and altitude at any time, average 
speed, top speed (uh-oh!), distance, etc., and plot your route 
on a map. 

But the standout feature of Speedometer 55 is the digital 
readout of correct speed. I found the Goldwing’s speedo reads 
4 km/h fast around town, 7 km/h fast on the highway and 8 
km/h fast on the freeway. In other words, if I set the Wing’s 
cruise control to 118 km/h I’ll be doing exactly 110 km/h. 
Invaluable!

SP Connect also has a dozen other ways to mount phones on 
motorbikes, pushbikes and in cars along with a stack of cost-
saving “bundles”. sp-connect.com.au.

Ian Paterson #42184

SERMON ON THE MOUNT



SOFT SHELL BLACK JACKETS MENS $95.00
Soft Shell Charcoal Jacket. 100% Bonded 
Polyester Outer. Knit fabric bonded with 
micro fleece lining. Wind flap, chin guard 
and stand up collar. Mens  S, M, L, XL, 2XL, 
3XL, 5XL. 

SOFT SHELL BLACK JACKETS LADIES $95.00
Soft Shell Charcoal Jacket. 100% Bonded 
Polyester Outer. Knit fabric bonded with mi-
cro fleece lining. Wind flap, chin guard and 
stand up collar. Ladies 8-10, 12-14, 16-18, 
20-22, 24-26

Ladies Butterfly Polo $32.00
New Style Ladies Polo shirt. White with 
black trim and Ulysses Butterfly design on 
top left side. Sizes 8-24

Ladies Butterfly T-Shirt  $25.00
New Style V-Neck Cotton/Poly T-Shirt 
in Sky Blue Marle colour. Featuring the 
Ulysses Butterfly design on the front. 
Sizes 8-22

HI VIS Safety Vest

$26.95
Hi Vis Lime Green safety vest with zipper 
front. Old Man Logo printed on back. 100% 
Polyester tricot for durability. Complies 
with Standards AS/NZS 1906.4.2010 & AS/
NZS 4602.1.2011 Day/Night effective DTM 
self-fabric binding. Utility pockets at sides. 
Available in L, XL, 2LX, 3XL, 4XL, 5XL

Backpack $49.95
Black/Charcoal Back Pack with 
Old Man logo
On front. 28 litre capacity
600D polyester with latex rubber 
backing
2 separate storage compartments 
Padded iPad compartment 
Contoured padded mesh back 
panels.
Quick release side compression straps, mesh drink bottle 
pocket and zippered side accessory pocket. Heavy Duty 
Zippers, rubber protection feet and mesh backed padded 
quick grip handle. Rubber headphone exit port on front 
compartment.
Dimensions: 32cm Wide x 44cm Height x 20cm Deep

See Sizing chart for half chest measurement guide

ULYSSES CLUB NECK TIE 
 $24.00
A stylish way to represent 
your Club with this Black 
Satin Tie featuring the Old 
Man Logo.
 

TRAVEL MUG $9.50  
Stainless steel double 
walled mug 
Capacity 420ml 
 Size 184x125mm
Ulysses logo laser 
engraved 
Stainless steel outside 
and plastic inside 

FOR MORE INFORMATION
Call the Administration Office 1300 134 123
or email: administration@ulysses.org.auAUTUMN gear shop

STICKER - MC AWARE   $3.50
Motorcycle Aware Driver.
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ULYSSES CLUB NECK TIE 
 $24.00
A stylish way to represent 
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TRAVEL MUG $9.50  
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walled mug 
Capacity 420ml 
 Size 184x125mm
Ulysses logo laser 
engraved 
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Call the Administration Office 1300 134 123
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STICKER - MC AWARE   $3.50
Motorcycle Aware Driver.

TOURING BADGE  $5.50
Members travelling overseas will be 
recognised as an Australian Ulysses 
member when wearing this logo. 28mm x 
28mm x 3mm thick.

PATCH TOURING   $6.00
Members travelling overseas will be 
recognised as an Australian Ulysses 
member when wearing this logo. 10cm 
X 9.5cm.

STICKER TOURING   $4.00
Touring Logo - Be recognised as an 
Australian Ulysses member overseas! 
Square sticker   10.5cm x 
10.5cm.

BALLOONS $5.00
Mixed Pack of 10 with Black & 
white balloons with the Old Man 
Logo printed on them. Available in 
AIR or HELIUM packs.

TOURING PATCH, STICKER & BADGE COMBO DEAL! GET ALL THREE FOR JUST $10.00

NEW LOOK BELT BUCKLE  
$39.50 Small  
$42.50 Large 
3D antique Sliver with textured black 
background. Small fits both size belts.  
Small is 70mm x 50mm
Large is 80mm x 60mm

Large fits regular belt only

REGULAR BELT- Black & Brown leather 
$35.00
REGULAR BELT- Black & Brown leather 
$35.00 Leather Belt with Old Man Logo 
and Ulysses printed along belt. fits both 
size Ulysses buckles. 
Black Sizes:  S-34˝ • M-36˝ • L-38˝ • 
XL-40˝ • 2XL-42˝• 3XL-44˝ • 4XL-46˝ • 
5XL-48˝ • 6XL-50˝• 7XL-52˝ • KING 54˝  
Brown Sizes:  S-34˝ • M-36˝ • L-38˝• 
XL-40˝

SCARF $14.00
Keep warm in winter with a Ulysses Club 
Polar Fleece Scarf.

SMALL LEATHER BELT

$35.00
Black embossed Leather Belt 30mm 
width. Fits small buckle. 
Sizes Sm 34” – 3XL 44” 
*Buckle sold separately

CANVAS BAG  $27.00
Black Canvas Tote bag. Clip down at front 
with velcro & zip pockets, compartments 
inside and out. Long Strap. 300mm wide 
x 300mm high.

FOR MORE INFORMATION
Call the Administration Office 1300 134 123
or email: administration@ulysses.org.au

TO ORDER
Use the form on the back of your Riding On mailing sheet or place your 
order on the club website at www.ulyssesclub.org
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BRACES - REG & LARGE  $32.00
Braces, black with Old Man Logo. 
Reg 85cm stretch to 143cm, Large 101cm 
stretch to 173cm. Strap width 3.5cm

MULTI TOOL (Leatherman Style) $27.00
Ulysses Club Multi Tool with 10 
attachments and belt loop.
An essential item for any Handyman or 
Lady!

STUBBY HOLDER - BLACK OR PINK  $7.50
Keep your drinks cold with the Ulysses Club 
Stubby Holder. 
Displaying the Old Man Logo and Bike 
artwork

ULYSSES CLUB WATER 
BOTTLE 

$9.00
This new 560ml Water Bottle 
is great to take on rides. 
Featuring taste free stainless 
steel with drinking straw. 
Strong but light. 235mm x 
70mm.

HIP FLASK $26.50
Stainless Steel hip flask with laser etched 
Old Man Logo

LUGGAGE TAG  $2.00
Ulysses Luggage Tag with Old Man Logo. 
105mm x 64mm. A great way to person-
alise your luggage

STICKER STRIP   $3.50
Sticker Reflective. 5 x 35mm round 
stickers.

FOR MORE INFORMATION
Call the Administration Office 1300 134 123
or email: administration@ulysses.org.auAUTUMN gear shop

RUGBY TOP $56.00
Black Polyester/cotton knit fabric with 
collar and ribbed cuffs. “Ulysses Club” 
embroidered on left chest.  
Sizes Sml-2XL

R I D I N G  O N  80



RIDING ON 4

 ww

BRACES - REG & LARGE  $32.00
Braces, black with Old Man Logo. 
Reg 85cm stretch to 143cm, Large 101cm 
stretch to 173cm. Strap width 3.5cm

MULTI TOOL (Leatherman Style) $27.00
Ulysses Club Multi Tool with 10 
attachments and belt loop.
An essential item for any Handyman or 
Lady!

STUBBY HOLDER - BLACK OR PINK  $7.50
Keep your drinks cold with the Ulysses Club 
Stubby Holder. 
Displaying the Old Man Logo and Bike 
artwork

ULYSSES CLUB WATER 
BOTTLE 

$9.00
This new 560ml Water Bottle 
is great to take on rides. 
Featuring taste free stainless 
steel with drinking straw. 
Strong but light. 235mm x 
70mm.

HIP FLASK $26.50
Stainless Steel hip flask with laser etched 
Old Man Logo

LUGGAGE TAG  $2.00
Ulysses Luggage Tag with Old Man Logo. 
105mm x 64mm. A great way to person-
alise your luggage

STICKER STRIP   $3.50
Sticker Reflective. 5 x 35mm round 
stickers.

FOR MORE INFORMATION
Call the Administration Office 1300 134 123
or email: administration@ulysses.org.auAUTUMN gear shop

RUGBY TOP $56.00
Black Polyester/cotton knit fabric with 
collar and ribbed cuffs. “Ulysses Club” 
embroidered on left chest.  
Sizes Sml-2XL

RIDING ON 5

 ww

3D KEYRING   $5.00
Rubber Keyring with Old Man Logo. 
65mm.

WALLET - Black  $8.50
Ulysses black wallet with the Old Man 
Logo. Velcro fasteners, lots of card 
sections. Stronger stitching and larger 
licence holder.

BIKE BADGE - Brass or Pewter   $21.00
3D Brass - Bike Badge Metal.
60mm, Round, Light weight.

NECK WARMER  $15.00
Black Polar Fleece with Old Man Logo.

TOILETRY BAG - Black   $25.50
Ulysses black wet pack toiletry bag. Compact 
with lots of compartments and a hook to hang 
on the shower door.

UTILITY ROLLS-  
$12.75 
 Black wet pack utility 
roll.  Suitable for travel 
toiletries, small acces-
sories, sewing kit or to 
carry your smaller bike 
tools,  bits and pieces.  
Easily fits pannier, top 
box or tank bag. Four 
separate zippered in-
ternal pockets with one 
large external pocket. 
Unrolled  dimensions: 
67cm x 28cm.  Rolled 
dimensions: 18cm 
x 28cm x 2cm thick 
(empty).

MOBILE PHONE POUCH  

$28.50 Sml $34.00 Lge
Keep your Mobile Phone safe in this handy 
leather pouch. Comes in two convenient sizes 
and secures onto your Ulysses Club Leather 
Belt.
Sml 145mm x 70mm Lge 175mm x 
90mm

GLASSES CASE  $5.50
Glasses Case - Black gloss, hard plastic 
with Old Man Logo on lid.

STICKER 3D - Glow  $9.00
Ulysses Club Round 70mm Iri-
descent Vinyl Sticker with domed 
top. Glows in the Dark!

 special 
price 
 large 

now $17.50 
small 

now $15.00

FOR MORE INFORMATION
Call the Administration Office 1300 134 123
or email: administration@ulysses.org.au

TO ORDER
Use the form on the back of your Riding On mailing sheet or place your 
order on the club website at www.ulyssesclub.org
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FOR MORE INFORMATION
Call the Administration Office 1300 134 123
or email: administration@ulysses.org.auAUTUMN gear shop

SINGLET - Black   $20.00
Black cotton with Small Old Man Logo on 
left chest. Sizes S - 4XL.

SOCKS - Black With Red Writing  $15.00
Ulysses Black Socks. 80% Wool / 20% 
Nylon. Pure Wool Inner Cushion and 
Nylon Outer. Aust made/Aust Wool. Word 
‘Ulysses’ In Red.
Regular (6-10) & Large (11-14)

SHORT SLEEVE T-SHIRT - Black  $19.50
Black SHORT Sleeved Tshirt. Small or 
Large Logo Size S - 4XL.

LONG SLEEVE T-SHIRT - Black   $22.00
Black LONG Sleeved Tshirt. Small or 
Large Logo Size S - 4XL. Black with white 
writing on right sleeve.

BANDANA - Black   $8.00
Ulysses Club Black Bandana,. Ulysses 
Embroidered On Front And Old Man Logo 
Embroidered On The Back. 62cm One 
size fits most.

BEANIE - Black  $12.00
Beanie Black Knitted With Ulysses Logo. 
One Size.

LADIES CAP - Black/Pink  $10.00
Black Cap with Pink Piping. Ulysses writ-
ten in a slant across the front and “Life 
Begins at 40” in pink embroidery on back. 
One Size.

REVERSABLE POLAR FLEECE VEST 
$40.50 
Black reversable vest with Old Man Logo 
on both sides. 100%  
Polar Fleece inner, Polyester outer. Sizes 
Sml – 4XL

CAP - Black  with white piping  $12.00
Black Cap Heavy Brushed Cotton. One 
Size.

See Sizing chart for half chest measurement guide
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FOR MORE INFORMATION
Call the Administration Office 1300 134 123
or email: administration@ulysses.org.au

TO ORDER
Use the form on the back of your Riding On mailing sheet or place your 
order on the club website at www.ulyssesclub.org

LADIES POLO SHIRT - Black with White 
Panels   $29.50
Ladies V-Neck Polo Shirt Black With White 
Panels Cool Dry Polyester. Sizes 8-26

APRON - One Size  $24.50
Black & White Striped Apron with pocket, 
Ulysses Logo & Word “Disgraceful”.

SLOPPY JOE  $38.00 
Fleecy lined with small or large Old Man 
Logo Sml-5XL

RIDING SHIRT  $28.00 
Black high neck long sleeve Unisex  
Sizes XS-4XL

LADIES POLO SHIRT - Black Pink Piping   
$29.50
Ladies V-Neck Polo Shirt Black With Pink 
Piping Cool Dry Polyester. Sizes 8 - 22

MENS POLO SHIRT - Black with Ash 
Panels   $29.50
Mens Black & Ash Polo Shirt Cool Dry 
Polyester Pocket On Left Chest. Sizes 
S - 4XL.

See Sizing chart for half chest measurement guide

KEYSAFE  
CARABINER 

$9.50 

Strong, lightweight and highly 
functional. Keep your keys safe 
with the Ulysses Club Carabiner. 
Featuring a double locking system 
for ease of use.

LADIES MAGENTA COLOUR SLEEVELESS 
SHIRTS   $32.50
Ladies V Neck sleeveless polo shirt. Magenta 
with embroidered Old Man Logo. Sizes 8-20

special 
price 
now 

$17.00 
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PATCH ROUND - Leather Look Embroi-
dered  
Small. 70mm  $6.95
Medium. 100mm  $10.00

HELMET LINER
Black, Pink, Red  $7.90
Light weight washable cotton helmet liner 
with Old Man Logo on each ear. One Size

New Design Fridge Magnet $2.00
70mm x 70mm
White background with Old Man 
Logo and National Phone Number

LAPEL BADGE - Gold or Silver  $5.50
Badge Lapel - Silver for ages 40 - 49 and 
Gold for age 50+

RIDE ON #1 BADGE  $2.00
Stephen Dearnley Memorial Lapel .
All proceeds from sales go to UCARF.

FOLD AWAY LEATHER HAT - BLACK & 
BROWN
$56.00
Leather Hat with white Old Man Logo. 
Fold it up and carry it in a pannier.  
Size S(55cm) – 2XL(63cm)

BUCKET HAT $14.00 
Black Bucket hat and Old Man Logo. 
Size S (56cm), M(58cm) L(60cm) 

NECK WRAPS- Black $16.00.  
With Old Man Logo
At front. One Size. 

Windscreen Sticker $2.00
Old Man Logo sticker for attaching to 
the inside or outside of Windscreen. 
Transparent Background 100mm

FOR MORE INFORMATION
Call the Administration Office 1300 134 123
or email: administration@ulysses.org.auAUTUMN gear shop
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PATCH ROUND - Leather Look Embroi-
dered  
Small. 70mm  $6.95
Medium. 100mm  $10.00

HELMET LINER
Black, Pink, Red  $7.90
Light weight washable cotton helmet liner 
with Old Man Logo on each ear. One Size

New Design Fridge Magnet $2.00
70mm x 70mm
White background with Old Man 
Logo and National Phone Number

LAPEL BADGE - Gold or Silver  $5.50
Badge Lapel - Silver for ages 40 - 49 and 
Gold for age 50+

RIDE ON #1 BADGE  $2.00
Stephen Dearnley Memorial Lapel .
All proceeds from sales go to UCARF.

FOLD AWAY LEATHER HAT - BLACK & 
BROWN
$56.00
Leather Hat with white Old Man Logo. 
Fold it up and carry it in a pannier.  
Size S(55cm) – 2XL(63cm)

BUCKET HAT $14.00 
Black Bucket hat and Old Man Logo. 
Size S (56cm), M(58cm) L(60cm) 

NECK WRAPS- Black $16.00.  
With Old Man Logo
At front. One Size. 

Windscreen Sticker $2.00
Old Man Logo sticker for attaching to 
the inside or outside of Windscreen. 
Transparent Background 100mm

FOR MORE INFORMATION
Call the Administration Office 1300 134 123
or email: administration@ulysses.org.auAUTUMN gear shop

RIDING ON 9

PATCH ROUND CANVAS - Black   $20.00
Back Patch Round. 25cm.

PATCH REFLECTIVE   $20.00
Back Patch. Round Reflective. 25cm.

STICKER REFLECTIVE  
Old Man Logo Sticker Round Reflective
Small 70mm $2.00
Large 190mm $12.00
290mm $13.00
390mm $15.00

PLATE FRAME BLACK- BOTTOM DISPLAY 
$10.00
Number Plate Frame-Plastic/Black. 
The ‘Grow Old Disgracefully’ banner 
is displayed at the bottom (As per 
NSW, ACT, QLD, TAS. RTA plate 
measurements). 185mm wide x 100mm 
high (Reg size as per NSW,ACT,QLD,TAS. 
RTA plate measurements). 185mm wide x 
100mm high.

PLATE FRAME TRAILER / CAR  $10.00
Number Plate Frame - Car & Car Trailer - 
Black Plastic. The ‘Grow Old Disgracefully’ 
banner is displayed at the top. 375mm 
wide x 135mm high.

FLAGS - Designed for decoration only
Mini aerial flag. 280mm x 215mm  
$5.00
Small flag. 720mm x 390mm 
 $13.00
Large flag. 
1800mm x 900mm  
$50.00

FOR MORE INFORMATION
Call the Administration Office 1300 134 123
or email: administration@ulysses.org.au

TO ORDER
Use the form on the back of your Riding On mailing sheet or place your 
order on the club website at www.ulyssesclub.org

NEW 
 CHROME BIKE PLATE COVER $10.00 
Frame size is 185mm wide x 125mm 
high. Suits plate size 180mm wide x 
100mm high Easy to attach, this shiny 
chrome coloured plate cover is a must 
for all proud Ulysses Club members 
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UNISEX AND MEN’S CLOTHING (cm)

ITEM XS Sm M L XL 2XL 3XL 4XL 5XL

Men’s Polo Black/Ash 53 55.5 58 60.5 63 68 73

Unisex Black Riding Shirt Long Sleeve 47 53.5 56 58.5 61 63.5 66 68.5

Unisex Black Tee Long & Short Sleeve 53.5 56 58.5 61 63.5 66 68.5

Sloppy Joe 57.5 60 62.5 65 67.5 70 72.5 75

Reversible Vest 57 59.5 62 64.5 67 69.5 72

Singlet 53.5 56.5 58.5 61 63.5 66 68.5

Soft Shell Jacket MENS 56 58.5 61 635 66 68.5 74.5

Rugby Top 57.5   60   62.5   65  67.5 

Hi-Vis Vest         65 68 71 74 77 80

LADIES CLOTHING (cm)

ITEM 8 10 12 14 16 18 20 22 24 26

Ladies Butterfly Polo 41 43.5 46 48.5 51 53.5 56 58.5 61

Ladies Butterfly Tee 39 41 43.5 45 47 51.5 54 56

Ladies Black/White Polo 46 47 50 52.5 56 57.5 60 64.5 69.5 74.5

Ladies Black/Pink Polo 45 47.5 50 52.5 55 57.5 60 64.5

Ladies Magenta Sleeveless Polo 44 46.5 49 51.5 54 57 60

Soft Shell Jacket LADIES 8-10 
48cm

12-4 
52cm

16-18 
59cm

20-22 
64cm

24-26 
66cm

SIZING CHART BASED ON HALF CHEST MEASUREMENT (cm)

FOR MORE INFORMATION
Call the Administration Office 1300 134 123
or email: administration@ulysses.org.auAUTUMN gear shop
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Members measuring up
If you are ordering an AGM Event shirt (or a Ulysses Club shirt at any time), knowing how to measure yourself up can be a 
problem.

Help is at hand – this is the method recommended by our supplier.

Choose your your favourite and best fitting shirt of the same style.

Lay it out flat, smoothing it with your hands without stretching it.

Measure across from the under arm to the opposite under arm.  This measurement in centimetres is the shirt size.
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Ridden On

David Bell #52884

13/4/1954 - 23/10/2017

David was loved by so many for his infectious laugh, 
wonderful warm sense of humour & generosity 
of spirit. He was an active member who attended 
Fleurieu Branch rides/ socials, Odyssey’s and AGM’s 
and was known as “Buddha”. 

A quiet “gentle giant” of a man, he loved his family 
so very much, and they made lots of beautiful 
memories during his lengthy battle with health 
issues. 

David was mostly a very quiet man, but he had a 
wicked sense of humour and always made us laugh. 
He never had a negative word to say about anyone 
or anything. 

We do miss that beautiful smile and laugh. 

His funeral was attended by many Ulysses members, 
who offered their condolences to his wife Claire and 
brother Keith. 

On behalf of everyone at Fleurieu Branch. 

Barbie Watson #47781

Branch Secretary

 Eric George Fiesley; “Fiz” 
#6907

27/3/1949  - 5/6/2017

Member of Mildura Branch

It is with great sadness that 
we advise all Ulyssians of the 
tragic death of Eric Fiesley, 
affectionately known to all who 
knew him as Fiz.  Eric was 
seriously injured in a collision 
with a motor vehicle whilst doing 
what he loved the most, riding 
his motorcycle.  His injuries 
proved too serious, and despite his few improvements whilst 
in hospital Eric passed away on 5th June 2017, finally reunited 
with his beloved Pammy whom he nursed for years during her 
debilitating disease.

Always an avid motorcyclist, Eric was one of the first members 
to join the Mildura Branch of the Ulysses Club, joining on 
17th May, 1994. Eric was an active member for 23 years, 
attending monthly meetings, participating in monthly rides as 
often as he could and taking on the role as Welfare Officer for 
several years.  Eric enjoyed this position and he will always be 
remembered for giving very sensitive reports on members who 
were sick or injured.  He displayed a strong sense of empathy 
for others.

Eric was a caring and colourful character who always added 
a touch of humour to every meeting. Eric was very interested 
in the quizzes that were published in our monthly newsletter.  
With a Mathematics background, having taught the subject 
at high school level, Eric really enjoyed solving any equations 
that needed solving. He was sometimes referred to as the 
“absent-minded professor” as he would apologise for missing 
meetings that had already been recorded in the minutes or, 
just to be safe, would give his apologies for the next monthly 
meeting, just in case he didn’t get there.  Eric was never too 
up-to-date with technology so was quite thrilled to share 
with fellow members the concept of Bluetooth. He genuinely 
thought he was announcing to the members a new concept 
that none of the members would have heard of, let alone been 
using for quite some time.

Eric was an active member of the Mildura Brass Band and 
community members were entertained by the band, especially 
at the annual Christmas Toy Appeal that his fellow Mildura 
Branch members ran for the Salvation Army.  Eric was also a 
director of the very successful Mildura Workingman’s Club.  

Eric will always be remembered by his friends and fellow-
Ulyssians as a fun-loving, caring, sincere individual who loved 
people.  He is sorely missed by us all and we hope that his 
much adored daughters, Jeni and Sharon, will take comfort 
in knowing that their Dad touched so many lives in such a 
positive way.

Bonny Ward

Welfare Officer, Mildura Branch, Ulysses Club.
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Ridden On

Frederick Alan White #2016   
21/03/1928 to 30/11/2017

Fred White joined the Ulysses Club Sydney branch back in 
the late eighties.  Born in 1928 in Islington, London, Fred 
migrated from England in 1962 and was a keen experienced 
motorcyclist having participated in trials riding in England.  His 
tales of his motorcycling life in Britain were delightful.

He returned to motorcycling in Australia in the 1980s starting 
with an Ariel Square 4, however it spent a lot of time up on 
blocks in the garage so  he added a 1979 BMW R100RS to his 
stable (to be able to finish rides without something breaking 
and to keep up with the lads!).  That was followed for a short 
time by a Suzuki GSXR750 and then a new Honda CBR600 in 
about 2000.  Boy, what a bike when ridden by Fred.  I only 
ever saw the back of it.

Fred was a regular participant of the early Sydney Midweek 
rides. He would come with a packed lunch and enjoyed a 
picnic nearly as much as we enjoyed many a social dinner or 
lunch with Fred and his wife Elizabeth.  Elizabeth died from 
cancer in 1997 and eventually Fred moved to Summerland 
Point on Lake Macquarie, joining fellow escapees from Sydney.  
He continued to ride with the Thursday group and enjoy many 
weekends away with other friends met originally through 
Sydney Branch.   

10 years ago when Fred was 80, he gave up riding when 
he walked away with a bruise after he crashed that same 
machine during a solo ride in the Blue Mountains on a wet 
Bells Line of Road. The bike was a write-off but not Fred. 

Fred had a sailing life as well.  For many years Fred, Elizabeth, 
son Stephen and daughter Nadine sailed trailer sailers in the 
waters of Sydney and the lakes  to the north.  On moving 
to Lake Macquarie he partnered with three other Ulysses 
members to buy an Endeavour 26.  Fred oversaw much of the 
maintenance and improvements over 10 years of competitive 
sailing.  He was the specialist upwind helmsman.   In 2011 
Fred moved to Ballina to be closer to Nadine and her partner 
Andrew.

Fred was active in the Lions Club of Gwandalan during his time 
at Summerland Point.

Fred’s photo was on the cover of Riding On with Nadines’s 
picture in the corner with the caption “Like Father Like 

Daughter”. The cover, from 1996, was to celebrate the 
participation of Ulysses Club members from branches all 
around Australia who welcomed the all-female riders in the 
“Following the Fence Line” ride which raised awareness of the 
need for mammograms and self-examination and raised funds 
for research and the care of women who had experienced 
breast cancer.  During the Ride Nadine had to leave the group 
in South Australia and has fond memories of meeting her dad 
in Ceduna to share the ride to Jindabyne. 

After a wonderful life he spent his final days in comfort in 
Ballina with his family by his side, smiling and joking to the 
end.  Fred is survived by Stephen, Nadine, their partners and 
two grandsons.

George “Jack” Phillips 
#8568 
2/7/1927 – 30/11/2017

Gentleman Jack Phillips set 
out on his final ride on the 
30th November at St Joseph’s, 
Auburn after losing his fight 
with cancer.  

Jack achieved in life all he 
had set out to do.  He raised 
four children and lived to see 
his grandchildren and great 
grandchildren.

Jack was an engineer by 
training, having served an apprenticeship and in later life 
worked as an electrical engineer and at one stage being 
involved in the planning stages of Vales Point Power Station.

He served in our nations Navy on HMAS Vampire and HMAS 
Vendetta.  He eventually left the Navy but remained a member 
of the Royal Australian Naval Reserve and marched on ANZAC 
Day on every possible occasion.

In his fifties, Jack pursued his love of flying firstly gaining 
his Pilot Licence, then Commercial Licence and finally his 
Instructor Certification

Later in life Jack joined the Ulysses Club having several 
different bikes, at the time of his passing owned three BMWs.

Jack will be sadly missed at our Saturday morning coffee 
gatherings.  He was always one of the first to arrive, greeting 
latecomers with a warm smile and a fitting sarcastic remark.  
We are all going to miss that.  Godspeed Jack, safe journey 
ahead, yours was a life well lived.

All at the Ulysses Hills branch wish you an endless winding 
road, a trusty BMW, great cuisine along the way and a glass of 
Guinness at the end of each day.  

Goodbye Gentleman Jack, may you rest in peace and love, we 
thank you for touching our lives.

Barry Lunn #55288 on behalf of his friends at the 
Ulysses Hills Branch.
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John Webster #4345 
30/03/1944 – 
18/01/2018

Tamar Tourers Branch is 
deeply saddened by the 
sudden passing of our 
great mate Professor John 
Webster. 
John was a larger than life 
character, who would keep 
us entertained with his 
stories for hours.  
He was a late starter to 
motorcycling although he 
rode during his early years in Yorkshire, England. 
John attended AGMs at Maryborough, Wodonga and of course 
Launceston. He was the stand out personality during our rides 
to the mainland and was truly loved by all members. 
He was Professor of Architecture at the University of 
Tasmania, was a Fellow of the Planning Institute of Australia 
and a Member of the high powered Tasmanian Resource 
Management Planning Appeals Tribunal. 
But above all he was a great mate.  
John leaves his beautiful wife Wendy and two adult sons, 
Ralph and Mark.

He will be sorely missed.

Tony Benneworth  #45708

Leo Cogdon #26555 

Leo joined Ulysses in 2002, and was a valued member of our 
Branch. 

He was often at our Wednesday coffee mornings and on rides. 

If we hadn’t seen him for a while, when asked, he would 
sometimes say things like “I have been driving taxis in 
Carnarvon” (1000 kms away) or “I decided to take a ride to 
Melbourne” (3400 kms away).  

Not bad for a guy in his eighties! We will miss his smiling face 
and cheerful attitude to life. 

Chris Glover #25012 Warnbro Sound Wanderers 
Branch President.

Marcus (Moose) Haeusler #12901

16/9/1952 – 19/12/2017

Marcus, or Moose, was a gentle giant who was well liked 
in the Yarra Ranges Branch.  Moose passed away at 
Maroondah Hospital on 19th December after a short illness.

Moose was a proud Goldwing owner and previously had 
several older Goldwings.   He attended AGM’s from the mid 
1990’s.  Originally a Melbourne Branch member, he joined 
the Yarra Ranges Branch as soon as he became aware of its 
existence in July 2003.

Moose and wife Lorna were instrumental in our purchase of 
a Goldwing.  They also accompanied us on our first big tour 
to Gold Coast AGM in 2001.

He did several Black Dog Rides, supporting adult depression 
awareness.  He was happiest either on his Wing of having a 
break at a country bakery.

Our thoughts are with Lorna on the loss of such a good 
man.

Geoff and Denise Greenhalgh #21446/7
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Noel “Choc” Stanaway #50306

24/10/1943 – 08/11/2017

Good-bye Choc. A true gentleman loved and respected 
by everyone he met, especially the women. Choc passed 
away in his sleep on the morning of the 8th November 
2017 at home with his family.  Choc had fought cancer of 
the throat and won, but sadly the side effects would take 
him.  

Choc had been riding since he was 17 back in the days of 
the Norton, Triumph  and BSA motorcycles. He rode sports 
bikes, then tourers and also cruisers.  

Married in 1976, we started our riding days together on 
trail bikes in the bush. then progressed to road bikes and 
started the long journeys together that we loved. 

Choc was a member of Sunshine Coast MRA back in 
the 90s and were were Glasshouse Mountains Branch 
members for 12 years and supported the club to the end. 
We attended the AGMs until Choc was no longer able to 
do the long days ride. He loved nothing better than to put 
those leathers on and ride for days. Didn’t matter where, 
just the two of us riding.  Thank you all  for the support 
you have offered me and our three children at this sad 
time.  
Goodbye # 50306.

Denise `Neicey’ Stanaway #53187

Ross “Rosscoe” Anderson #36400

17/6/1955 – 08/01/2018

Ross died tragically in a 2-car collision outside Strathalbyn 
South Australia, which also left his wife Tina in hospital with 
very serious injuries.

Ross was a delightful intelligent man, who was a submariner 
and worked for Defence Australia before retiring. 

Ross had been retired just over 18 months and he loved 
nothing better than to join in on Ulysses rides and events and 
he went on many (often long) cruises around the world with 
Tina. His travel adventures were admired by many. 

Ross was always happy and laid back with a mischievous grin. 
Anyone who was lucky enough to share a conversation with 
Ross, was very well entertained. 

Ross was also a member of “The Silent Service Motorcycle 
Club” (for sub-mariner veterans) and a member of 
“Submarines Association Australia”, who gave him the 
nickname of “Runt” (due to his stature).

He loved riding his shiny black Moto Guzzi and some of his 
mates called him “the travelling toolbox”, as he always had his 
Swiss Army knife and many other tools available at all times, to 
cover all eventualities. 

Ross leaves behind his wife Tina, daughter Kirsty, grand-
daughter Morgan and many, many friends. Our hearts go out 
to Tina for a full recovery from her injuries as she comes to 
terms with the loss of a wonderful man. 

On behalf of everyone at Fleurieu Branch 

Barbie Watson #47781 Branch Secretary
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Members Classifieds

 FOR SALE   
2002 Shadow trailer 
Good condition, near new tyres. 
It has had ittle use, and always 
kept garaged. 
Located at Ashmore, Gold Coast 
Queensland  
Registered to june 2018 
Price $2000 or nearest offer 
Contact Barry 0438147244 
Email bazza.d@hotmail.com

See It To Believe It
2003 Honda Goldwing trike with genuine 45,858 kms on its odometer.

Converted by Oz-Trike in 2012, using a Champion frame from the USA, front 
wheel raked an extra 5 degrees for better highway speed stability. 1800cc 
engine with starter motor reverse. Colour-keyed 
trailer is included in this outstanding combination, 
both always kept in the closed shed.

Offered by the estate of the late Kevin James 
#38347.

Located at Cadell, SA – You could pick it up while 
attending the AGM Event! Price: $42,000 ONO.

Contact: Leanne 0459 061 054

2003 Honda ST-1300 in showroom condition. 
One owner, first registered 2003, has done 
74,000kms and is registered till June 2018. 
Comes with a genuine Honda top box and 
American Cei Bailey screen (original screen as 
new also supplied).  
Located in Launceston, Tasmania. 
Asking price $7000, 
Reluctant sale – I’m giving up after 66 years of 
living the dream.  
John Leeming #18493 
Ph. 0407 526 287  
Email: johnshirleytas@gmail.com 

2007 C50 Suzuki Boulevard 800 Cruiser 
An accident with the quality of the photos does not do full justice to this 
outstanding motorcycle. 
Low Kilometres, only 25,000 clocked.  
I am listing this bike on behalf of my 87 year old father. 
In excellent condition, always garaged, it is equipped with a windscreen, 
saddle bags and backrest  
New battery, tyres near new and Victorian Registration till June 
2018, FS280 
This cared-for bike is located in Warrnambool, Victoria.

Asking price is $5200 
Murray #13774 contact on 0457 828694  after 6pm please. 

For Sale 
Honda Goldwing GL 1800 Trike. 
2010 Model 
Trike conversion by Australian 
Trikes  
67600 Klms. Reg 6/17 
Tow bar, RWC, Graphite Black  
$45,000.00 
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FOR SALE   
2010 Kawasaki Vulcan 900 Classic Cruiser. 
This bike while 8 years old has travelled only 4675 kilometres. It is fitted with 
a windshield, saddle bags, sissy bar, sports exhaust and comes with 12 months 
registration. Also includes unused standard exhaust. Located in Mittagong, NSW, 
the bike is in excellent condition and is a reluctant sale at $8300

Contact John Dayball #58704 
Ph. 0412806202 
Email. jgdayball@hinet.net.au

2015 Detour camper trailer
Excellent condition inside & out. Queen mattress, 
electric brakes, 10” alloy wheels, 360 degree swivel 
hitch. 
2.3m x 1.3 x 1.0m. Plus 2.4m annexe 
Canvas: 12oz roof, 10oz walls. Tare 190kg, Gross 
300kg 
Located Goondiwindi , Qld.  
Call Ken Baker #40070 on  0417 535 019 
$5500 negotiable.

2016 Yamaha Bolt XVS950 CUE 
Purchased 30/12/2016, has just 
5000km on the dial. 
New price $13,000, will sell for $9000 
Registered for 12 months. 1X-9XZ 
with Roadworthy Certificate. 
One female owner from new, handles 
really well. Always garaged. 
Located at Leopold, Victoria  
Please contact or leave a message if 
interested - 0408 599 578 
Patricia #35712

Motor Cycle Trailer – towing made easy 
Unique fold up 8 x 4 flat top trailer 
Manufactured by Easy Trailer. model number 
850TAB. 
Almost new, ideally suited to transport motor 
cycles. 
Has all the advantages of a large trailer but 
takes up a very small amount of space when 
not in use.  
Comes with motorcycle rails, wheel locks and 
other sundry accessories.  
Asking price $600 negotiable. 
Pick up in Balgowlah, NSW, or as negotiated. 
Contact Grant #5179, on 0403 070 770

ScalaRider Teamset helmet mounted 
intercom. Wireless Bluetooth 
headsets (2) - FM radio, cell phone 
compatible, rider to pillion and bike to 
bike intercom. Includes two HJC full 
face helmets (XL and M)

Located Launceston, Tasmania.Near 
New $300 
Contact John Leeming  #18493        
Phone 0407 526 287 
Email: johnshirleytas@gmail.com 

YAMAHA V-Star XVS650 
Custom.  MY 2016. 
Classic looks with Japanese build quality.   
LAMS approved, extremely easy to ride, 
fun!  One year old.  Sep 2018 rego.  
5500Km (approx).  Recent 5000Km 
service.   
Has seriously good add-ons:  (1) 
YAMAHA windshield, (2) KURYAKYN 
mini-spear foot boards, (3) GARMIN 
zūmo GPS, (4) OXFORD heated grips, 
(5) CORBIN gunslinger seat (original 
seat included), (6) YAMAHA sissy bar & 
chrome saddle bag frames, (7) leather 
saddle bags , (8) K&N air filter.  Price 
includes all this gear.   Never dropped, 
it’s immaculate.  Am buying bigger bike ‘coz I’m off my Ps, location is 
Hazelbrook, NSW.  

Contact Bernd #66862.  Ph 0414 491 272 
Price is $8749.
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Info About Your Club

Training Rebates
Ulysses Club Inc. offers rebates for Rider Training and 
First Aid Courses that are completed with a Registered 
Training Organisation. (Conditions apply).

1. Both rebates can be claimed only once within the 
three year membership period, to financial members 
only (not to those in the “grace period”).

2. Rebates are up to 50% of the amount paid for the 
course, up to a maximum of $80 for Rider Training and 
$60 for First Aid course. If the 50% rebate is less than 
$80 or $60, the difference remains a credit until the 
member’s next renewal date, when it is reset at $80 or 
$60. Credits do not accumulate.

3. The Rider Training Rebates are only available to 
licenced riders attending a road safety and/or skills 
based advanced training course. They are not available 
for training required to obtain a motorcycle licence.

4. The First Aid rebates are available on completion 
of a Senior First Aid certificate or Motorcycle First 
Responder endorsement. 

5. The rebates are only available to members who successfully 
complete the course, not just for the booking. We are requiring 
a copy of the certificate of completion issued by the training 
provider, plus evidence of payment by the member (receipt).

6. In the case of block bookings (by groups or Branches), we 
are requiring individual copies of completion certificates or 
a formal listing on Company letterhead with confirmation of 
completion. We will pay each member directly.

7. All courses must be paid for by the member to be able to 
claim the rebate. (If a branch subsidises the course the member 
cannot claim the rebate. A Branch and the Club is one and the 
same therefore voiding the member from claiming twice).

8. These policies will be reviewed in the light of member 

response and the financial health of the club.

Rebate claim forms are available on the National website 
under ‘Documents’ once logged in.

Rebates will only be issued if the criterion is met. It is the 
members’ responsibility to provide all information required 
to the Administration Office. At time of booking your course, 
please advise your training organisation that you require a 
certificate or letter of completion in order to claim your rebate 
from Ulysses Club Inc.

Age and Membership Badges
60 Age / 10, 15 Year Length of Membership Badges

These badges are available from Club Administration for $5.50 
each by phoning 1300 134 123 or
email: administration@ulysses.org.au

Members can purchase these badges upon attaining the 
appropriate status and subject to confirmation of records held.

70 & 80 Age / 20, 25 & 30 Year Length of Membership Badges

These badges are complimentary upon individual application 
and subject to confirmation of records held.

Club Constitution  
Download a copy of the Club’s Constitution from the footer 
of the National Website www.ulyssesclub.org.  or contact the 
National Administration Office.

The Three Principles of the Ulysses Club Inc are:- 

a)      To provide ways in which older motorcyclists can get together for companionship and mutual support;

b)     To show by example that motor cycling can be an enjoyable and practical activity for riders of all ages;

c)      To draw the attention of public and private institutions to the needs and views of older riders.
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Club Contact Listing

Please call your local Branch contact for details on local rides, meetings and events or 
visit www.ulyssesclub.org

ACT BRANCHES
CANBERRA BRANCH Canberra IAN PATERSON 0427 29 1728

NEW SOUTH WALES BRANCHES

BATHURST BRANCH Bathurst GRAHAM REA  0427 58 9983
BLUE MOUNTAINS BRANCH Katoomba BOB VAN BUSKIRK 0474 07 7823
BORDER RANGES BRANCH Lismore, Ballina, Casino, Byron Bay LES TARRAN 0402 27 9260
BROKEN HILL BRANCH Broken Hill DEAN SCHMIDT 0400 00 8209
CENTRAL COAST RIDERS 
BRANCH

Gosford, Wyong TONY SINCLAIR 0408 68 5722

CLARENCE VALLEY BRANCH Grafton REG HAMPSON 0408 43 1542
COBB HIGHWAY BRANCH, 
DENILIQUIN 

Deniliquin PETER NANKIVELL 0484 117 304

COFFS COAST BRANCH Coffs Harbour MIKE MELLEFONT 0408 39 5053
COOTAMUNDRA BRANCH Cootamundra BILL TEALE 02 6942 3134 
COTTON COUNTRY CRUISERS, 
MOREE BRANCH

Moree ROS ROSE 02 6752 1479

COWRA BRANCH Cowra BRIAN NAIRNE 0407 45 3829
DUBBO & WESTERN PLAINS 
BRANCH

Dubbo Area JENNIFER 
HUMPHRIES

0417 45 3604

EASTERN CREEK BRANCH Parramatta -Western Suburbs - Sydney KEVIN WATERSTON 0415 52 7196
EUROBODALLA BRANCH Batemans Bay ANNE BAILEY 0432 05 0410
FORSTER BRANCH Forster, Tuncurry KRIS BENTLEY 0450 00 5443
GLEN INNES BRANCH Glen Innes GEOFF BOURNE 0427 49 6752
GLOUCESTER BRANCH Gloucester IAN PARKS 0414 58 2019
GOULBURN NSW BRANCH Goulburn JOHN ZYLA 02 4821 8224
GRENFELL BRANCH Grenfell DEBBIE STEVENS 0429 43 1434
GUNNEDAH BRANCH Gunnedah WARREN COOMBES 0431 72 8591 
HAWKESBURY BRANCH Hawkesbury River PETER SMITH 02 4588 5339
HILLS BRANCH Castle Hill, North West Sydney SANDRA MITCHELL 0407 21 1956
HORNSBY DISTRICT BRANCH Hornsby DEAN FINCH 0425 21 4866
HUNTER COALFIELDS BRANCH Cessnock, Kurri Kurri BILL INGALL 0427 90 2814
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INVERELL SAPPHIRE CITY 
BRANCH

Inverell PHIL KIMBER 0419 95 6270

LAKE MACQUARIE BRANCH Lake Macquarie TONY O’NEILL 0475 06 8882
LITHGOW & DISTRICT BRANCH Lithgow Area DARRYLL COOPER 0428 14 0555
MACARTHUR BRANCH Campbelltown, Camden ALAN FARLOW 0421 13 5462
MACLEAY VALLEY BRANCH                                                                    Kempsey STEWART JOHNSTON 02 6561 5198
MANNING VALLEY BRANCH Taree RAY BELLAMY 0418 96 3171
MIA BRANCH Leeton, Griffith PHIL GRAY 0407 22 3053
MUDGEE BRANCH Mudgee ROBERT O'SULLIVAN 0407 10 6807
MYALL LAKES BRANCH Tea Gardens, Hawks Nest TONY MITCHELL 0417 47 4528
NAMBUCCA VALLEY BRANCH Nambucca Heads TODD VERCOE 0438 22 5390
NEPEAN BRANCH Penrith DENNIS KING 0421 28 7572
NEW ENGLAND BUSHRANGERS 
BRANCH

Armidale ADMINISTRATION 
OFFICE

1300 134 123

NEWCASTLE LOWER HUNTER 
BRANCH

Newcastle, Maitland DEBRA RELF 0419 35 3755

NORTHERN BEACHES BRANCH North Sydney metro Beaches ALAN BATEMAN 0417 68 5246
NORTHERN RIVERS BRANCH Lismore, Casino, Ballina, Byron Bay ELIZABETH AMOS 0412 52 3499
ORANGE BRANCH Orange LESTER DAVIS 0418 68 8240
PORT MACQUARIE MID NORTH 
COAST BRANCH

Port Macquarie, Camden Haven, 
Wachope

PHIL HEDLEY 0488 73 3520

PORT STEPHENS BRANCH Port Stephens ANNE CROWLEY 0417 68 8569
SAPPHIRE COAST BRANCH Eden, Merimbula, Bega  Area BRUCE BEARMAN 0417 45 6756
SNOWY MOUNTAINS BRANCH Cooma ROWAN BOUCHER 0404 97 6021
SOUTH COAST BRANCH Nowra MIKE LEONARD 0421 04 4134
ST. GEORGE SUTHERLAND 
BRANCH

St George - Sutherland Sydney 
Southern suburbs

ROB TUNNICLIFF 0418 55 9034

SYDNEY BRANCH Sydney DAVID WILLIAMS 0409 74 3058
TAMWORTH & DISTRICTS 
BRANCH

Tamworth MARK PAYNTER 0418 21 6673

TWEED BORDER BRANCH Tweed Heads LINDA NICASTRI 0417 25 9177 
UPPER HUNTER BRANCH Muswellbrook, Singleton BILL TINDALE 0488 47 1978
WAGGA WAGGA BRANCH Wagga Wagga MARY SMITH 0413 58 6196
WOLLONDILLY WANDERERS 
BRANCH

Menangle , Mittagong, Bowral DAVID LOWE 0438 78 6093

WOY WOY PENINSULA BRANCH                                                             Woy Woy - Southern Central Coast GARRY FUCHS 0439 02 7566

NORTHERN TERRITORY 
BRANCHES
CENTRAL DESERTS BRANCH Alice Springs JEFF COLE 0438 51 4397

QUEENSLAND BRANCHES
ALBERT VALLEY BRANCH Beenleigh NOEL CARNEY 0412 35 6229
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BLACKALL RANGE 
NAMBOUR BRANCH

Nambour ROD CLIFFORD 0419 76 0089

BOWEN BRANCH Bowen NOEL SLEEMAN 0400 79 1009
BRISBANE BRANCH Brisbane SUSANNE 

KENYON-WESTON
07 3118 5318

BUNDABERG BRANCH Bundaberg NEIL COOK 0409 60 7511
BURNETT BRANCH Kingaroy, Nanango COLIN PARKER 0418 71 7626
CAIRNS BRANCH Cairns MALCOLM MCKASKILL 0438 78 5276
CAPRICORNIA BRANCH Rockhampton STEPHEN SAGNOL 07 4933 3142
DARLING DOWNS BRANCH Toowoomba LINDA CAREY 0434 52 6227
FRASER COAST BRANCH Hervey Bay, Maryborough SUSAN GREGORY 0412 31 7991
GATTON BRANCH Gatton RICKIE MASKIE 0420 96 7022
GLADSTONE BRANCH Gladstone, Biloela JOHN WATSON 0408 69 4676
GLASSHOUSE MOUNTAINS 
BRANCH

Caboolture DENISE STANAWAY 0407 07 3919

GOLD COAST BRANCH Gold Coast ALAN KUSHIN 0417 00 7561
GYMPIE BRANCH Gympie WAYNE WESSLING 0418 83 8820
IPSWICH BRANCH Ipswich AMANDA PAMENTER 0413 42 0970
LOCKYER BRANCH Ipswich, Lockyer Valley EDWARD WEBB 0427 34 2797
LOGAN CITY BRANCH Logan IAN KIRKWOOD 0400 14 3063
MACKAY BRANCH Mackay GREG POWER 0437 11 6439
MOUNT ISA BRANCH Mt Isa ADMININSTRATION 

OFFICE
1300 134 123

MOUNT LINDESAY BRANCH Mount Lindesay DEBBIE BATTLE 0422 09 1280
NORTHERN GATEWAY BRANCH Brisbane Northern Suburbs ANDREW CARTER 0432 66 0597
REDCLIFFE BRANCH Redcliffe - Brisbane Northern suburbs DARRYL WELLS 0421 38 0351
REDLANDS BRANCH Brisbane South East  suburbs TOM DOOLAN 0417 71 9891
SOMERSET REGION BRANCH Kilcoy, Esk KATHY ELLEM 0428 65 5554
SUNSHINE COAST BRANCH Maroochydore, Caloundra, Noosa PAUL GROSSMAN 0419 72 2091
TROPIC COAST TOURERS 
BRANCH

Innisfail DON FULLER 0428 88 1571

WARWICK & DISTRICT BRANCH Warwick ELAINE WENHAM 0407 93 7199

SOUTH AUSTRALIA BRANCHES

ADELAIDE BRANCH Adelaide KEN WAGNITZ 0417 35 3389
EYRE PENINSULA BRANCH Port Lincoln RAY BADDELEY 0439 35 8004
FLEURIEU BRANCH Fleurieu Peninsula BARBIE WATSON 0484 93 8130
LOWER MURRAY BRANCH                                         Murray Bridge DAVID PITT 0433 61 0972
MALLEE BRANCH Berri, Renmark (Riverland) IAN WOLTER 0427 95 3097
TORRENS VALLEY BRANCH Adelaide - North East Suburbs LORRAINE ROBINSON 0402 90 4670
WHYALLA & DISTRICTS BRANCH Whyalla PERRY ZIMMERMAN 0419 13 4511
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TASMANIA BRANCHES
EAST COAST THYLACINES 
BRANCH

Bicheno, St Helens, St Marys BARRY NELSON 0439 72 2515

HOBART BRANCH Hobart JAN RUSH 0438 72 1918
NORTH WEST COAST BRANCH Smithton, Ulverstone, Devenport ROBIN SMITH 0419 14 3688
TAMAR TOURERS BRANCH Launceston STUART BUCKNELL 0478 70 8824

VICTORIA BRANCHES
ALBURY - WODONGA BRANCH Albury-Wodonga BILL ALLOTT 0417 65 2974
ALPINE RIDERS BRANCH Bright, Harrietville - North East Victoria LEANNE EGAN 0427 50 1033
BAIRNSDALE DISTRICTS 
BRANCH

Bairnsdale LESLIE HAINES 0419 25 0860

CENTRAL HIGHLANDS BRANCH Ballarat SHARRYN NANKERVIS 0417 35 5326
CENTRAL MURRAY-SWAN HILL 
BRANCH

Swan Hill PETER HOLT 0428 54 9003

CENTRAL VICTORIA BRANCH Bendigo SUE JONES 0418 237 070
ECHUCA BRANCH Echuca PAUL BUTLER 0438 55 1450
GEELONG BRANCH Geelong JOHN GRACE 0427 42 9660
GIPPSLAND CENTRAL BRANCH Traralgon MARG VAN ROSSUM 0427 22 1973
GOULBURN VALLEY BRANCH Shepparton TREVOR FRANKLIN 0430 01 4400
GRAMPIANS BRANCH Ararat,  Horsham, Stawell JOHN HARKIN 0416 21 4631
GREEN TRIANGLE BRANCH Portland LINTON CRAM 0429 93 9420
MACEDON RANGES BRANCH Gisborne, Woodend MICHAEL BEVAN 0431 49 5673
MELBOURNE BRANCH Melbourne BRIAN LACEY 0439 01 0873
MILDURA BRANCH Mildura BRUCE WATSON 0409 99 7840
MORNINGTON WANDERERS 
BRANCH

Mornington, Somerville PHIL MATTHEWS 0412 53 2227 

OTWAY RANGERS BRANCH Colac, Otway TANYA WIGLEY 0408 77 4431
SALE & DISTRICT BRANCH Sale STEPHEN WALSH 0467 84 7060
SHEARWATERS BRANCH Cranbourne DEAN WATSON 0403 16 7474
SHIPWRECK COAST BRANCH Warrnambool JOHN COWAN 0458 02 8651 

SOUTHERN CROSS TOURERS 
BRANCH

Frankston SCOTT LAWRENCE 0409 94 1403

SOUTH GIPPSLAND BRANCH Leongatha, Korumburra MARTY SHAW 0409 92 1863
WESTGATE WANDERERS 
BRANCH

Melbourne - Western Suburbs GREG DOUGLAS 0419 33 6052

WHITTLESEA BRANCH Whittlesea ROBERT HARRIS 0428 53 7500
YARRA RANGES BRANCH Melbourne - Outer Eastern Suburbs JUNE FLANAGIN 0488 75 3834

WESTERN AUSTRALIA BRANCHES
ARMADALE HERITAGE BRANCH Armadale CHRISTINE TITKO 0418 92 9706
BROOME WEST KIMBERLEY 
BRANCH                                                          

Broome  JOHN KENNEDY 0412 46 0442  

BUNBURY BRANCH Bunbury BRENDA INGRAM 0417 94 2363
ESPERANCE BRANCH Esperance STEVE SMITH 0457 08 4693
FREMANTLE BRANCH Fremantle JOHN PEFFER 0433 97 6972
GERALDTON BRANCH Geraldton BRUCE RALPH 0427 64 2392
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INTERNATIONAL CLUBS CONTACT PHONE / EMAIL
ULYSSES CLUB BOTSWANA BENNIE PIETERSE bennie@rhino.co.bw
ULYSSES CLUB FRANCE ENZO CHOUETTE enzohome74@gmail.com
ULYSSES CLUB GERMANY GERNOT MINIG gminig@hotmail.com
ULYSSES CLUB GREAT BRITAIN ANDY MORRISON andymorri1@gmail.com
ULYSSES CLUB NAMIBIA HARE KRUGER harek@iway.na
ULYSSES CLUB NETHERLANDS                                                       JEROEN SCHUITEN         j.schuiten@chello.nl
ULYSSES CLUB NEW ZEALAND TIM STEWART vice.p@ulysses.org.nz
ULYSSES CLUB NORWAY KNUT SVEEN 47 9097 3060 knut_sveen@hotmail.com
ULYSSES CLUB SOUTH AFRICA MAURITIUS MEIRING 0437 35 3556   ulyssessa@telkomsa.net
ULYSSES CLUB SWITZERLAND SVEN SPIESS sven.spiess@bluewin.ch
ULYSSES CLUB THAILAND JIM PINNER ulyssesthailand8@gmail.com
ULYSSES CLUB ZIMBABWE MARK SALTHOUSE msalthouse@lzm.co.zw

GERALDTON BRANCH Geraldton BRUCE RALPH 0427 64 2392

GREAT SOUTHERN BRANCH Albany SHANE ROONEY 0459 13 8806
JOONDALUP BRANCH Perth - Northern Suburbs KEN EATON 0418 92 5081
KALGOORLIE GOLDFIELDS 
BRANCH

Kalgoorlie GEOFF SHEW 0409 27 3442

MANDURAH - MURRAY BRANCH Mandurah SANDRA DIX 0413 51 3039
PERTH BRANCH Perth - Northern Suburbs MARK DIXON 0413 82 0071
PILBARA BRANCH                                                            Karratha STEVE TREVURZA 0410 86 7102
SWAN VALLEY HILLS BRANCH Swan Valley, Eastern Hills, Avon,  

Chittering Valley's
KEVIN ROBERTSON 0414 57 8477

WARNBRO SOUND WANDERERS 
BRANCH

Rockingham DIANNA GLOVER 0419 91 9275

SPECIAL INTEREST GROUPS

ULYSSES ADVENTURE RIDERS 
(SIG)

GARY WICKHAM 0422 00 7979

ULYTTLIES (SIG) LYN LESSLIE 0410 62 9164

LAYOUT DESIGN BY DIAMOND GRAPHICS 
www.diamondgraphics.com.au

RIDING GROUPS
VICTORIA
TWO BAYS Rosebud, Mornington Peninsula Refer to website

twobays.ulyssesclub.org
SOUTH AUSTRALIA
LIMESTONE COAST Mt Gambier Gerry Kroon 0428 35 2838
NORTHERN TERRITORY
TOP END Darwin Gary Finch 0427 87 3339

QUEENSLAND

Townsville                                           Townsville                                           TBA

OVERSEAS
CAMBODIA BOB WILTSHIRE bobski2010@gmail.com

VIETNAM KEVIN COLLINS kevinbabyowl@gmail.com 
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INSURANCE FOR MOTORING ENTHUSIASTS  |  CALL 13 46 46 FOR A QUOTE  |  SHANNONS.COM.AU
Shannons Pty Limited ABN 91 099 692 636 is an authorised representative of AAI Limited ABN 48 005 297 807, the issuer of Shannons Car, Bike and Home/Contents insurance products. Read the relevant Product Disclosure Statement and consider whether 
it is right for you before buying these insurance products. Contact us for a copy. Competition conducted by Shannons Pty Limited, of Level 28, Brisbane Square, 266 George Street, Brisbane, QLD 4000. Competition commences at 12am on 15/1/18 and 
closes at 5pm on 6/4/18 (Melbourne time). Applications for online quotes must be submitted by 2/4/18 to be eligible for entry into this competition, however, telephone applications will continue to be available until 5pm 6/4/18. Entry is only open to 
eligible Australian residents aged 18 years or older. Eligible Entrants must be opted in to receive Shannons marketing communications. Total prize pool valued at approx. AUD $56,395 (depending on major prize winner’s point of departure, Shannons Club 
Membership and on road costs which differ nationally). Prizes drawn at 12pm on 16/4/18 at Engage Australia, Level 8, 56 Clarence Street, Sydney, NSW 2000. The winners will be notified by phone and email by 18/4/18 and published in The Australian 
newspaper on 23/4/18 and on the competition website. *New Shannons Motor Insurance Policy (excludes CTP insurance) (Motor Policy) or a new Shannons Home & Contents insurance (includes building only, contents only or building and contents 
cover) (Home Policy) quotes. Limit 1 quote per vehicle or insured address. **Purchase a new Motor Policy (excludes existing Motor Policy renewals).+Purchase a new Home Policy. Permits: ACT TP 17/02426.1, NSW LTPS/17/20050, SA T17/2280. Full 
competition terms and conditions at shannons.com.au/pebblebeach.

Shannons are offering motoring enthusiasts the chance to win a tour for two to the 
2018 Pebble Beach Concours D’Elegance, one of the world’s most prestigious motoring events Visit the 

Napa Valley, classic motoring collections and iconic attractions before heading to Monterey Car Week and 
the Pebble Beach Concours D’Elegance. Complete the trip behind the wheel of a  Ferrari 488 GTB for the 

ultimate drive experience. The winner will also receive an all new 2018 Indian Scout  Motorcycle.

To enter go to shannons.com.au/pebblebeach or call 13 46 46 and obtain an eligible quote 
on your Car, Bike or Home Insurance* by 6 April 2018. 

1 5 10Get a Quote*
ENTRY

Take out a new 
Motor Policy**

ENTRIES
Take out a new Home 
& Contents Policy+ 

ENTRIES

GET A QUOTE 

TODAY!
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We’re 100% committed to beating the 
price of your current motorcycle cover.
At QBE you know you’re getting great value motorcycle insurance with our price beat guarantee. 

like low usage discounts, a lifetime guarantee on repairs, and apparel and helmet cover up to 
$4,000 – we make switching easy. Simply call us today and we’ll work out the best deal for you.

Call 1800 24 34 64

We guarantee to beat our competitors price on motorcycle insurance policies excluding our Premium Cover. The guarantee also applies to existing QBE motorcycle insurance policies that are on 
renewal. Price guarantee is based on our standard price compared to competitors price for policies with the same type of insured events.  Offer valid for the first 12 months of insurance, after this 
premium will be charged at the  competitive QBE standard rate.  We only guarantee to beat the price of APRA authorised insurers who hold an AFSL issued by ASIC.  Guarantee does not apply to any 
free offers of insurance.  Insurance is issued by QBE Insurance (Australia) Ltd. ABN 78 003 191 035. AFSL 239545.  To decide if a policy is right for you please carefully read the PDS which is available 
at qbe.com.au or by phoning us on 1800 24 34 64.   Price beat guarantee only available on full comprehensive motorcycle insurance. Not available on CTP.


